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Corporate Information

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AUDIT COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Zheng Hao Jiang (as Chairman
until 8 July 2020 and as
Co-Chairman with effect from
8 July 2020, and Chief
Executive Officer)

Ma Chao (appointed as executive
Director with effect from
16 June 2020 and appointed as
Co-Chairman with effect from
8 July 2020)

Zhao Xiaodong (Deputy Chairman
and Chief Operating Officer)

Zhu Lei

Qi Jian Wei*

Choy Sze Chung, Jojo**

Lam Kwok Cheong**

Gao Yu** (as non-executive
Director until 10 October 2020;
re-designated as independent
non-executive Director with
effect from 10 October 2020)

Liu Honggiang** (as non-executive
Director until 13 November
2020, re-designated as
independent non-executive
Director with effect from 13
November 2020)

Liu Xiaoyi** (appointed with effect
from 22 October 2020)

Lee Thomas Kang Bor** (resigned
with effect from 19 March 2021)

*

Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive
Director

>k

Choy Sze Chung, Jojo (Chairman)

Lam Kwok Cheong

Gao Yu (appointed as a member
with effect from 19 March 2021)

Lee Thomas Kang Bor (resigned
as a member with effect from
19 March 2021)

Lam Kwok Cheong (Chairman)

Choy Sze Chung, Jojo

Liu Xiaoyi (appointed as a member
with effect from 20 March 2021)

Zheng Hao Jiang

Zhu Lei

Lee Thomas Kang Bor (resigned
as a member with effect from
19 March 20217)
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Corporate Information

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

LEGAL ADVISERS

FINANCIAL CONTROLLER &

COMPANY SECRETARY

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

AUDITOR

REGISTERED OFFICE

PRINCIPAL OFFICE

REGISTRAR
(in Hong Kong)

REGISTRAR
(in Bermuda)

STOCK CODE

WEBSITE

Liu Honggiang (Chairman) REEES 2 7% 58 (EEf‘)
(appointed as a member and (A=—F=——4F
the Chairman with effect from ZH -+ HEEZT
20 March 2021) BHEREE)
Lam Kwok Cheong HE &
Choy Sze Chung, Jojo = BIR
Lee Thomas Kang Bor (resigned THEE(H=FE=—F
as a member and the Chairman Z A+ HEEE
with effect from 19 March 2021) B REE)
Chiu & Partners SRR N8 5 B o R BN B S P
F. Zimmern & Co. e SCRENTT
King & Wood Mallesons SRR EAT
Li Yat Ming B RERNR -5
WmE
China Minsheng Banking FERKRRT FERERITROHERAR
Corp., Ltd
China CITIC Bank RIERITIROBRA A
Corporation Limited
OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited EEXKFRITERQA
Standard Chartered Bank BEITIRIT (FE) BRA A
(China) Limited
BDO Limited ZEED EBNE % EEEES
BRA
Clarendon House g ERE Clarendon House
2 Church Street 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11 Bermuda Hamilton HM11 Bermuda
Rooms 2028-36, FENER BBELT
20/F Sun Hung Kai Centre 758 B305E
30 Harbour Road FEE A L2018
Wanchai Hong Kong 2028-36%
Tricor Secretaries Limited BEETE FEWEEEERAA
Level 54, Hopewell Centre (B*) B
183 Queen’s Road East EFRBRE1835
Hong Kong & WA 0548
MUFG Fund Services BEERE MUFG Fund Services
(Bermuda) Limited (BxZE) (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North 4th Floor North
Cedar House Cedar House
41 Cedar Avenue 41 Cedar Avenue
Hamilton HM12 Hamilton HM12
Bermuda Bermuda
970 AR 17 157 970
www.hk970.com #8ak www.hk970.com
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Financial Highlights

Revenue for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 increased by
31.4% from HK$3,443,430,000 to HK$4,525,762,000 as compared
with the last financial year.

Gross profit for this financial year increased by 23.6% from
HK$559,885,000 to HK$691,753,000.

Other income, gains and losses for this financial year were losses
of HK$51,230,000 (2020: gains of HK$5,506,000).

Selling and distribution costs for this financial year increased by
22.0% as compared with the same in the last financial year.

Administrative expenses for this financial year decreased by 9.6%
as compared with the same in the last financial year.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 March 2021 was HK$37,527,000 (2020:
HK$30,283,000).

Earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company were
HKO.7 cent for this financial year as compared with HKO0.6 cent

earnings per share in the last financial year.

No dividend was declared for this financial year (2020: nil).
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Financial Highlights
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Financial Highlights

Financial Position: B FE AR -
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T TETT
Total assets EEHE 4,086,152 3,597,058
Total liabilities BEER 1,426,856 1,594,148
Net assets BEFE 2,659,296 2,002,910
Net tangible worth BEREEFE 2,008,617 1,341,870
Financial Ratios: BrF& L = -
2021 2020
—_E_—F —E-TF
Gross profit margin EHx 15.3% 16.3%
Return on equity G B 1.4% 1.5%
Current ratio mE LR 1.71 1.42
Gearing ratio BERBELE 17.2% 37.7%
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Chairman’s Statement

China has set an economic growth target of 6% for 2021, said
Premier Li Kegiang at the opening ceremony of the China’s
National People’s Congress in March 2021. GDP growth of 18.3%
year-on-year in the first quarter of 2021 was the strongest since
China began keeping records in 1992, and such growth was driven
by a surge in retail sales, industrial production and investment in
fixed assets. Such surge was the strongest quarterly growth on
record as the world’s second largest economy continued its robust
recovery from the coronavirus pandemic.

During the financial year under review, the Group’s revenue
increased from HK$3,443.4 million to HK$4,525.8 million. Gross
profit for the financial year under review increased from HK$559.9
million last year to HK$691.8 million the year. The auto business
was still our major income driver, accounting for approximately 90%
of our business. Net profit attributable to owners of HK$37.5 million
was recorded in this financial year compared with a net profit of
HK$30.3 million in the last financial year.

China’s Luxury Goods and Automobiles Markets

There are quite a number of ongoing updates and research reports
from reputable authorities, investment banks and global research
houses mentioning that China’s luxury goods market has surfaced
a bright spot during the COVID-19 pandemic. According to the
“The Future of Luxury: Bouncing Back from Covid-19” released by
Bain & Company on 14 January 2021, the luxury industry has been
heavily impacted by the COVID-19 crisis in 2020. The overall luxury
market encompassing both luxury good and experiences shrank by
20% to 22% at current exchange rates, and is now estimated at
approximately €1 trillion globally, back to its 2015 level. However,
Mainland China is the only region globally to end the year on a
positive note, growing by 45% at current exchange rates to reach
€44 billion. The report forecasts Chinese consumers will become a
dominating nationality for luxury, growing to represent over 45% of
global purchases while China is on a path to become the biggest
luxury market, in which Chinese domestic consumption by 2025
will account for around 45% of the global luxury market.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B} EB AR A 7
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FEHRSE
Chairman’s Statement

According to an article titled “China leads luxury into 2021”
published on 4 January 2021 by Fondation de la Haute Horlogerie
(which was established in 2005 in Geneva by Audemars Piguet,
Girard-Perregaux and the Richemont Group with its objective is to
promote Fine Watchmaking worldwide), it mentioned that according
to the estimates by US investment bank Jeffries, China’s share
of global personal luxury goods expenditure shot up from 38%
in 2019 to 80 to 85% in 2020. There were numerous reasons for
this, starting with China’s rapid economic recovery after lockdown
was lifted, and the fact that there has been no second wave of
infections, as has been the case just about everywhere else in the
world. Travel restrictions are also part of the equation as domestic
consumption benefited from purchases that Chinese shoppers
would ordinarily have made overseas, of which Chinese tourists
accounted for 51% of the European luxury market in 2019. Jeffries
forecasts that luxury expenditure in China will continue to account
for some 60% of the global market.

For the global luxury car market, China is the only country to
experience growth last year despite the COVID-19 pandemic.
According to an article titled “China’s luxury cars see sales surge
in 2020” issued on 1 February 2021 by chinadaily.com.cn (which
is the largest English portal in China providing news, business
information, BBS, learning materials), it mentioned that according
to 21st Century Business Herald, China has bucked the trend to
become the only country among mainstream automotive markets
to experience growth last year, and luxury brands were the only
segment in the nation that witnessed a sales surge during the
COVID-19 pandemic. Statistics from the China Passenger Car
Association showed that a total of 2.53 million luxury vehicles were
sold in China in 2020, representing an increase of 14.7% from
2019, and grabbing a 13% of market share among total passenger
vehicles. This also marked the third consecutive year for luxury
brands to realize growth in the wake of downward pressure in
China’s overall automotive market.

8 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ¥R EB AR A 7
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FEHRSE
Chairman’s Statement

China is still the most important luxury car market globally based
on a “Global Light Vehicle Sales Update — April 2021” issued in
April 2021 by LMC Automotive (which is a market leader in the field
of automotive intelligence and forecasts to an extensive client base
of car and truck makers, component manufacturers and suppliers,
financial, logistics and government institutions around the world).
It also mentioned that the crash in global car sales earlier in the
year and the subsequent powerful recovery, augurs well for the
industry, particularly as China, the world’s biggest market, was
leading the way. The report also said Chinese consumer confidence
has returned to a pre-pandemic level. The circumstance of the
COVID-19 pandemic have rebounded in favour of the car because
of its private, sealed nature and its immunity from contact with the
general public.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B} EB AR A 7
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Auto Dealerships

During the financial year under review, revenue of the ultra-luxury
automobile distributorships of Bentley, Lamborghini and Rolls-
Royce recorded an approximately 35% increase to approximately
HK$4,076 million, as compared with that of approximately
HK$3,016 million in the previous financial year. All of our three
auto brands, Bentley, Rolls-Royce and Lamborghini recorded sales
growth. Bentley performed the best among the Group’s three auto
brands in terms of the increase in revenue and gross profit with
total sales of approximately HK$2,005 million, representing an
approximately 75% rise as compared with that of approximately
HK$1,146 million recorded in the previous financial year. 586 units
of Bentley were sold, representing an increase of approximately
70% as compared with 345 units sold in the previous financial
year. Among all models of Bentley sold during this financial year,
Bentayga performed the best in terms of revenue and gross profit
contribution.

According to an article titled “Bentley achieves record sales in
most challenging of years” issued by Automotive World (which is
the world’s leading independent automotive publishing and events
company, on 5 January 2021), Bentley announced a total sales
of 11,206 units in 2020, an increase of 2% over 2019. Bentley’s
biggest growth was reserved for China, posting a sales increase
of 48%, 2,880 cars, against 1,940 as the traditional sedan
market welcomed the introduction of the all-new Flying Spur, with
Bentayga sales remaining strong.

Rolls-Royce recorded a rise in sales during this financial year
with a total of approximately HK$1,553 million, representing an
approximately 17% increase in sales as compared with that of
approximately HK$1,326 million during the previous financial year.
238 units of Rolls-Royce were sold, representing an increase
of approximately 13% as compared with 207 units sold in the
previous financial year. Among all models of Rolls-Royce sold
during this financial year, Wraith performed the best in terms of
revenue and gross profit contribution.

1 0 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ¥R EB AR A 7
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Lamborghini recorded an approximately 1% increase in sales
to approximately HK$440.8 million during this financial year, as
compared with that of approximately HK$437.6 million in the
previous financial year. 130 units of Lamborghini were sold,
representing an increase of approximately 13% as compared with
115 units sold in the previous financial year. Among all models of
Lamborghini sold during this financial year, Urus performed the best
in terms of revenue and gross profit contribution.

Gross profit of sale of automobiles increased during this financial
year due to the increase in unit sold of Bentley and Rolls-Royce
and the increase in gross profit margin of Bentley. For Lamborghini,
gross profit margin recorded a decline during this financial year.

Revenue of after-sales services recorded a decline of approximately
27% during this financial year as compared with that of the
previous financial year. The gross profit margin decreased from
approximately 42% in the previous financial year to approximately
38% in this financial year.

Non-auto Dealerships

During the year under review, the sales of our non-auto dealerships
division recorded an increase in revenue of approximately 13%
to approximately HK$331 million as compared with that of
approximately HK$293.6 million in the previous financial year.

Gross profit margin of our non-auto dealerships division decreased
during this financial year from approximately 36.5% in the previous
financial year to approximately 33.5% in this financial year.

Among all non-auto dealerships during this financial year, Bang &
Olufsen performed the best in terms of revenue contribution.

During this financial year under review, the Group has entered into
the Variation and Renewal Agreement with Oettinger Davidoff for a
further period of three years up until 30 September 2023, while the
Group’s dealership with renowned jewellery brand, Royal Asscher,
was ended in October 2020. Further details of the Variation and
Renewal Agreement were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 8 October 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Others

During the financial year under review, the revenue from our others
division, which include the provision of property management
services, catering services, films and television program
investments and money lending business, recorded a decrease
of approximate 11.4% to approximately HK$118.4 million, as
compared with that of approximately HK$133.7 million in the
previous financial year. The decrease was mainly due to the lack of
revenue generated from catering business during this financial year.

Regarding the property management business, its revenue
recorded an increase for this financial year which was mainly due
to the increase in provision of property management services
in this financial year. However, the increase was partially offset
by the rental concessions offered to tenants. As disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 25 June 2018 in
relation to the acquisition of property management business,
certain profit guarantees have been given by the Vendor. Based
on the calculation results, the profit guarantee of not less than
RMB66,125,000 million has been achieved between 1 April 2020 to
31 March 2021 in relation to the property management business.
As disclosed in our annual reports 2019 and 2020, the profit
guarantees for the first and second year had been fulfilled, the
3-years profit guarantee of the total not less than RMB173,625,000
million has been fully fulfiled by the Vendor for the period between
1 April 2018 to 31 March 2021 in accordance with the related sale
and purchase agreement.

Due to the impact of the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group has ceased the catering business during the financial year
ended 31 March 2021.

Regarding the film business, due to the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic, the releasing schedule of our film investments has been
postponed. No revenue was generated during the financial year
ended 31 March 2021.
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EEENWN DN

Management Discussion and Analysis

Regarding the Earn-out Adjustments as defined and mentioned
in the Company’s announcement dated 29 October 2018 and
supplemental announcement dated 30 December 2018, based on
the calculation results as at 31 March 2021, the Target Group (as
defined in the Company’s announcement dated 29 October 2018)
still recorded a loss and therefore the Group did not have any
contingent liability arising out of it.

Regarding the money lending business, the Company has
been looking for opportunities since 2018. During this financial
year, the Company had utilised a total of HK$90.0 million out
of the net proceeds from the issuance of convertible bonds for
development of its money lending business and the remaining for
general working capital hence recognised a slight loan interest
income. For the details of the loan transaction, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 4 March 2021 and 22
March 2021.

Equity Investment

As a long-term investment for capital appreciation and distribution,
the Group held shares in Bang & Olufsen A/S (“B&0”), a company
incorporated in Denmark whose shares are listed and traded on
NASDAQ Copenhagen A/S. B&O is a global design icon operating
in the intersection between consumer electronics and luxury. It was
founded in 1925 in Struer, Denmark, by Peter Bang and Svend
Olufsen, whose devotion and vision remains the foundation for the
company.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group held 14,059,347 shares (31 March
2020: 4,686,449 shares) of B&O, representing approximately
11.45% of its total issued shares. The carrying amount of this
investment represented approximately 12.7% of the total assets of
the Group as at 31 March 2021.

No dividend was generated from this investment to the Group
during this financial year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) of HK$520 million as at 31
March 2021 (31 March 2020: HK$124 million) represented the
Group’s strategic investment on B&O. The increase in carrying
amount of the Group’s financial assets at FVTOCI during this
financial year under review was mainly due to subscription of B&O
right issue and fair value change on the market price of the shares
of B&O.

As announced by B&0O on 3 June 2020, a rights issue has been
approved by its shareholder at its extraordinary general meeting
held on 3 June 2020. The rights issue would be effected at a
subscription ratio of 2:1 (1 existing share would give the right to
subscribe for 2 new shares) and a subscription price of Danish
Krone (“DKK”) 5 per share.

As announced by the Company on 24 June 2020, in order
to maintain its proportionate ownership in B&O, representing
approximately 11.45% of its total issued share after the
cancellation of treasury shares on 3 June 2020, the Group had
subscribed for the B&O rights shares at a cost of approximately
DKK46.9 million (equivalent to approximately HK$54.8 million) in
June 2020. Further details of the above subscription of the B&O
rights shares were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 24 June 2020.

The share price of B&O rose to DKKB30.22 per share as at 31
March 2021 (31 March 2020: DKK23.18 per share) as quoted
on the NASDAQ Copenhagen A/S, representing an increase of
approximately 30.3% during the financial year ended 31 March
2021.
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EEENWR DN
Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW B 7 B EE
Revenue I =

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—_ZE-_—F=-ZA=+—HIFE Fr£E
was approximately HK$4,525.8 million, representing an increase 2 W 3 %) /54,525,800,000/8 7T » 8 & F 8 15
of approximately 31.4% as compared with that of approximately  #J3,443,400,000/% 7T 1& hn 4931.4% o W 25
HK$3,443.4 million recorded in the previous year. Such increase MIF B AEHE FAES) - NREIIAEEH
was mainly due to the increase in sales of automobiles. The table R RFE 2 Wi :

below sets out the Group’s revenue for the year indicated:

FY2021 FY2020 Changes
“EC-HHEE —E-THHEE 28
Contribution Contribution
Revenue Source W32 KRR HK$’000 (%) HK$'000 (%) HK$'000 %
TER B K (%) TET (%) FEL %
Automobile segment RESS
Sales of automobiles AEHE 3,998,437 88.4% 2,909,604 84.5% 1,088,833 37.4%
Provision of after-sales services REER RS 77,885 1.7% 106,567 3.1% (28,682) (26.9%)
Sub-total NG 4,076,322 90.1% 3,016,171 87.6% 1,060,151 35.1%
Non-automobile dealership segment FREDHEDH 331,020 7.3% 293,607 8.5% 37,413 12.7%
Others Hit 118,420 2.6% 138,652 3.9% (15,232) (11.4%)
Total B 4,525,762 100% 3,443,430 100% 1,082,332 31.4%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021
increased by approximately 23.6% to approximately HK$691.8
million (31 March 2020: approximately HK$559.9 million) while the
gross profit margin of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021
decreased from 16.3% to 15.3%.

The increase in the gross profit was mainly due to increase in the
gross profit of sales of automobiles by approximately 53.2% in the
Auto dealerships segment mainly arising from increase in that of
Bentley as compared with the records in the last financial year.

The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to the decrease
in gross profit of others segment in this financial year. The decrease
was due to the closure of a restaurant in the second half of last
financial year.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

Other income, gains and losses was approximately HK$51.2 million
losses for the year ended 31 March 2021, as compared with that of
approximately HK$5.5 million gains in the last financial year. Such
change was mainly due to the impairment loss on other intangible
assets of film rights, the impairment loss on goodwill of property
management services, the changes in fair value of investment
properties and investment in films and television program, the
decrease in the income from advertising, exhibitions and other
service and the income from insurance brokerage.

Selling and distribution costs

The selling and distribution costs increased by approximately
22.0%.The increase was mainly due to the increase in marketing
and promotion expenses.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses decreased by approximately HK$8.2

million. Such decrease was mainly due to the absence of exchange
loss for the investment in films for this financial year.
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B W& DA

Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance Costs

The finance costs of the Group decreased by approximately 21.4%
from approximately HK$82.1 million in the previous financial year to
approximately HK$64.5 million in this financial year. The decrease
was due to the decrease in borrowing for purchase of automobiles
inventories and decline in interest expenses on lease liabilities in
this financial year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s total assets as at 31 March 2021 were approximately
HK$4,086.2 million (31 March 2020: approximately HK$3,597.1
million) which were mainly financed by the total equity and the total
liabilities of approximately HK$2,659.3 million (31 March 2020:
approximately HK$2,002.9 million) and HK$1,426.9 million (31
March 2020: approximately HK$1,594.1 million) respectively.

Cash Flow

The Group’s cash at banks and in hand as of 31 March 2021 were
approximately HK$246.5 million (31 March 2020: approximately
HK$116.0 million) which were mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”) and Renminbi (‘RMB”).

The Group’s primary uses of cash are to repay the Group’s
borrowings, to pay for purchases of inventories and to fund the
Group’s working capital and normal operating costs. The increase
of the Group’s cash at banks and in hand was mainly attributable
to the decrease in inventory level when compared with the year
ended 31 March 2020.

The Directors consider that the Group will have sufficient working
capital for its existing operations and financial resources for
financing future business expansion and capital expenditures.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Property, plant and equipment

The Group’s property, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2021
were approximately HK$1,021.3 million (31 March 2020: HK$955.4
million). During the year, the Group acquired items of property,
plant and equipment which mainly comprising right-of-use assets,
leasehold improvements and car parking spaces at a total cost of
approximately HK$104.0 million (31 March 2020: approximately
HK$125.1 million). For more details, please refer to the note 16 to
the financial statements on page 221 of this report.

Goodwill

The Group’s goodwill as at 31 March 2021 was approximately
HK$385.7 million (31 March 2020: HK$381.0 million). The slight
increase in the goodwill was mainly due to the differences in
exchange translation, but such increase was partially offset by the
impairment of goodwill on property management services business
incurred in this financial year, arising from one of the sub-lease
projects expired in April 2021 not renewable after its expiration. For
more details, please refer to the note 19 to the financial statements
on pages 229 to 233 of this report.

Other intangible assets

The Group’s other intangible assets as at 31 March 2021 were
approximately HK$265.0 million (31 March 2020: HK$280.1
million). The decrease in other intangible assets was mainly due to
the impairment of film rights arising from the impact of COVID-19
pandemic causing release schedules being postponed, and
the amortisation of customers’ list from property management
contracts incurred in this financial year. For more details, please
refer to the note 20 to the financial statements on pages 234 to
235 of this report.
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B W& DA

Management Discussion and Analysis

Borrowings

The Group’s borrowings as at 31 March 2021 were approximately
HK$449.9 million, representing a decrease of approximately
40.4% from approximately HK$755.4 million as at 31 March 2020.
The Group’s borrowings were mainly denominated in RMB. The
decrease was mainly due to repayment of the borrowings during
this financial year.

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio computed as total borrowings and
convertible bonds over total equity decreased to approximately
17.2% as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: approximately
37.7%).

Inventories

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s inventories decreased by
approximately 23.7% from approximately HK$912.9 million as at
31 March 2020 to approximately HK$696.2 million. Such decrease
was primarily due to the decrease in automobile inventories which
comprised approximately 34.5% of the inventories of the Group.

The Group’s average inventory turnover days decreased from 123
days in the year ended 31 March 2020 to 77 days in the year
ended 31 March 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Exposure to Foreign Exchange Risk

The revenue and expenses of the Group are mainly denominated
in RMB and HK$ while the production cost and purchases are
denominated in RMB, HKS$, Euro, United States Dollar and Swiss
Franc.

The Group did not enter into any foreign currency forward contract
for this financial year. As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group
did not have any unrealised gain or loss in respect of the foreign
currency forward contracts.

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment

The Board considered that the Group had no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: nil). The Board
considered that the Group had no material capital commitment as
at 31 March 2021 in respect of acquisition of property, plant and
equipment (31 March 2020: nil).

Charges on Assets

As at 31 March 2021, land and building, deposits and inventories
of the Group with aggregate carrying amounts of approximately
HK$693.8 million (31 March 2020: approximately HK$647.7
million), approximately HK$200.5 million (31 March 2020:
approximately HK$92.4 million) and approximately HK$47.4 million
(81 March 2020: approximately HK$414.0 million) respectively were
pledged to secure general banking facilities and other facilities
granted to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 438 (31 March 2020: 483)
employees. Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) charged
to profit or loss amounted to approximately HK$62.2 million for this
financial year (2020: approximately HK$71.1 million).

The Group provided benefits, which included basic salary,
commission, discretionary bonus, medical insurance and retirement
funds, for employees to sustain competitiveness of the Group.
The package was reviewed on an annual basis based on the
Group’s performance and employees’ performance appraisal.
The Group also provided training to its employees for their future
advancement.

Subscriptions of new shares under general mandate and use
of proceeds from the subscriptions

On 4 June 2020, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement under which the Company agreed to allot and issue
a total of 318,500,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each
(with an aggregate nominal value of HK$637,000) to ImmenseTech
Investment Limited (a company beneficially owned by Mr. Qiu
Peiyuan, an independent third party), at a price of HK$0.157
per share under the general mandate granted to the Directors.
The closing price as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 4
June 2020, being the date of the subscription agreement, was
HK$0.191 per share. The allotment and issue of the 318,500,000
new shares was completed on 15 June 2020 and raised net
proceeds of approximately HK$50.0 million (with a net price of
approximately HK$0.157 per share), which had been fully used for
the subscription of B&O rights shares in June 2020 as intended.
Further details of the above subscription were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 4, 15 and 24 June 2020
respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 March 2021, the net proceeds from the placing of the
Company’s new shares completed on 15 June 2020 had been fully
utilised as follows:

RZE-_—F=ZA=+—H RZE_ZTFAX
H+£Eﬁ&@5%$Aﬂ%ﬁﬂx@ZFﬂ%%ﬁ
FHEEEHIHBOT

Planned

use of net

proceeds as
disclosed Net
in the proceeds
announcement unutilised
dated 4 June Net as at
2020 proceeds 31 March
Ei Eﬁi‘% utilised in 2021
—E-F June 2020 »
ANAWAZ i —E-—F
AHEEZ —ECEF =A=+—H
FIBREFE RNAEHA KEARB
TEAE FEBREFRE RIEFE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$’ million
BEATT BEET BEET

Subscription of RIEBOMH IR

the B&O Rights Shares 50 50 -
Total 4= 50 50 -

On 2 July 2020, the Company entered into another subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) under which the
Company agreed to allot and issue a total of 674,000,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each (with an aggregate nominal
value of HK$1,348,000) to Mr. Wang Qiang (the “Subscriber”)
(a shareholder of the Company holding less than 5% of the
equity interest of the Company as at the date of the subscription
agreement), at a price of HK$0.20 per share under the general
mandate granted to the Directors. On 25 September 2020, as the
Subscriber was unable to arrange sufficient funds to settle the full
amount of the Subscription Price (as defined in the announcement
of the Company dated 2 July 2020) due to the adverse impact of
COVID-19 pandemic, the Company and the Subscriber agreed
to terminate the Subscription Agreement.
Subscription did not proceed and no new Shares were issued

Accordingly, the

under the Subscription (as defined in the announcement of
the Company dated 2 July 2020). Further details of the above
transaction were set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 2 July 2020 and 25 September 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Issuance of convertible bonds under general mandate and
use of proceeds from the issuance of convertible bonds

On 25 January 2021, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with three subscribers, pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to issue, and the subscribers had
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, the convertible bonds with
aggregate principal of HK$100.0 million (the “CBs”) convertible
into 400,000,000 ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.25 per share
(subject to adjustment). The CBs bore zero coupon interest. The
Company planned to utilise approximately HK$90.0 million out of
the net proceeds of the CBs for development of its money lending
business and the remaining for general working capital. The
issuance of the CBs had been duly completed and the Company
had received net proceeds of approximately HK$99.85 million from
the CBs’ subscribers. Further details of the above transaction were
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 25 January, 1
February, 4 and 22 March 2021.

In March 2021, two of the CBs holders converted the CBs of an
aggregate principal amount of HK$90,000,000 into 360,000,000
ordinary shares. As at 31 March 2021, there remained unconverted
CBs with principal amount of HK$10,000,000 and the CBs will
mature on 8 February 2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 March 2021, the net proceeds from the issuance of CBs W-_Z-_—F®=A=+—H WN-_ZT-_—F=
completed on 9 March 2021 had been utilised as follows: ANBERETIBRES 2SS REFE
EEAMT:
Planned use
of net
proceeds as  Net proceeds
disclosed utilized
in the during the  Net proceeds
announcement financial year unutilized  Net proceeds  Net proceeds
dated ended as at utilized in unutilized
25 January 31 March 31 March April and as at
2021 2021 2021 May 2021 31 May 2021
RfA
—E--f REZ i R i
-A-tEAZ —BC-% —B--F —E--F —B--F
MifB2 ZA=t-HL ZR=t-H MEREAR EAR=t-H
FEREFE EEEHA KBAME REELE RBARE
GtERE  REREFE REFE REFE REFE
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HKS$'million HK$'million
BEET  EEAT  AEAT  AEAT  AEAR
Development of money lending business ~ ZEHE £ 0 90 = = =
General working capital —REEER 10 3 7 7 -
100 93 7 7 -
RECENT DEVELOPMENT AND PROSPECT THBRRAIS

The vaccination rollouts have eased the spread of COVID-19
pandemic globally. Benefiting from the effective measures of
controlling the COVID-19 pandemic in the Mainland China, the
financial and operational activities of the Group had been picking
up to a healthy status during the financial year ended 31 March

2021.

The Group’s luxury car sales are stable since the market demand
has been improving during the current financial period, while the
global shortage of semiconductors remains a threat to the supply

of automobiles by the automakers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Regarding the Group’s non-auto dealerships segment, the demand
for products of B&O remains strong. Similar to the situation of the
auto-dealerships segment, the shortage of semiconductors may
cause a threat to the supply of the products. Regarding the non-
auto dealerships segment, we are still positive about the prospect
in respect of our various branded products, while we continue to
destock our watch, jewellery and fine wines.

For other segments, we have resumed our film investments during
the outbreak of the COVID-19. However, we expect that such
segment will not bring substantial contribution to the Group in the
upcoming financial year.

Regarding the property management business, we would like to
report that the Profit Guarantees (as defined in the announcement
of the Company dated 25 June 2018) by the Vendor (as defined
in the announcement of the Company dated 25 June 2018) had
been fulfilled during the year ended 31 March 2021. Nevertheless,
looking ahead, the property management business is still facing
challenges under the COVID-19 pandemic circumstances.

For money lending business as a new principal business activity,
the Group will adopt a prudent approach and will not increase the
investment amount in the upcoming financial year.

In conclusion, even though our sound cash position as well as low
gearing are expected to prevail in the near future, we will continue
to adopt a prudent approach in operating our various segments in
the upcoming financial year.
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Report of the Directors

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in dealerships of luxury goods and
automobiles and provision of after-sales services, property
management services, property rental services, film related
business including development and investment in fiims and
television program and money lending business. The Group’s
operations are mainly based in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business, including the Group’s
segmental analysis, the important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of 31 March 2021 and the likely future
developments, is set out in the sections headed “the Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
Annual Report.

Details about the principal risks and uncertainties that the Group
is facing, are set out in the section headed “Risk Management and
Internal Controls” of the Corporate Governance Report contained in
this Annual Report.

Details about the Group’s financial risk management are set out in
note 41 to the financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: nil) while no
interim dividend (2020: nil) had been distributed during the year
as the Group would like to reserve more capital to operate and
develop the existing businesses.
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 7 October 2002 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees.
The Scheme was expired on 6 October 2012.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 20 August 2012, the Company’s
new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was adopted and
the Scheme was terminated. The New Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a term of ten years commencing on 20 August 2012.
There was approximately 1 year remaining life of the New Scheme.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the New Scheme as at 31 March 2020 was
297,982,885 shares (including options for nil share that have been
granted but not yet lapsed or exercised), representing 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of approval of
the adoption of the New Scheme initially.

The Company operates the New Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s business. Eligible
participants of the New Scheme include any director (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive director),
any employee, or any consultant, advisor, customer and business
associates.

There was no outstanding share to be issued under the New
Scheme as at 31 March 2021 (as at 31 March 2020: nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the largest and the top five
suppliers of the Group accounted for 44.7% and 99.4% of the
Group’s total purchases respectively. The largest and the top
five customers of the Group accounted for less than 10% of the
Group’s total revenue.
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Report of the Directors

At no time during the year under review did a Director, an associate
of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had a beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five
largest suppliers or customers for this financial year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 135 and 136 of this Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of this financial year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during this financial year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 142 and 143 and note 35
to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In addition to retained profits, under the Bermuda Companies Act,
the contributed surplus account of the Company is also available
for distribution to its shareholders. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution, out of contributed
surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium accounts.

In the opinion of the Directors, the distributable reserve accounts
comprise the reserves of the Company of approximately
HK$359,173,000 in surplus (2020: HK$365,527,000 in surplus).
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during this financial year in the share
capital of the Company are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Convertible bonds of the Company with principal amount of
HK$10,000,000, HK$55,000,000 and HK$35,000,000 were issued
on 9 February, 23 February and 9 March 2021 respectively for cash
which were convertible into shares of the Company at a price of
HK$0.25 per share (subject to adjustment) and should be matured
on the third anniversary of the date of issue of such convertible
bonds. Convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$90,000,000 were converted into 360,000,000 ordinary shares
during the financial year. As at 31 March 2021, the convertible
bonds with a principal amount of HK$10,000,000 remains
unconverted and should be matured on 8 February 2024.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2021 are set
out in note 31 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the past five financial years is
set out on page 288 of this Annual Report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during this financial year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during this financial year and up to
the date of this Annual Report were as follow:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang
Mr. Ma Chao (appointed with effect from 16 June 2020)

Mr. Zhao Xiaodong
Mr. Zhu Lei

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Qi Jian Wei
Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong

Mr. Gao Yu (as non-executive Director until 10 October 2020;
re-designated as independent non-executive Director with
effect from 10 October 2020)

Mr. Liu Honggiang (as non-executive Director until
13 November 2020; re-designated as independent
non-executive Director with effect from 13 November 2020)

Mr. Liu Xiaoyi (appointed with effect from 22 October 2020)

Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor
(resigned with effect from 19 March 2021)

In accordance with bye-law no. 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of Company after his appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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The term of office of each Independent Non-executive Director is
for the period of two years and renewable for one year up to his
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with bye-law no.86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Liu Xiaoyi was appointed as the Independent Non-executive
Director after the last general meeting and will hold office until
the next annual general meeting of the Company. Mr. Liu Xiaoyi
will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

In accordance with code provision A.4.3 of Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), serving more than 9 years could be relevant
to the determination of a Non-executive Director’s independence. If
an Independent Non-executive Director serves more than 9 years,
his further appointment should be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders. The papers to shareholders
accompanying that resolution should include the reasons why the
board believes he is still independent and should be re-elected.

In accordance with bye-law no. 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Zhao Xiaodong, Mr. Qi Jian Wei and Mr. Gao Yu will retire by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. In
addition, as Mr. Gao Yu has served the Company for more than
nine years, his appointment will be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 73 to 82 of this Annual Report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Except as disclosed in note 38 to and elsewhere in the financial
statements, there are no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of this
financial year or at any time during this financial year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the Company disclosed
that no Directors of the Company is considered to have interests
in any business which is likely to compete directly or indirectly with
the business of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during this financial year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the bye-law no. 168(1) of the Company’s Bye-Laws,
the Directors, secretary or other officers of the Company shall
be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all losses or damages which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office,
or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the
Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and/or the chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were required
to be (i) notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which he was taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (i) as recorded in the register required to be
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or
(i) as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

Long position in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company

EERAQAREABEE 2R
-HEROEES 2ERS

RZBZ—F=A=1T—H ARAIZEERK
SEERRITERABRARE REREEE (E
ERBHFRHEGROIEXVES) 2 ixh - HER
i REFHEE (VRIEREZ S LG EXV
HETREDHBEMNG AR RBEBEER
SMBRAG ([BRF]) 2z XE (B
FEIRBFEH LB GO B B UEHE 1Esk
RIEBEB 2R RXE) (i) R FIREE
HFREE GNP EISHEETFE 2 ERMATE
B2 e FORR (iR IE £ AR BIMT 8+
HEMBOTAZETETESF X HNEAESTE
ABITHEG AR A R R P 2 #E s ROR B IR

ﬁ

REQXARG HEAROREZZHFR

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of director Capacity shares held interest
EEnH g7 BEROEAE REzBYESH
(Note 1)
(Ft5E1)
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang Beneficial owner 10,640,000 0.19%
BT 5 EmlA A
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.02%
ZERIELEE EmBAEA
Mr. Liu Honggiang Beneficial owner 296,000 0.01%
Bz EE EmfEB A
Note: Bt 5 -

(1)  The denominator used is 5,471,953,447 shares, being the total
number of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March 2021.

(1)  FTASER5,471,953,4478 Mk 1p - BN =F
T -A=tHERRAZEBTRMNE
2o
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SHARE OPTIONS

The New Scheme was adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed at the general meeting of the Company held on 20 August
2012.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2021, the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company:

B

Mt DRBERARAR_TE——FNA -+
HETZIRRAE RS2 ERRFERRMN -

FERRREQTRG RAEBER
132 B 5

R-ZFB-_—F=A=1+—0 BAXFAREZ
7 LR GBIF 336K 2 MEFEZ B
T BARREZHZRSTHRAEIN THIRK
REMGEERARARENAR AR RAERR
Dz HREEE XA

Long position or short position in the shares REBZHEERKXR
Approximate
Number percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity of shares Interest
BREEEB =gy i3 & B ERBNES
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(FFEE1) (Fff5E2)
Mr. Sze Ching Lau Beneficial owner 683,200,000 (L) 12.49%
=i EmlA A
Mr. Lam Chi Kin Beneficial owner 354,720,000 (L) 6.48%
MEEB L& EmERAA
Ms. Tam Cho Wai Josephine Beneficial owner 340,000,000 (L) 6.21%
BHEHELZ T EmlA A
Mr. Qiu Peiyuan (Note 3) Interested of 318,500,000 (L) 5.82%
Mom e £ (MHEE3) controlled corporation
EHRDEE R
Pro Honor Investment Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 318,500,000 (L) 5.82%
Pro Honor Investment Limited (Fis3) Ezm#HAE A
Notes: Bt 5 -

(1) The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” in such Shares and
the letter “S” denotes a person’s “short position” in such Shares.

(2) The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of
5,471,953,447 Shares in issue as at 31 March 2021.
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(3) 318,500,000 Shares are held by Pro Honor Investment Limited which
is wholly-owned by Mr. Qiu Peiyuan. Accordingly, Mr. Qiu Peiyuan was
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Pro Honor Investment
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
(including any interests in options in respect of such capital), which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who was directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options”
above, at no time during this financial year was the Company,
fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2021, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any listed
securities of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

(8 318,500,000 M MBEPro Honor
Investment Limited# & ' M Pro Honor
Investment Limited 8l g ()it 58 4 & &
Ao Bt U it 5 A AR YERPro Honor
Investment Limited¥$ 8 2 R D H o
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee of the Company on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The Board has the general power of determining the Directors’
remuneration, subject to authorization of the shareholders of
the Company at the annual general meeting each year. The
emoluments of the executive Directors are subject to review by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company, and their remuneration
is determined with reference to the Directors’ qualifications,
experience, duties, responsibilities, performance, results of the
Group and comparable market information.

The Company has adopted the New Scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible participants.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the completeness
and accuracy of disclosures of continuing connected transactions
(“CCT") and the Company’s compliance with the Listing Rules in
respect of such transactions.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company had
reviewed all CCT as shown on pages 36 to 42 and confirmed in
this Annual Report and accounts that the transactions have been
entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and
(3) according to the relevant agreements governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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BDO Limited, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. BDO Limited has issued an
unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules and confirmed that:

(@) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that
the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the board of the Company;

(b) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

(¢) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the relevant annual caps as set by the Company.
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Report of the Directors

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

38

Showroom Rental Agreement

An agreement (the “Showroom Rental Agreement”) entered
between Tianjin Xin Chang Tai Fu Trading Development
Limited (“TJXC”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Mr. Kei Kin Hung (“Mr. Kei”), who is the
younger brother of Mr. Qi Jian Wei, a Non-executive Director
of the Company and also is the brother-in-law of Mr. Zhu Lei,
an executive Director of the Company, dated 31 December
2010 and in relation to rentals of showroom incurred
from the operations of the Group’s luxury cars dealership
business, of a portion of showroom having a gross floor area
of approximately 365 square meters (“sq.m.”) at Zeng No.
4, No. 162 Zhang Zi Zhong Road, Heping District, Tianjin,
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

A supplemental agreement entered between TJXC and Mr.
Kei dated 30 June 2011 for extension of the duration of
Showroom Rental Agreement from its original terms of three
years from 1 January 2011 inclusive to ten years from 1
January 2011 inclusive.

An agreement was entered into between Mr. Kei, TJIXC and
Sparkle Roll Retail Net Development Limited (“SRRND”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, dated 1
July 2011 pursuant to which the tenant of the Showroom
Rental Agreement was transferred from TJXC to SRRND, with
the same agreement terms.

An agreement was entered into between SRRND and
Sparkle Roll (France) Limited (“SRF”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, dated 31 December
2019 pursuant to which the tenant of the Showroom Rental
Agreement was transferred from SRRND to SRF with the
same agreement terms.

The agreement was expired on 31 December 2020.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B &EEER AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 43k

ARAE BB EFAARLREBBA R
SHERAT

REHES R

AAFAZREENBRAREEESRE
B2RRERQA([REFE])EE
gt ([BREE] ARABFERTE
EEEBREEZRBRARFNTES
REREZHRRIFILAHA-T—F
F+-A=t+—BzH# ([REHAES
) ATEREELRPEARKLN
B ([HE ) REWMFREKE D162
FIBAF R ARERETENHEKE
EmMELCERE (RES 2EEEE
TBHI365F 1K) o

RREEEEFERETVYAR/A T ——
FRA=THZMAGZ LiSRER
EnBEFNRRIT 2B _T——%—A
—REAH=F (BEAERMR)ERE
B-T——5—-A-HERHT+F(E
BEEMX) -

BERE REEERRKTEREER
BERAR(IBREBERRE] ~A2AH
E2EMBRAR A ZEHR T ——
FLtA-BzWHE Bl REEER
BLHEHFHRZEEEBERRTER
A% AR IR EAR TR

RRTERGERRK CEE) AR AR
(MBFEEE] ARRAHEEEZENB L
BRIV ARA-_E-NF+-_HA="1—
Bz Bt REHAEBE<EF A
REZEBRBEERIOEE - BH K
AR

ZHBER_B_FF+-_HA=1+—H
B



EEEWRE
Report of the Directors

Tianjin Leasing Agreement |

An agreement (the “Tianjin Leasing Agreement I”) entered
between Tianjin Heng Ying Tai Fu Trading Development
Limited (“TJHY”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Mr. Kei dated 30 June 2011 in relation
to rentals of showroom incurred from the operations of the
Group’s luxury cars dealership business, of a portion of
showroom having a gross floor area of approximately 366.13
sg.m. at Zeng No. 2 and Zeng No. 3, No. 162 Zhang Zi
Zhong Road, Heping District, Tianjin, the PRC.

An agreement was entered into between Mr. Kei, TUHY and
SRRND, dated 6 July 2011 pursuant to which the tenant of
the Tianjin Leasing Agreement | was transferred from TJHY to
SRRND, with the same agreement terms.

An agreement was entered into between SRRND and SRF,
dated 31 December 2019 pursuant to which the tenant of the
Tianjin Leasing Agreement | was transferred from SRRND to
SRF, with the same agreement terms.

An agreement was entered into between Mr. Kei, TJHY
and SRF, dated 17 December 2020 pursuant to which the
Tianjin Leasing Agreement | was terminated with effect from
31 December 2020. There was no compensation required
according to the mutual agreement.

Beijing Leasing Agreement IV

An agreement (the “Beijing Leasing Agreement IV”) entered
between Beijing De Te Motors Trading Limited (“BJDT”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Mr. Kei
dated 30 June 2011 in relation to office rentals incurred from
the operations of the Group’s business in the distribution of
luxury goods, of a portion of office having a gross floor area
of approximately 1,280 sqg.m. at of Level 3 of Tower A and
portion of Level 7 of Tower B, International Wonderland, 40
Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li Tun, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the
PRC.
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40

An agreement was entered into between Mr. Kei, BJDT and
SRRND, dated 6 July 2011 pursuant to which the tenant of
the Beijing Leasing Agreement IV was transferred from BJDT
to SRRND, with the same agreement terms.

On 6 March 2018, the Group entered into an acquisition
agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”) with Mr. Kei and
Beijing Wenfu Hengye Technology Development Co., Limited
(“Beijing Wenfu Hengye”), an entity wholly-owned by Mr.
Kei, the Group had conditionally agreed to purchase the
entire equity interest in Beijing Wenfu Hengye pursuant the
Acquisition Agreement, and this acquisition was completed
on 31 August 2018 (the “Completion Date”). Under the
Acquisition Agreement, the rental under Beijing Leasing
Agreement |V in relation to Tower A, International Wonderland
No. 40 Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li Tun, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, the PRC are ceased. Only the office rentals in relation
to portion of office having a gross floor area of approximately
310 sq.m. at Level 7 of Tower B, International Wonderland,
40 Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li Tun, Chaoyang District, Beijing,
the PRC should be still considered as continuing connected
transactions.

An agreement was entered into between SRRND and SRF,
dated 31 December 2019 pursuant to which the tenant of the
Beijing Leasing Agreement IV was transferred from SRRND to
SRF, with the same agreement terms.
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Beijing Leasing Agreement V

An agreement (the “Beijing Leasing Agreement V”) entered
between SRRND and Mr. Kei dated 26 June 2013 in relation
to rentals of showroom incurred from the operations of the
Group’s luxury automobile business, of a portion of showroom
having a gross floor area of approximately 1,429.2 sqg.m.
at of portions of Levels 1 and 2 of Tower B, International
Wonderland, 40 Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li Tun, Chaoyang
District, Beijing, the PRC.

An agreement was entered into between SRRND and SRF,
dated 31 December 2019 pursuant to which the tenant of the
Beijing Leasing Agreement V was transferred from SRRND to
SRF, with the same agreement terms.

Beijing Leasing Agreement VI

An agreement (the “Beijing Leasing Agreement VI”) entered
between SRRND and Mr. Kei dated 26 June 2013 in relation
to office rentals incurred from the operations of the Group’s
business in the distribution of luxury goods, of a portion of
office having a gross floor area of approximately 840 sqg.m. at
portions of Level 3 of Tower B, International Wonderland, 40
Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li Tun, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the
PRC.

An agreement was entered into between SRRND and SRF,
dated 31 December 2019 pursuant to which the tenant of the
Beijing Leasing Agreement VI was transferred from SRRND to
SRF, with the same agreement terms.
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LIST OF DISCLOSED CONTINUING AEEHEHBEALIT Y ZETH
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS ENTERED INTO EBERFHEBEXZ 2%&k
BY THE GROUP WITH CONNECTED PERSONS

Annual Cap
for the
year ended Rent paid for the year
31 March 2021 ended 31 March 2021
Bz
—EZ-F
=R=t+—H
EFEEZ BE-Z2--=ZA=+—H
FELR LFEEZzEMAEE
Equivalent to
RMB’000 RMB’000 HK$’000

AR T T ARBT T TELEE

1. Rentals of showroom in relation to the EHEREME N
Showroom Rental Agreement EEfAE 1,980 1,980 2,208

2. Rentals of showroom in relation to the BERREZREHHIZ
Tianjin Leasing Agreement | EEfAE 3,000 2,250 2,510

3. Office rentals in relation to the Beijing BRIt RBRERENVY
Leasing Agreement IV RAERE 4,560 1,080 1,203

4. Rentals of showroom in relation to the BERILRREGREVY
Beijing Leasing Agreement V EBEAS 13,200 13,200 14,709

5. Office rentals in relation to the Beijing BRIt RBRERREVIZ

Leasing Agreement VI RAERE 3,360 3,360 3,744
Total k] 26,100 21,870 24,374
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT EHARERE

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout ZAARREBEE-_ZTZ-—F=A=+—HIF
the year ended 31 March 2021. EA—BHRBEH LI ARFHRE
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AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 was
audited by BDO Limited (“BDO”). There has been no change of
auditor in the preceding year. A resolution will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint
BDO as auditor of the Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
DEVELOPMENT

The Group recognises the importance of environmental protection
and has adopted relevant measures for environmental protection
in order to ensure the compliance by the Group of the prevailing
environmental protection laws and regulations. Details of the
environmental policies and performance of the Group are set out in
the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
on pages 83 to 127 in this Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and the operations of the Group are mainly carried
out by its subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the Mainland China. The
operations of the Group should comply with relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong and the Mainland China. During the year
ended 31 March 2021, the Group has complied with all the relevant
laws and regulations in Hong Kong, and the Mainland China.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company must
appoint independent non-executive directors representing at least
one-third of the Board. Upon the appointment of Mr. Ma Chao as
an executive Director on 16 June 2020, the number of independent
non-executive Directors falls below the minimum number
requirement under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.
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Rule 3.11 of the Listing Rules stipulates that the Company shall
appoint a sufficient number of independent non-executive Directors
to meet the minimum number requirement within three months
after failing to meet the requirement (the “Grace Period”). An
application for a waiver for strict compliance with the Grace Period
was made to Stock Exchange which was granted to the Company
to extend the time to comply with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
from 16 September 2020 to 15 October 2020, subject to the
disclosure of the waiver (including details and reasons) by way of
an announcement, which was published by the Company on 25
September 2020.

Following the re-designation of Mr. Gao Yu (“Mr. Gao”) as an
independent non-executive Director on 10 October 2020, the
Company has complied with the minimum number requirement in
respect of the independent non-executive Directors under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules.

As confirmed by Mr. Gao, he satisfies the independence guidelines
as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules except Rule 3.13(7)
as he has been appointed as a non-executive Director with the
Company for more than nine years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of the opinion that the Company had adopted, applied
and complied with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2021 except
for the provision A.1.1 of the Code during this financial year and
deviation from provision A.2.1 of the Code since 1 January 2018.

Details of the corporate governance of the Group are set out in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 46 to 72
in this Annual Report.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company is
scheduled to be held at 4:30 p.m. on 21 September 2021 at
Regus, Conference Centre, 35/F, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong and a notice of annual general meeting will be
published and despatched in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 16
September 2021 Thursday to 21 September 2021 Tuesday (both
days inclusive) during which period, no transfer of the shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
all share transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 15 September 2021
Wednesday.

On behalf of the Board

Zheng Hao Jiang
Co-Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 June 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance. The Board agrees that corporate
governance practices are increasingly important for maintaining
and promoting investor confidence. Corporate governance
requirements keep changing, therefore the Board reviews its
corporate governance practices from time to time to ensure that
all practices can be met with legal and statutory requirements.
Throughout the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group has adopted
the principles and code provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Company has been
in compliance with the Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2021 except for the deviation from provision A.2.1 of the Code
since 1 January 2018.

According to provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang is
the chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from 1 January 2018 and the Co-Chairman
of the Board (the “Co-Chairman”) with effect from 8 July 2020,
responsible for overall strategic development, project management
and client management of the Group. Mr. Ma Chao, an executive
Director, was appointed as a Co-Chairman with effect from 8
July 2020. The Board believes that vesting of the roles of both
Co-Chairman and chief executive officer in the same person has
the benefit of ensuring consistent leading within the Group and will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively; and considers that such arrangement will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and
the management and that the Company has sufficient internal
controls to provide checks and balances on the functions of the
Co-Chairman and the chief executive officer. Nevertheless, the
Board will review such arrangement from time to time in light of the
prevailing circumstances.
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Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company must
appoint independent non-executive directors representing at least
one-third of the Board. Upon the appointment of Mr. Ma Chao as
an executive Director on 16 June 2020, the number of independent
non-executive Directors falls below the minimum number
requirement under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Rule 3.11 of the Listing Rules stipulates that the Company shall
appoint a sufficient number of independent non-executive Directors
to meet the minimum number requirement within three months
after failing to meet the requirement (the “Grace Period”). An
application for a waiver for strict compliance with the Grace Period
was made to Stock Exchange which was granted to the Company
to extend the time to comply with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
from 16 September 2020 to 15 October 2020, subject to the
disclosure of the waiver (including details and reasons) by way of
an announcement, which was published by the Company on 25
September 2020.

Following the re-designation of Mr. Gao Yu (“Mr. Gao”) as an
independent non-executive Director on 10 October 2020, the
Company has complied with the minimum number requirement in
respect of the independent non-executive Directors under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules.

As confirmed by Mr. Gao, he satisfies the independence guidelines
as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules except Rule 3.13(7)
as he has been appointed as a non-executive Director with the
Company for more than nine years.
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The Board considered the following factors and is of the view that

such long relationship of Mr. Gao with the Company will not affect

his independence:

(@)

48

on 30 September 2010, Mr. Gao, as a nominee of MSPEA
Luxury Holding B.V. (“MSPEA”),
indirectly controlled by Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia

a limited liability company

lll, L.P. and a substantial shareholder of the Company from
24 September 2010, was appointed as a non-executive
Director. MSPEA disposed of all its interests in the Company
in December 2013. Since such disposal, Mr. Gao ceased to
represent the interests of MSPEA and sits on the Board solely
in his own personal capacity;

Mr. Gao attended the Board meetings and contributed his
overall guidance towards the matters discussed at the Board
meetings based on his knowledge and experience, particularly
in financial, investment and corporate governance matters;

Mr. Gao has not had any executive or day-to-day
management role or functions in the Company or any member
of the Group since his appointment as the non-executive
Director;

Mr. Gao does not hold any interests in the Company or any
member of the Group;

after the exit of MSPEA, Mr. Gao is independent of any
connected person (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) of
the Company;

apart from the signing of a letter of appointment with the
Company, Mr. Gao has not been under the employment of any
member of the Group; and

Mr. Gao satisfies the independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules except Rule 3.13(7).
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The nomination committee of the Company comprising all
independent non-executive Directors before the re-designation
of Mr. Gao (the “Nomination Committee”) had also made
assessment on Mr. Gao and considers that Mr. Gao’s non-
executive role in the Company has no impact on his independence
and Mr. Gao possesses the experience, character and integrity to
carry out the duty as an independent non-executive Director.

The Board concurred with the view of the Nomination Committee
and believed that Mr. Gao is eligible to be re-designated as
an independent non-executive Director and he will continue to
contribute effectively to the Board.

Submissions have been made to the Stock Exchange which
has been persuaded that Mr. Gao is independent to act as an
independent non-executive Director based on the information
provided by the Company. For further details of the re-designation
of Mr. Gao as an independent non-executive Director, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 8 October 2020.

To further enhance the corporate governance of the Company by
increasing the portion of the independent non-executive directors
equal to or preferably more than a half of the Board, Mr. Liu
Xiaoyi was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
with effect from 22 October 2020 and Mr. Liu Honggiang was
redesignated as an independent non-executive Director with effect
from 13 November 2020. For further details of the appointment of
Mr. Liu Xiaoyi and the re-deisgnation of Mr. Liu Honggiang, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 21 October
2020 and 13 November 2020 respectively.

In addition, the Audit Committee of the Company, comprising
exclusively Independent Non-executive Directors, is free to
directly communicate with the Company’s external auditors and
independent professional advisers when it considers necessary.
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MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to govern securities
transactions by the Directors. After having made specific enquiry of
all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to
the date of this report.

The Company also adopted the Model Code as guidelines
for its relevant employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information of the Company in respect
of their dealings in securities of the Company. No incident of
noncompliance of the Model Code by the relevant employees was
noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises four Executive, one Non-executive
and five Independent Non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang (as Chairman until 8 July 2020 and
as Co-Chairman with effect from 8 July 2020, and
Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ma Chao (appointed as executive Director with effect from
16 June 2020 and appointed as Co-Chairman with effect from
8 July 2020)
Mr. Zhao Xiaodong (Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Zhu Lei

Non-executive Director

Mr. Qi Jian Wei
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Gao Yu (as non-executive Director until 10 October 2020;
re-designated as independent non-executive Director
with effect from 10 October 2020)
Mr. Liu Honggiang (as non-executive Director until
13 November 2020; re-designated as independent
non-executive Director with effect from 13 November 2020)
Mr. Liu Xiaoyi (appointed with effect from 22 October 2020)

The biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this Annual
Report.

The Company has five Independent Non-executive Directors,
representing more than one-third of the Board.

At least one of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules. All the Independent Non-executive Directors have signed the
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules to confirm their independence.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company must
appoint independent non-executive directors representing at least
one-third of the Board. Upon the appointment of Mr. Ma Chao as
executive Director on 16 June 2020, the number of independent
non-executive Directors falls below the minimum requirement under
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. Following the re-designation of
Mr. Gao as an independent non-executive Director on 10 October
2020, the Company has complied with the minimum number
requirement in respect of the independent non-executive Directors
under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Under the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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The Board’s primary responsibilities are to determine the overall
strategies, monitor and control operating and financial performance
and set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Groups’ strategic objectives. Matters reserved for the Board are
those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policies, material contracts
and major investments. Day-to-day management of the Group’s
business is delegated to the Executive Director or officer in charge
of each department. The functions and power that are so delegated
are reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.
Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Group’s
performance, status and updates on the latest developments in
order to enable the Directors to discharge their duties. All Directors
have recourse to external legal counsel and other professionals for
independent advice at the Group’s expense upon their request.

During the year under review, Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang, Mr. Ma Chao,
Mr. Zhu Lei, Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong and Mr. Liu Honggiang retired
and were re-elected as the Directors at the annual general meeting
held on 28 August 2020.

NON-EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There are currently six Non-executive Directors of five are
independent. The Non-executive Director and each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment for a term of two years and then renewable for one
year. Under the Bye-laws of the Company, every Director, including
the Non-executive and the Independent Non-executive Directors,
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least every three years.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.
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Pursuant to the code provision A.4.3 of the Code, serving
more than 9 years could be relevant to the determination of
a Non-executive Directors’ independence. If an Independent
Non-executive Director serves more than 9 years, his further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to
be approved by shareholders. The circular to shareholders
accompanying that resolution will include the reasons why the
Board believes he is still independent and should be re-elected.

During the year under review, Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong was re-
elected in a separate resolution at the annual general meeting held
on 31 August 2020.

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group and approve business plan. 8 Board
meetings were held in 2020/2021. Individual attendance of each
Director at the Board meetings, the Audit Committee meetings,
Remuneration Committee meetings and the Nomination Committee
meeting during 2020/2021 and the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 31 August 2020 (“2020 AGM”) is set out below:

RIBETRZFRIRXALI EEEIFNITE
EZBEIMR [REESBBOF ] RMER
—fEAZRAGR - FBUIFATESEEC B
FrHEORBERUBIDRAZRTABKE
BREB B ZARR AR GRR ZEK
TREBEEFTERMURRZBATNEE L
ALTREEEZEZREA-
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St RBTZERRBEFAG EABIRE
REBE-

EBRHERBR
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEREEHERY

Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee 2020 AGM
gl 33
Director E=S g2 ENRZEE FMZEEE REZEE RRBEEFAE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang s RE 8/8 N/AT i 2/2 N/AT 8 B 11
Mr. Ma Chao BHEE 6/6 N/AT i A N/AT i N/AT 8 0/1
(appointed with effect from 16 June 2020) (H=—F-FF
NATNAEEEE)
Mr. Zhao Xiaodong HNETE 8/8 N/AT 3 A N/AT 8 N/AT 3 F 0/1
Mr. Zhu Lei KEEHE 8/8 N/ATER 2/2 N/ATE R 01
Non-executive Director HHTEE
Mr. Qi Jian Wei BREEE 8/8 N/AT i A N/AT 38 N/AT i 0/1
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Attendance/Number of Meetings
HERE ERRE
Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee 2020 AGM

gl 33
Director B 28 EREEE FHEEE REZEE RREEAS
Independent Non-executive Directors BUINTEE
Mr. Choy Sze chung, Jojo EEBELE 8/8 2/2 2/2 2/2 11
(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (BEZE2ZE)
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong HEE %4 8/8 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) (i MZ5E£/F)
Mr. Gao Yu SEEE 8/8 0/0 N/ATE A N/AT i 1
(Re-designated as independent (H=F=F
non-executive director with effect from FATAESR /H&%"j
10 October 2020 and appointed as a HHTEE H-F-—F
member of Audit Committee with effect ZHFNAEEZEE
from 19 March 2021) FRERERE)
Mr. Liu Honggiang ARwELE 8/8 N/AT i B N/A i F 0/0 ]
(Re-designated as independent (B=F=FF
non-executive director with effect from F—A+=HEH /H&%"j
13 November 2020 and appointed as a IHTEE H-F-—F
Chairman of Nomination Committee with ZH-FHEEZEE
effect from 20 March 2021) EEZE2TE)
Mr, Liu Xiaoyi BmE ks 44 NATER 00  NATER 0/0
(Appointed as independent non-executive (H=F=F
director with effect from 22 October 2020 FA-F+-HEEEF
and appointed as a member of Remuneration A& Jf HITEE:
Committee with effect from 20 March 2021) @ -F-—%¥=H=-+H
EEZIBHNZSE
%E)
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor E3 0y 717 2/2 2/2 2/2 11
(Resigned as an independent non-executive (1 =F=—4%
director, a member of the Audit Committee = H+ /1 BEGEHL

and the Remuneration Committee and the HHTEE FRZEE
Chairman of the Nomination Committee with ~ R#BZ 5 2% & L{
effect from 19 March 2021) BEZREEFE)

o

Board and committee minutes are recorded in appropriate detail. EE&hEZE8eeRLRHAEEFSE -2
Draft minutes are circulated to Directors for comments within & EMBNERASHZ B A EBEBIRNERS
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open for & E#tH SRBrAIHESER-

\

Directors’ inspection.
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INDUCTION, DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
OF DIRECTORS

Every Board member has received a guidance book on Directors
duties and liabilities upon joining the Group, which also lays down
the guidelines on conduct for the Board and Board committee
members and other key governance issues, including but not
limited to Board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations that they are required to observe during their service
in the Board. The updated guidelines will be provided from time to
time as and when appropriate.

A formal and tailored induction programme will be arranged for
each new Director, which includes a briefing on the Group’s
structure, businesses and governance practices by the senior
management. To seek continuous improvement, the Directors
are encouraged to attend relevant training sessions, particularly
on corporate ethics and integrity matters, risk management, and
relevant new laws and regulations, from time to time.
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To ensure that the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains AEREEZFHEOEESIFHNSELIEHES
informed and relevant and in compliance with code provision A.6.5 Bt AN AESFFE|Z SFEHEXAG.5 A A
of the Code, the Company shall arrange and fund suitable training #BZHNREPESESTABEEIN UERLE
for the Directors to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.  HE&E 2 MLk -ROBEFAN EE22
During the year under review, the Directors participated in the kinds £ A NAERLEZ I

of training as follows:

Director Kind of Training
BEE I EE
Executive Directors HITESE

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang EOE T AB
Mr. Ma Chao B4 AB
Mr. Zhao Xiaodong MR E AB
Mr. Zhu Lei KEFLE A.B
Non-executive Director HEWTEE

Mr. Qi Jian Wei ERESE A.B
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHNTEE

Mr. Choy Sze chung, Jojo =RIRESE AB
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong B & A& AB
Mr. Gao Yu SYSPates AB
Mr. Liu Honggiang BlIREEE A.B
Mr. Liu Xiaoyi BlER L E AB
A:  Reading materials on legal and regulatory updates. A: BRZEREESRMAER ZEY-

B: Attending training seminar organised by The Hong Kong B: HFEHRELEEZBSEPBENOLTR

Institute of Directors relating to (i) major recent changes to Al EERFABTEIE R Z 5 K& ()
the Listing Rules and CG Code; and (i) inside information HTHRNBEARTEEEE 2 ERRR
disclosure hazards as shown by recent cases 2B -
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Based on the business needs of the Group, the Nomination
Committee has recommended and the Board has adopted the
following measurable objectives:

(i) a prescribed proportion of Board members shall be Non-
executive Directors or Independent Non-executive Directors;

(i) a prescribed proportion of Board members shall have attained
bachelor’s degree or above;

(i) a prescribed proportion of Board members shall have
obtained accounting or other professional qualifications; and

(iv) a prescribed proportion of Board members shall have China
related work experience.

The Nomination Committee shall monitor the implementation of the
board diversity policy and review the progress of its measurable
objectives from time to time. Based on its review, the Nomination
Committee considers that the current Board is well-balanced and
of a diverse mix appropriate for the business development of the
Company.

NOMINATION POLICY

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate.

° Reputation for integrity;

° Accomplishment and experience;

° Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;
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° Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service; and

° In the case of independent non-executive Directors, the
independence of the candidate.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive.

Subject to the provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company, retiring
Directors are eligible for nomination by the Board to stand for re-
election at a general meeting.

Proposed candidate will be asked to submit his/her necessary
personal information in a prescribed form, together with his/
her written consent to be appointed as a Director and to the
public disclosure of his/her personal data on any documents or
the relevant websites for the purpose of or in relation to his/her
standing for election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to provide
additional information and documents, if considered necessary.

Nomination Procedures

The Secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting of
the Nomination Committee, and invite nominations of candidates
from Board members if any, for consideration by the Nomination
Committee prior to its meeting. The Nomination Committee may
also put forward candidates who are not nominated by Board
members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval. For
proposing candidates to stand for election at a general meeting,
the Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the Board for
its consideration and recommendation.
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Until the issue of the relevant circular to the Company’s
shareholders, the nominated persons shall not assume that they
have been proposed by the Board to stand for election at the
general meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates nominated by
the Board to stand for election at a general meeting, and to invite
nominations from shareholders, a circular will be sent to the
Company’s shareholders. The circular will set out the lodgment
period for the Company’s shareholders to make the nominations.
The names, brief biographies (including qualifications and relevant
experience), independence, proposed remuneration and any other
information, as required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations, of the proposed candidates will be included in the
circular to the Company’s shareholders.

A shareholder of the Company can serve a notice to the Company
Secretary within the lodgement period of its intention to propose
a resolution to elect a certain person as a Director, without
the Board’s recommendation or the Nomination Committee’s
nomination, other than those candidates set out in the circular to
the Company’s shareholders. The particulars of the candidates
so proposed will be sent to all shareholders for information by a
supplementary circular.

A candidate is allowed to withdraw his candidature at any time
before the general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the
Company Secretary.

As there may be more candidates than the vacancies available,
and the simple majority method will be used to determine who shall
be elected as a Director, shareholder’s proposed resolutions shall
therefore take the same form as the resolutions proposed for the
candidates recommended by the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties and has adopted a written guideline on corporate
governance functions in compliance with the Code.

The duties of the Board in respect of corporate governance
functions are summarised as follows:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(i)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

(iv) to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
as set out in the Code and its disclosure requirements in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board reviewed and monitored the training
of the Directors, and the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

During the year, the Board reviewed the terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee of the Board of Director. The revised terms of
references were effective from 1 January 2019.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company established the
Remuneration Committee in March 2005. The principal role of the
Remuneration Committee is to exercise the power of the Board
to determine and review the remuneration package of individual
directors and key executives, including salaries, bonuses and
benefits in kind, considering factors such as time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and key executive, employments
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance
based remuneration so as to align management incentives with
shareholders interests. The Remuneration Committee is also
considering all relevant remuneration data and market conditions
in addition to considering the performance and responsibility of
individual directors and officers by linking their compensation with
performance and will measure it against corporate goals. During
the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved
the remuneration package of the Executive Directors and senior
management.

The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company about its proposals
relating to remuneration of the Executive Directors and have access
to professional advice if it considers necessary. After reviewing
all relevant information, the Remuneration Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board for the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors and two executive Directors. Its present
members are:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong — Chairman
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
Mr. Liu Xiaoyi

Executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang
Mr. Zhu Lei

The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings in 2020/2021
to review and approve directors, and senior management’s
remuneration. The directors fee paid to the Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive Directors are subject to annual review
and approval by the Remuneration Committee. The emoluments of
each of the Directors of the Company for 2020/2021 are set out in
note 12 to the financial statements.

Below is a summary of principal work per formed by the
Remuneration Committee during 2020/2021:

° Review of the remuneration of the Executive Directors and
senior management and approval of the same.

° Review of the remuneration of the Non-executive Directors
(including the Independent Non-executive Directors), with
recommendations to the Board for approval.

° Review the existing share option scheme with recommendations
to the Board for approval.
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The annual remuneration of the members of the current senior
managements of the Group by band is set out below:

Emoluments Band

B & 4 51

HK$NIl to HK$1,000,000

7% 75 21,000,0007% 7T
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
1,000,0015% 7T 22,000,000/ 7T

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 6 October
2008 and currently comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Liu Honggiang (chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo, and Mr. Lam Kwok
Cheong.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board member, assessing the independence of INED; and making
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors in particular the chairman and the chief
executive officer.

AEBRESRERAEZEFHFN T TIMA
I

Number of individuals

AB

REZES®

REAZBEN_ZFTN\F+ANEKIL BA
H=RBUIFNTESTIRRELE (RREER
IR HBRELERMBEEREEMNK-

RAZBEZIERIBRAEHRNESTE L
g KAk (BHEREE - MERER)
EMEREBREESRIEEREZS Ve
HEABERLTESeX B Z@EAL FHE
BIUFATERTZBEL T UWERRRERE
HEEEERER (LERTRE RITHAR)
EITEFHEEENESSRMERRZZ -

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A 63

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3R



B EERRE
Corporate Government Report

The Nomination Committee has adopted written nomination
procedures specifying the process and criteria for selection of
candidates for directorship of the Company. The Nomination
Committee shall, based on criteria such as skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments
of such individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations, identify and recommend
the proposed candidate to the Board for approval of appointment.
The Non-executive Director and all Independent Non-executive
Directors are appointed for a specific term of two years and
renewable for additional one year, and are required to retire
and eligible for reelection at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company in every three years in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings in 2020/2021. Below
is a summary of principal work performed by the Nomination
Committee during 2020/2021:

° Recommendation to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors.

° Review of the structure, size and composition of the Board
and the Board committees.

° Assessment and confirmation of the independence of the
INED according to the criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee in compliance
with the Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process and
internal controls and discussing with the external auditor for the
nature and scope of audit. Written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee were formulated and adopted in March 2005 and
revised in January 2019.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent
Non-executive Director. Its present members are:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo — Chairman
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Gao Yu

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Choy Sze Chung,
Jojo, has appropriate professional qualification in accounting
and extensive experience in accounting and auditing matters.
Senior management and external auditor shall normally attend the
meetings. The Audit Committee held 2 meetings in 2020/2021 with
representatives from the external auditor of the Company, for the
purpose of discharging the aforesaid duties.

Below is a summary of principal work performed by the Audit
Committee during 2020/2021:

° Review of the annual financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2020 and the interim financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended
30 September 2020, with recommendations to the Board for
approval.

° Review reports from the auditors to the Audit Committee.

° Review of the internal controls and the risk management
systems of the Group.
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° Review of the connected transactions (including continuing
connected transactions) carried out during the year.

° Review of the financial budget of the Group.

° Review and make recommendation to the Board on the
reappointment of the auditors.

° Review and approve the remuneration, other terms of
engagement, the nature and scope of the audit and the
reporting obligations of the auditor.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the appointment of the external auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2021
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Each year, the auditors are appointed by resolution at the annual
general meeting of the Company and the Directors are authorised
to fix the remunerations for the auditing services.

The fee paid or payable to our auditors for annual auditing services
for the year ended 31 March 2021 amounted to approximately
HK$2.3 million (2020: HK$2.31 million). Auditing services
include mainly audit of annual financial statements, agreed-upon
procedures on interim financial information and profit guarantee,
review of the continuing connected transactions and the annual
results announcement of the Group. BDO’s affiliated companies
have performed other non-auditing services during the year
with aggregate service fee of approximately HK$0.341 million
(2020: HK$0.446 million). Non-auditing service include mainly
provision of professional services in compliance review, review on
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Group. The
Audit Committee has considered, based on the policy developed
by them in this regard, and made recommendations to the Board
for these non-auditing services conducted by our auditor.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board and the Board
committees by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company
Secretary also plays an essential role in the relationship between
the Company and its shareholders, and facilitates induction and
professional development of directors.

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring that the Board is
fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments and that it has regard to them when making
decisions. The Company Secretary also advises the Directors on
their obligations for disclosure of interests in securities, connected
transactions and inside information and ensures that the standards
and disclosures required by the Listing Rules are observed and,
where required, reflected in the annual reports of the Company.

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The
Company Secretary is appointed by the Board and reports to the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Li Yat Ming, the Financial Controller of the Group, has been
appointed by the Company as the company secretary. He is
also the primary contact person of the Company. For the year
under review, Mr. Li has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge. The
biographical details of Mr. Li are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this Annual
Report.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS
RIGHTS - CONVENING OF GENERAL
MEETING

To promote investor relations and communications, meetings
with fund managers and potential investors are held frequently.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meetings for which at least 21 days, notice is given. The Chairman
and Directors are available to answer questions on the Group’s
businesses at the meetings. An annual general meeting of the
Company shall be held every year within a period of not more than
fifteen (15) months after the holding of the last preceding annual
general meeting.

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene
a general meeting of the Company and put forward agenda items
for consideration by shareholders. Each general meeting, other
than an annual general meeting, shall be called a special general
meeting. Shareholders holding an aggregate of not less than one-
tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company, to require a special general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
(2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one (21) days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisition themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda. Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing
Rules, any vote of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken
by poll. Accordingly, all the resolutions put to vote at the annual
general meetings will be taken by way of poll. The chairman of
the annual general meetings will explain the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll at the commencement of the annual general
meetings.
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After the conclusion of the annual general meetings, the poll results
will be published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full performance
information of the Group to shareholders through the publication
of interim and annual reports. In additional to dispatching circulars,
notices, financial reports to shareholders, addition information is
also available to shareholders from the Group’s website.

A resolution in respect of certain proposed changes to the Bye-
laws of the Company was passed in the 2012 AGM held on 20
August 2012. An updated constitutional document of the Company
was published on 22 August 2012.

DIVIDEND POLICY

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Company may
declare dividend according to the recommendation of the board of
directors of the Company. No dividend shall be paid or distribution
made out of contributed surplus if to do so would render the
Company unable to pay its liabilities as they become due or the
realisable value of its assets would thereby become less than its
liabilities.

The Company may in its full discretion decide not to declare
dividend due to various reasons, including but not limited to
maintaining or adjusting the capital structure and reserving more
capital to capture opportunities, etc.

According to the Bermuda Companies Act, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution, out of contributed
surplus if: (a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or (b) the realisable value of its
assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium accounts.
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SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company or at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary
whose contact details are as follows:

Sparkle Roll Group Limited

Rooms 2028-36, 20th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2299 9902

Fax: (852) 2802 8577

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has an on ongoing responsibility for maintaining the
Group’s system of internal control and for the assessment and
management of risk and reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard
the interests shareholders as a whole, investment to and by the
Company and the Company’s assets. To meet its responsibility,
the Board has entrusted the Audit Committee and appointed
professional internal control consultants whose responsibility is to
assess the risks faced by the Group and review the internal control
systems of the Group, which include the financial, operational
and compliance controls functions. The risk assessment report
will document the major business risks while the internal review
report will provide the factual findings of (i) whether the internal
control procedures, systems and controls of the Group are suitably
designed to achieve their specified control objectives (ii) whether
they have been placed in operation, and are operating effectively;
and (iii) whether the specific controls objectives are achieved during
a specified period from the testing and review.

70 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 43§

BRROESSEHZER

BREANRARBRRAG FMESSHELE
HEREARNEAEREARNEE SR
HERARBEIEE - RaWE CBEERDT
T

BHEEEBR QA

BB BT B30

B E A0 201£2028-36F
B % ¢ (852) 2299 9902
{85 : (852) 2802 8577

R\ B B R A RREE 2

EXeRBERAEBARRZNRPEERE
AT i BB TR B o AR A B RUA R B AR B
BED ARARIMMEHZRERARAER
E-RETRT EFECZAERERES

ERAEEXANEREER e EFGASER
B2 B R A RE 2 ARBEIESE - P
BREME - 2ERAREEREE AR ER
SRR EEBREE - M AEbeE RERIR
HEEEE FWOOAMEEEF HERE
BERERERERBEEZREMR : MRE
EREBEFLEELBBCEE: KiFE
EFEERNARERS 2B EMRABEE
B o



B EERRE
Corporate Government Report

During the year, the Board has conducted review on the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group through
discussion with the Audit Committee on audit findings and control
issue. The internal control review report for the year listed out the
findings of the weaknesses in respect of the relevant cycles and
procedures with recommendations proposed for the Company
to further improve its internal control system. The results of the
review and the risk assessment report have been identified and
appropriate measures have been put in place to manage the
risks. The Board, based on the review of the Audit Committee,
considered that the Group’s internal control system was effective
and the resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the accounting and financial reporting
functions, were adequate for the year under review.

The Company has reviewed the inside information policy from
time to time and kept its content up-to-date. The updated inside
information policy for the handling and dissemination of inside
information has been circulated to the Directors, the senior
management and the relevant employees when they are employed.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Company and that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. It is also the responsibility
of the Directors to ensure the timely publication of the financial
statements of the Company. During the year, the management
has provided sufficient explanation and information to the Board
to enable it to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before it for approval including the updates
on the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance, an
explanation of the basis on which the Company generates or
preserves value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering
the Company’s objectives have been prepared and included in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this Annual Report.
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The Directors confirm that they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board recognises its responsibility to prepare consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view and are in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations (hereafter
collectively referred to as HKFRSs) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently. Judgements and
estimates made are prudent and reasonable. The Group has
changed some of its accounting policies following the adoption of
the new or amended HKFRSs which are relevant to and effective
for the Group’s financial statements for the year. The accounting
policies adopted by the Group are set out in the Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies of the note 4 to the financial
statements. The Directors use their best endeavours to ensure a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects in financial reporting. The
Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

The responsibilities of the auditor with respect to financial reporting
are set out on pages 128 to 134 in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sparkle Roll Group Limited

Zheng Hao Jiang
Co-Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ZHENG HAO JIANG (as Chairman until 8 July 2020 and as Co-
Chairman with effect from 8 July 2020; and Chief Executive Officer)

Aged 54, Mr. Zheng graduated in the Law Department (Economic
Law Speciality) of Peking University in 1990 with a Bachelor degree
in Law. Mr. Zheng has over 21 years’ experience in Beijing in the
areas of equity portfolio management, capital market analysis
management and financial advisory. He is a founding member of
Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association and
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is
currently a General Manager of Lamborghini Beijing of the Group.
Mr. Zheng joined the Group in October 20086.

Mr. Zheng has an interest in such number of shares under Part
XV of the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the
Directors — Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations” of this
annual report.

MA CHAO (appointed as executive Director with effect from
16 June 2020 and appointed as Co-Chairman with effect from
8 July 2020)

Aged 38, Mr. Ma graduated from Beijing Jiaotong University
with a Bachelor of Administration in 2005. Mr. Ma has extensive
experience in finance, investment and merger and acquisition
projects. He is also an executive Director, co-Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of Chong Kin Group Holdings Limited (HK Stock
code: 1609) since January 2021.

Mr. Ma also served as an executive director of Heritage
International Holdings Limited (now known as China Shandong Hi-
Speed Financial Group Limited) whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange with stock code 412, from April
2015 to November 2017. Mr. Ma joined the Group in June 2020.
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ZHAO XIAO DONG (Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating Officer)

Aged 583, Mr. Zhao, graduated in the Information Technology
Department of Beijing University of Chemical Technology in 1990
with a Bachelor degree in Engineering. He has over 18 years
of experience in the areas of wholesale and retail management
of luxury goods in Beijing. Mr. Zhao has been a Member of
Supervisory Board of Cultural Investment Holdings Co., Ltd
(Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code: 600715) since October
2015.

Mr. Zhao was the executive Director, the Deputy Chairman and
the Chief Operating Officer of the Company from September 2008
to December 2015. He had also been a Consultant from January
2016 to 15 April 2018 in respect of the watch and jewellery
business of the Group and has been re-designated as the Chief
Operating Officer of the Group since 16 April 2018.

ZHU LEI

Aged 46, Mr. Zhu obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Russian
from the Department of Foreign Languages and Literatures
of Beijing Normal University in 1998. He has over 18 years of
experience in management and sales of watches and jewelry and
management and operation of golf clubs. Mr. Zhu joined the Group
in May 2011 and has since held several positions in the Group,
including but not limited to the executive director of the marketing
department of our Beijing headquarter, the operating director of
Sparkle Roll Xin Tian Di Commerce Development Limited, the
director of the fine wine business of the Group and the general
manager of Sparkle Roll Online (Beijing) Business Service Limited.
He is currently the General Manager of Sparkle Roll Honour Club
and General Manager of Rolls-Royce Tianjin of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Ql JIAN WEI

Aged 66, Mr. Qi has over 16-year experience in the jewellery
business in China including trading management, development of
distribution channels and production operations. He graduated
from machineries profession of Beijing Open University in 1982.

74 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B &EEER AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 43k

WIR(BIZTERELHEE)

REL3% WAER—NNEFEENIE R
ITARBFAERAGTEREREE HEILREE
TEM - FRILRBEB1SFINLEREZ R
BREEC KB -BLEE T —RFT AR
BXORIERBRMNBRAT ( EEEFR B ATHE
HRAE:600715) < EEEGKE »

BAEBR_TZN\FHLAZ-FT-AFt=
AREARRBIZATES BITERELR
H-WMERN_T—A"F-AE-FT—/\FNO
A+THABEAAEEFERRERB ZER A
BT \FEHA+NBEERER/RLEE
ZEERE -

KE

REAHE KREER —NANFEERILER
MERNBIIEEBEXERMBERE FAXE
TE - HEA18FIN L BB RIHEERUE
NRERELESRAIELIT 2 L5 - RiLE
RZE——FRANALRER BEEALEIL
FARENB TG ER TR ES - At R FT Kb
EMEERBRAFIEELE ASELBE
B ARBHREG (R WERBBRAQA
BEBER -REARALEERRKELSH
KR R B T R RO 4R AR o

FUTES
EEE

BE6eom HAELETR2REXK (BIEE
SFEE RABOHERERERERKEE) T E
BEHRBICFER - NN ZFEXNIR
ERERRBZHRMEE-



EEkEREEAEZERE

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHOY SZE CHUNG, JOJO

Aged 62, Mr. Choy is the Vice Chairman of National Resources
Securities Limited. He has extensive experience in the securities
industry and business management. Mr. Choy obtained Master of
Business Administration Degree from University of Wales, Newport
and Master of Business Law Degree from Monash University.
Mr. Choy is also an independent non-executive director of Luye
Pharma Group Limited (HK stock code: 2186), Zhaojin Mining
Industry Company Limited (HK stock code: 1818) and First Credit
Finance Group Limited (HK stock code: 8215).

Mr. Choy is also the Vice Chairman of the Institute of Securities
Dealers Limited, a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Directors, a fellow member of Institute of Financial Accountants,
a fellow member of the Institute of Compliance Officers, a fellow
member of the Institute of Public Accountants, a member of the
fourth session and the fifth session of the Chief Executive Election
Committee of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (Financial
Services Subsector), a member of the Election Committee of the
12th and 13th National People’s Congress of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, a member of Shantou Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Committee, an honorary president of Shantou
Overseas Friendship Association, an honorary president of Shantou
Overseas Exchange Association, an honorary principal of Chen Po
Sum School, a committee member of Rotary Club Kowloon West
and a director of Federation of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Community
Organizations. Mr. Choy joined the Group in October 2007.

Mr. Choy has an interest in such number of shares under Part
XV of the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the
Directors — Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations” of this
annual report.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A 7

BYFHTES
BEH

BEe2m HAERTHEFERAAEE
F-EREBEFEMAXEETAAREEL
B-BAERAANERRAHIAB 2 THER
RTBURRAT AR 2 BRERB LB -
BEENARERBEEEERAR (FER
% 2186) HAEBERNBR AR (F
BRORIE:1818) RFE—EATHEEAR
RA(BAERMDRE :8215) L BIUIFNITE
=o

ERENBELABEERARBER FR
EX2eEReE REAMUEEAMLE
ERGE ZAARMPEERSE BML
HEHHEERE R BERATHES N
ERFRAETREEEEZESZR (2@
RGR) FERFANTHRET—EERFE+=
EEBEAARKRERZEEKE OWBEMEG
ZRE IBETEIIMEERESR OLEEI
RnmesEeRk RELERBERE N
EABRKBHEESEENFEHBELER
BIBE -BAHERTTLETANMALRE
EXRS

BEERBEFRBME GO EXVE R AF
BIEFERE -EFNARRIRERBEE
2By - AR RESF S ] —E AT E
Z BB B 2

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3R

<]
I



EEkEREEAEZERE

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

LAM KWOK CHEONG

Aged 67, Mr. Lam holds Bachelor of Laws degree from the
University of Hong Kong. He is an independent non-executive
director of Wah Sun Hangbags International Holdings Limited (HK
stock code: 2683) and Convoy Global Holdings Limited (HK stock
code: 1019) which was delisted on 4 May 2021.

Mr. Lam was an independent non-executive director of Southwest
Securities International Securities Limited (HK stock code: 812) and
China Brilliant Global Limited (formerly known as Prosten Health
Holdings Limited) (HK stock code: 8026) until his resignation on
19 September 2016 and 12 February 2018, respectively. He was
also an independent non-executive director of Kaisa Health Group
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Mega Medical Technology
Limited) (HK stock code: 876) from September 2004 to June 2014
and then re-designated as a non-executive director from 20 June
2014 to 30 June 2016.

Mr. Lam is a Justice of the Peace with Bronze Bauhinia Star
(BBS) and a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Mr. Lam is currently a China-appointed
Attesting Officer, Ex-Officio Member of Heung Yee Kuk New
Territories, a member of Buildings Ordinance Appeal Tribunal Panel
and a Civil Celebrant of Marriages. Mr. Lam joined the Group in
October 2007.

76 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ¥R EB AR A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 43k

MEl &

REOTHR MAEERFBEEEKRE
- RAEHFTFREBEBRARRD 7(%\/ax
1931&5)“ 2683) M R IRIRERAR AR (F
BROAK 1019 ER-FE-_—FHAMA
B@Hﬁ)Z%l%‘Hﬂﬁﬁ%‘)

WAL A BREESRMDBERAR (B
BB REE:812) REAZERRERB AR AR (A
BREREERERAR) (BERMDARE:
8026) Z BN IEHITEE HEFDFIN=ZE
—RNEALA+tHAHBE-Z—NF-A+-H
BT A LE o o - fBZEA_jymihﬂi_j
—HFEANAEEERERREBRIZRARA
(AIBEMBZ2REABARART) (BBRKRHG 1Jc
5% 876)25%43F#?Lﬁ§$ HgEN =T —m
fE'E/\)E] +E|E 7 /\E/\ﬂ +E|DJ—_IEE
RIEPITES-

MEERKFHL BERAXFEE BRE
BRRITTHE S F AR - MELER AP E
RAREAN FRABZREAZE BEMIK
Pl AR EEBEKE RIBRER A - LR
EELFTAMAREHE-



EEkEREEAEZERE

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

GAO YU (as non-executive Director until 10 October 2020; re-
designated as independent non-executive Director from 10 October
2020)

Aged 47, Mr. Gao is currently a Managing Director and the Co-
Chief Investment Officer of the Private Credit & Equity Division of
Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, primarily focusing on private equity
investment activities in China. He had also been a non-executive
director of China Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd. (HK stock code:
3818) from July 2007 to May 2013 and has been re-designated
as its independent non-executive director since 24 May 2013.
Mr. Gao is a director of Shandong Buchang Pharmaceuticals Co.,
Ltd. (Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code: 603858) which was
listed on 18 November 2016. He is also a non-executive director of
China Feihe Limited (HK stock code: 6186) which was listed on 13
November 2019 and Home Control International Limited (HK stock
code: 1747) which was listed on 14 November 2019. Mr. Gao is
also an independent director of AMTD International Inc. (a company
listed on New York Stock Exchange on 5 August 2019, NYSE:
HKIB).

Mr. Gao was also a director of Tongkun Group Co., Ltd. (Shanghai
Stock Exchange stock code: 601233) until his resignation on 30
March 2015. He had also been a non-executive director of Belle
International Holdings Ltd (HK stock code: 1880) from August 2006
to August 2014 and was re-designated as its independent non-
executive director from 5 August 2014 to 27 July 2017.

Prior to joining Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, Mr. Gao worked in
Citigroup’s Investment Banking Division in Asia for about five years.
He also worked in Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette’s Debt Capital
Markets Group in New York. Mr. Gao graduated from Stanford
University with a Master’s degree in engineering-economic systems
and operations research as well as from Tsinghua University in
Beijing with dual Bachelor’s degrees in engineering and economics.
Mr. Gao joined the Group in September 2010.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

LIU HONGQIANG (as non-executive Director until 13 November
2020; re-designated as independent non-executive Director from
13 November 2020)

Mr. Liu, aged 40, graduated from the North China University of
Technology with a Bachelor degree in Economic Laws in 2002.
In addition, Mr. Liu obtained a Master of Business Administration
jointly awarded by The School of Economics and Management of
the University of Science and Technology Beijing and University of
Texas at Arlington, and a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration from the University of Texas at Arlington.

Mr. Liu has over 10 years’ experience in the legal and investment
field and is also a qualified lawyer in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). Mr. Liu worked in law firms in the PRC, including
Hogan Lovells International LLP. He founded Higgs Capital Group
Limited and served as the Chief Representative of the Association
of Corporate Counsel Beijing Office and an executive partner of
Songshan Capital Management Company Limited* (&1L & & &
BAERAF). He currently serves as an executive director of 21
Capital Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu joined the Group in February 2020.

Mr. Liu has an interest in such number of shares under Part XV
of the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the
Directors — Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations” of this
annual report.

LIU XIAOYI

Aged 36, Mr. Liu graduated from London South Bank University
with a Bachelor of Arts, majoring in Accounting and Finance. He is
a member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He has extensive experience in accounting, audit and compliance
and was a revenue accountant of a specialist recruiting firm in
Hong Kong and an associate and an assistant manager of a
sizeable audit, tax and advisory firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Liu is
currently an accounting manager of a brokerage house in Hong
Kong. Mr. Liu joined the Group in October 2020.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
LI YAT MING

Aged 41, Mr. Li is the Financial Controller, Company Secretary
and Authorised Representative of the Company and he joined
the Group in July 2009. He has over 11 years of experience in
accounting, auditing, financial management, taxation and company
secretarial fields. Prior to joining the Group, he had served in
an international accounting firm. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Arts
(Honours) in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and a Postgraduate Certificate in Corporate Compliance
from The University of Hong Kong School of Professional and
Continuing Education. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and also is a member of Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute and Hong Kong Investor
Relations Association.

JIA HAI TAO

Aged 53, Mr. Jia graduated from the master’s programme in
business economics ( E ¥ & &2 H %) of the Graduate School of
Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in 1998 and is the General
Manager of Rolls-Royce Beijing of the Group. Mr. Jia has held
various senior management positions since 1998 in the fields of
sales and marketing, and in these positions, he was responsible
for the marketing of computer equipment at KeHai Group* (£H/&
&£ @), consultancy and marketing of life insurance at Sino-US
MetLife Insurance Co., Ltd.* (REKXKEHE AZREKAE) and film
studio marketing at Beijing Sparkle Roll International Film Studio
Management Limited* (it BB EZHEEBR A F]) . Mr. Jia
joined the Group in September 2012 and has served in various
capacities, including deputy general manager of the automobile
dealership division, deputy general manager of Rolls-Royce Beijing,
deputy general manager and general manager of Bentley Beijing of
the Group.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

LIU JING JING

Aged 47, Ms. Liu graduated from the Beijing University of
Technology in 1997 with a Bachelor of Engineering in air -
s EBS H %) and is the Head of
purchasing of the automobile dealership division and deputy

conditioning and cooling ( Z=

general manager of Lamborghini Beijing of the Group. Since 1997,
Ms. Liu had been working in the area of public relations with
Beijing Dongan Group* (L RE L& ® ), Shidu Mall* (& H
&) and Zhongshang Department Store* (FRE B ). She joined
the Bentley Beijing Group in 2001 as assistant to president and
was responsible for handling commercial vehicle orders, vehicle
purchase and liaison with foreign vehicle manufacturers for nearly
11 years. Ms. Liu joined the Group in July 2008 and has served as
assistant to president and purchasing manager of the automobile
dealership division of the Group.

CHEN LING

Aged 42, Mr. Chen graduated from the Beijing Institute of
Technology in 2001 with a Bachelor of Engineering in computer
science and from the University of Wollongong in Australia in 2009
with a Master in Information Technology Management. He is the
General Manager of B&0O PLAY at Balanorm Beo (Beijing) Trading
Development Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, and Head of the
e-commerce division of the Group. Mr. Chen has been engaging,
and has accumulated rich experience, in corporate management
and information technology management since 2010. Mr. Chen
joined the Group in July 2013 and was assistant to president of the
automobile dealership division of the Group and training manager
of B&0O PLAY at Balanorm Beo (Beijing) Trading Development
Limited.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

QU JING

Aged 40, Ms. Qu graduated from the undergraduate programme in
fashion design and performance of the Beijing Institute of Fashion
Technology in 2001 and is the General Manager of Bentley Beijing,
of the Group. Ms. Qu has been engaging in the sale of Bentley
vehicles for various years after graduation and later joined the
Group in June 2010. Prior positions at the Group include Head
of the sales department of the wine division, Beijing Sparkle Roll
Luxury World (Hua Mao) and Rolls-Royce Beijing of the Group. She
has extensive experience in cross-selling of various product lines of
the Group and handling VIP relations.

LEI YUN

Aged 54, Mr. Lei graduated from the undergraduate programme in
decoration (£ & H %) of the Academy of Arts & Design, Tsinghua
University in 1992 and is the General Manager of Bentley Tianjin of
the Group. Mr. Lei has been engaging in public relations planning,
advertising and media and design for over 20 years since 1993 and
has extensive experience in product management and marketing.
Mr. Lei joined the Group in August 2015 and has served deputy
general manager and general manager of Bentley Beijing of the
Group.

CHENG BIN

Aged 48, Ms. Cheng graduated from the Kwantlen Polytechnic
University in Canada in 2008 with a Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting. She also is the Chartered
Professional Accountant, Certified General Accountant (CPA, CGA).
Ms. Cheng currently is the assistant operating director and Head
of the marketing division of Lamborghini Beijing of the Group. She
had served as auditor and financial controller at BDO Canada
and Canada JinBi International Limited* since 2008. She joined
the Group in March 2013 and held the position as the Head of
the watch and jewelry division and the Head of the marketing and
media division of the Group.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

WEN Ql

Aged 45, Mr. Wen graduated from Training School of Beijing
Communist Party Committee with a college degree in economic
management in 2005. He is currently the deputy general manager
and after-sales and maintenance manager of Rolls-Royce Beijing
of the Group. Mr. Wen joined Sparkle Roll Group in May 2011 and
has served several positions in the Group, including the executive
assistant of Beijing headquarter of the Group, deputy manager
and workshop director of branded automobile aftersales service
division, the deputy general manager and sales manager of Bentley
Beijing and the general manager of Bentley Tianjin of the Group.
During the seven years since joining the Group, Mr. Wen has served
in various capacities and possesses professional background
and after-sales maintenance service management experience for
luxury automobiles and sales management experience for Bentley
automobiles.

*

for identification purpose only
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE REPORT

Experiencing the hardship under the COVID-19 pandemic, Sparkle
Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereafter
collectively “the Group”, “we” or “our”) pay most efforts to
maintain the position in the luxury goods dealerships. We make
extra efforts to provide optimal and quality services to attract
customers while reducing our environmental footprint in business
operation to maximise our value-added. We are pleased to publish
our fifth environmental, social and governance (‘ESG”) report (the
“Report”) to show the efforts we made over the year and our
strategic approach in meeting the expectation of our stakeholders,
as well as uplifting the ESG performance of the Group.

Reporting Scope

The Report covers our ESG performance during the period from 1
April 2020 to 31 March 2021 (the “Reporting Period” or “2021”).
By considering the financial importance, our major business
operations in auto dealerships in Beijing and Tianjin, People’s
Republic of China (“PRC” or “China”) are covered, including the
trading of luxury automobiles, related parts and accessories and
provision of after-sale services. The scope remains the same as
that in the ESG Report in 2020.

Reporting Standard

This ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with
the “Comply or Explain” provisions as well as the social key
performance indicators under the “Recommended Disclosures” of
ESG Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“HKEx ESG Reporting Guide”). The Report has been
reviewed and approved by the board of directors (the “Board”) of
the Company.

Opinion and Feedback

Your opinions are important to the Group in driving continuous
improvement on the ESG performance. We welcome and
appreciate your feedback and opinions on our Report content or
format. Please feel free to contact us via email at info@hk970.com.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Maintaining a coherent and genuine relationship with our
stakeholders plays a crucial role in identifying the ESG risks and
opportunities of the Group. Through on-going discussion and
communication with our stakeholders, we can understand their
opinions and expectation towards the performance of the Group,
thereby formulating appropriate management systems, policies and
procedures in response to their needs. Communication channels
include the following:

Types of Stakeholder Group

FoEARER BERE

Investors and Shareholders

REERKRR

Corporate website
YNGIFE R

FOESAREEMTMG

ERMFHDERBRAMEBNZ BERES
R AN & BESGR &&E‘\Eﬁﬁ%ﬁiii‘“

ZAE - RMBEFDERETWLER

AT R MSE%E&Z%?%&E@%'%W
PRI R EREFTRZEEEERS BRME
Fro/BBREBRENTERE:

Communication Channels

Annual General Meeting

BERAFAE

Annual and interim reports

FHREFPHES

Corporate announcements

/'\—J/'\tt

Customers Corporate website

'R NGIE b

Annual and interim reports

FRREHBMRE

Feedback from customers

EPRE&

Employees

’E Bl REE

Training and orientation

Intranet and opinion box

NEEHE & B R A8

Regular meetings and performance review

EHERLRARE

84 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 43§



R -HERERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Types of Stakeholder Group Communication Channels
BFoEangn BRERE

Suppliers and Business Partners Procurement process
HLPER R EK B KRR

Regular communication (e.g. email, meetings, on-site visit etc.)
EHER(PINEE SEH BMWEFDF)

Government Authorities and Regulators  Documented information submission
BASBMAREERE R XM &R
Forums, conferences and workshops

Wi FRLANE

Communities Corporate website

HE NSIFEER
Community participation
frEmem

Media Corporate website

e N aE A

Corporate announcements
NGNS

Interviews and networking platforms
Ak R e
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ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3R I | | |



RE -HE8RERBRS

Our Materiality Assessment Procedures

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BMcEENTERF

Identify and map a list of ESG issues

e In order to identify the material ESG issues to
the Group, we have engaged an independent
consultant to conduct an online survey to collect
stakeholders’ opinions and concerns. Based on
the international and local guidelines including
global reporting initiative standards and HKEx
ESG Reporting Guide, we have identified 27
ESG issues.

WA K BEBESGREE B E

o RBAHAKBEEATE
ESG#&E - 2 R+EB B
EITRLERERE  UWRERD
EZ2ERLET - RRER LA
WIS BREERBEEHRER
KR PTESGHR &S] - B
B pl27 A ESGH & -

Identify stakeholder groups and conduct

stakeholder engagement

e The key stakeholders including the Board,
employees, investors and suppliers were invited
to fill in a survey and give scores to the 27 ESG
issues in accordance with their relevance and
importance to the business operations and
stakeholders.

WABNEANIRETHENES

EEE

e EXg R REELHER
FTIERNERBERHRS
HREXBEERFNE B
Bt kBRI R27EESGH

B -

Prioritise the most material ESG issues

e Based on the rated significance on the
business operations and stakeholders, we
prioritise the ESG issues and plot in the
materiality matrix.

ABREZEZESGEEHERR

e REUHEKEERBNEZE
EHFF D HFIASESGEE Y
ERK - ARBTIREEMERE
fE A o

Review the result for reporting and

performance enhancement

e The result was reviewed and verified by the
management of the Group to continuously

Stage 4
2 9 P& BR

improve our ESG performance in the material
ESG issues. The respective measures in
tackling the material issues are included in the
Report.
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Key Material ESG Issues BB E AESGEE

A
Medium Priority X EZ & High Priority B ZE

5 8

22 @
®

HENEZEEN

o 8
& .0

Significance of Stakeholders

Low Priority B8& Z & Medium Priority X EZ &

>

Significance to the Group’s Business & Operation

HAEEERREBEZEREN
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Environment

RE

1. Air emission

B RHERT

2. Greenhouse gas emission
oz SRS BER

3.  Climate change
RiIxE#

4.  Energy efficiency
&

5. Water and effluents
7K R RE7K

6.  Use of materials
MEHE A

7. Waste management
BEEYER

8.  Environmental compliance
RREH

The significance of the 27 ESG issues relating to environment,
employment conditions, operational practices and community
engagement has been evaluated through the materiality
assessment. According to the matrix table, the Group will
focus on operational practices such as customer satisfaction,
customer service quality and complaints handling, customer
privacy, business ethics, customer health and safety and socio-

Social

Labour rights

LIREM
Labour-management relations
BB BIR

Employee retention

BERES

Diversity and equal opportunity
ZTbETERS
Non-discrimination

FEUR AR

Occupational health and safety
BEXRREZS

Employee training

===l

Employee development

EE %R

Prevention of child labour and
forced labour
By1EE T Kol g5 T

economic compliance. The Group will continue to improve our

ESG performances especially in the above-mentioned aspects in

response to the feedbacks from our stakeholders.
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Employment
=&

19.

Operation
®iE

18.

Customer satisfaction
BEREMER

Customer service quality and
complaints handling
BEFRBERRKRFERE
Customer health and safety
BERERREZSE

Marketing and product and
service labelling compliance
EHARERERBERSH
Intellectual property
G E

Customer privacy and data
protection

B L R &R E
Responsible supply chain
management
BEECHEREER
Business ethics

BEBERE

Socio-economic compliance
HERBEER

Community
#tE

27.

Community investment
HEEE
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HE -RREREK ARESERNEFPHE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

PRODUCT AND SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY

We strive to deal in automobiles with high quality after-sale services
to stand out in the luxury goods market. By strictly monitoring and
carefully inspecting our products, we ensure that our customers
are satisfied with the purchase experience. To facilitate our
product selections and customer services, we establish several
management systems including:

EmRRBEEME

BRBNEDHAEZR WHEaERZER
AR% - BREEEZmmBTHBATL - BIFE
BEEERRFARBRER BREMAIERP
ﬁﬁﬁft\ﬁzzﬁﬁiﬁ%%ﬁ"%BE?@&W?ZFE&

BEREPRE BAXRBZEEEFE £
T

Product Quality and Safety Customer Service
EmBEERZR EFE R

e Procurement Management System

RE I S

e After-sale Service

E &R

e Customer Complain Management

ERIRHERE

Product Quality and Safety

The Group has stringent quality assurance standards on the
luxury automobiles to guarantee the quality of the products, as
well as the health and safety of our customers. New automobiles
purchased from our suppliers are carefully inspected to ensure
that they function properly. Relevant laws and regulations such as
the Regulation Concerning Management of Compulsory Product
Certification of the PRC must be complied by our suppliers to
maintain quality standards. No products sold are subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons. In addition, we obtain a mutual
agreement on the quality checking and satisfactory conditions
of the automobiles prior to car delivery. A pre-delivery inspection
system is adopted to perform functional checking in Tianjin’s
operation and confirmation of “Pre-delivery Inspection Agreement”
must be signed with our customers. Moreover, the after-sale
service standards we provided to the customers are reliable
and responsive. We provide detailed guidelines, management
procedures and requirements to our employees in pursuing high
quality standards and protecting the safety conditions of our
products by all means.

EREERZZR

REEXRBRECBFAEMBEREFZRE R
BEMBEREFPEEEL D - KHEERNE
AZ B EEFARER BREELT- ﬁiﬂaﬂ
ZEEFHVEET (P AN ERREE
BERE) SHEEEEHAURFRERE %
HrEMBMERTEEERIERMEAR D it
A BPIRRZTABRIERE AEmERE R
ARSI RE 2 B ek - RN IR ERBIE S
ERRELERETHERS MR MAESR
E [ R abeiz | BRE - 2 HfIRE
FRHET]EMER 2 ERREELE - RMRIE
BRMHEFMES - EERFRATE  BEEEK
TREZE BEEFEZREERLS
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Furthermore, in protecting the brand marks of the Group and
aiming to ensure the information truthfulness, our marketing
department is responsible for screening out any fraudulent
advertisement and promotional materials.

Quality Customer Services

The Group commits to delivering excellent standard of services
to our customers. We have established a comprehensive Sale
Management System to govern our employees to communicate in a
professional manner and to provide comprehensive and integrated
after-sale services for our customers. To treat our customers with
proficiency and care, clear instructions and responsibilities on
different roles and work-flow of sales services are delivered to the
employees.

The detailed of our sale management system is illustrated in the
table below:

Sale Management
HEERE

BE RREAKEZmETHRRERERZ
Bl R EHBPEEREETAERE
EREEME-

BEEFR®

AEEAGHREPIRE S BRE - BT HIFT
—ErHHERENE REBRENEXRT
NBE URAEFPREHEEMSRE ZERR
B-REXFEZNR EESERREER
MRBELL TIEREZBMERLBE -

TERGARMZHEETEHEFE

Communication in
Professional Manner

AEET BB

The Group requests the frontline employees to greet and receive customer calls
in a passionate and polite manner. We always accept criticism and feedbacks
from the customers with an open mind. At the same time, the employees

will keep track on the condition of the automobiles with friendly reminder on

maintenance on a regular basis. When repair and maintenance are needed,

personal reservations for our customers will be made through phone calls.
AEEBEKAGEEEERZFTURFA  BIMHEEREF - B —RAFREER
EXEPHARRE-BYRF BEEHAGREANERR EERETF EHR

B -GERBRETRER KEBE
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Sale Management

HEEH

Repairing Services

HEE IR TS

Follow-up Services

BRAE AR 75

Comfortable Environment
EFEIRIR

The Group provides detailed procedures in automobile reparation to guide
our technicians to provide professional repairing services for the customers.
If issues have been diagnosed with repairing needs during maintenance
and regular inspection stage, our technicians will examine the automobile
thoroughly and efficiently. Maintenance plan maps out the customised repairing
approaches, costs and time to ease the concern of our customers. After the
repairing work, the automobile will be re-examined to ensure that it function
properly before returning to the customers.

REEBEHFMZ ABRERET EERMABERTPRHZIELERS - A
RENEHRBRERAZRFERE ZHE  RMAZKRMA B EUE A DU izf
EFWM-REFEGEFHREABET L ERLRHE UEBERETFEE - RNEETK
% BEWSEENRN ERXETFAEREFEES-

We will communicate with customers regularly to follow up with the condition
and maintenance of the automobile as well as their feedback on our
performances. The customers have the rights to reject on follow up services
based on their personal preferences.
BMECHETFPER RESHIMRARMREUAREFHEMRRIRE &
FERENEASHERBRERTS -

A clean and welcoming after-sale service centre will be prepared for our
customers. To maintain a hygienic environment, both interior and exterior
facilities will be regularly cleaned and inspected. Beverages will be served to
our customers at the centre to ensure we delivered the best services.
BPHREPEBEEZFHRAZEERB T L BRFREEE  NINKERELE
BB LegREFPRESKE BREMIBRB HETE-
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Customer Complaints Handling

Feedbacks from our customers is the key to continuously
improve our services. To maintain a close relationship and
improve our customers’ satisfaction, the Group implements an
effective complaint handling mechanism. We handle the received
complaints through various communication channels such as
email and telephone with care and ease our customers’ concern
effectively with our integrated complaint handling procedures. By
understanding and supplementing necessary details from further
liaison with the complainants, the case of which is confirmed
and verified will be officially written in record. The complaint
will be transferred to the responsible department promptly to
identify the causes and problems. Solutions will be offered by the
departments to the customers in a timely manner. To follow up with
the complaint, customer opinions on the performance of problem
resolution will be tracked by a customer satisfaction survey. With
the aid of customer complaint record, the root causes of the issues
will be identified and reviewed by the Group so as to improve in our
quality in customer services. In the Reporting Period, we did not
receive material products and service related complaints.

Privacy and Security

The Group highly respects and safeguards the confidentiality of
our customers’ privacy. To maintain a trustful relationship with our
customers, we take our customers’ confidentiality in a serious
manner. We strictly comply the relevant law and regulations
including Law of the PRC on the Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

We establish several measures to protect our customer’s
confidentiality. All customer information is not only encrypted with
multi-layer password in our system, but also can only be accessed
by authorised personnel. As illustrated in the staff handbook, all
employees are not allowed to disclose or transfer any matters
related to customers and employees information, trade secrets
and intellectual property to any third party. The Group will take
immediate disciplinary actions if any violation is discovered.
Furthermore, customers acknowledged fully the appropriate use
of personal data by signing the Customer Personal Information
Privacy Statement while they have full rights to reject any unwanted
uses at their wills. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any breaches of relevant laws and regulations relating to
the privacy matters and confidentiality.

In addition, the automobiles and car components are the valuable
assets to the Group. Monitoring system with security cameras and
fire safety equipment are hence implemented in the carparks and
warehouses to protect our customers and the Group’s property
such as automobiles and car components from any potential
damages.

Supply Chain Management

A long term, stable and reliable relationship with the suppliers is the
key to the sustainable development in our business. We formulate a
supplier procurement management system with complex evaluation
for the selection of supply chains. Criteria including delivery
services, product quality, after-sale services, financial conditions
and appraisal from partners in the industry are considered during
the selection of suppliers. Furthermore, we also consider the
environmental and social performance of our suppliers in the
procurement decisions.

B B2 ERERFPEE BB -FIBERP
BHTBEABMZEZRELZERHBINE - M
BRABHEEEASFR - ETFMilAES
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REMABEBEERERZE R

I RERABRHEGR/AKTEZEESR
E-Rit FESEREEOREEBRELER
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E (Pl sERRERt) X EAEER
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HEREERE
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Environmental procurement management policy
RERBEERER

° Any equipment that may pose environmental impacts and
associated with the manufacturing process should be
validated with reference to their environmental performance,
for example, energy efficiency and biodiversity.

o Relevant documentation will be requested from the
suppliers and assessed with their fulfilment of our
environmental standards during the procurement process.

o Environmental commitment from the suppliers should be
clearly stipulated in the cooperation contract.

o Products listed in the Catalog of Toxic Chemicals Strictly
Restricted in China are prohibited.

o Products with international certifications such as ISO 14001
and ISO 50001 and green labels are prioritized in the
procurement process.

.
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Environmental and social code of conduct (“CoC”)

° We gradually exert our influence on the suppliers to uphold
their environmental and social performance. Our suppliers
should also follow the environmental and social CoC, which
includes our advocacy in 6 ESG-related areas, namely
regulatory compliance, fair trade, child labour and force
labour prohibition, labour benefits, labour rights and anti-
discrimination.
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To create fair and open competition for the suppliers, market
research with at least three suppliers by considering their prices
and product quality such as whether quality management
certificates are attained. For the luxury automobiles and
components, we source from the original factories or authorised
brands to guarantee the quality and safety of our products
and services. The Group also assesses the quality of all the
purchased goods before accepting them into the inventory. For
defective items, return of items and remediation will be arranged
by communicating with the suppliers. In addition, the Group fully
understands the importance of business integrity to a long-term
and trustful relationship with suppliers. As written in the staff
handbook, receiving any form of benefits or gifts from our suppliers
in exchange for confidential business information is strictly
prohibited to all employees.

In the Reporting Period, we had 23 suppliers, of which 95.7% are
from China and 4.3% from United Kingdom.

BUSINESS INTEGRITY

The Group believes that integrity and honesty are important to
maintain a trustful and cooperative relationship with our employees
and stakeholders. Strictly complying with the relevant laws and
regulations including Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC and
the Anti-monopoly Law of the PRC, bribery, fraud and money
laundering are unacceptable to the Group.

High ethical standards reflect in our daily practices and our CoC
in the staff handbook stipulates clear guidelines and examples
of misbehaviours. Our employees are forbidden to accept any
advantages as the inducement to perform their work affairs, or offer
any excessive fees with the aim of personal gain. Further appended
by the policy on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering, it can demonstrates our advocacy on the independence
of the job duties to remain unaffected by any monetary personal
benefits.
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The Group is gradually encouraging upstanding behaviours of our
employees by setting up a whistle-blowing system to reinforce the
governance structure and protect the interests of our stakeholders.
A whistle blowing policy is formulated to establish reporting
channels for our employees for reporting business misconducts.
All our employees are responsible to report any suspected
business misbehaviours and bribery acts. Complainants can file the
suspected cases through emails, telephone or face-to-face. If any
business misconduct is identified and confirmed, the Group will
investigate and take actions promptly. During the Reporting Period,
the Group was not aware of any breaches of relevant laws and
there was no case relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering by the Group and our employees.

CARE FOR OUR EMPLOYEES

The Group believes that it is fundamental to build a pleasant
workplace for the employees with the spirits of our Group,
“Integrity, Trustworthy, Innovative and Excellent”. We treasure our
employees the most as their contribution is the key to business
development and success. Therefore, the Group advocates
to providing a fair and non-discriminative environment for the
employees to explore their potentials and grow with the Group.

Employment Practices
In the Reporting Period, we had 111" employees. All are full-time

employees based in China. The overall turnover rate of employees
is 18.9%.

AEBRIBREE ZIXBREES M
el %Igmx%’%hﬁﬁ%1%2ﬂ§°
TR R RBRREERRBERYERAETR
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ERERTRKRE  NEEKLAASE RIRE
T8 - NIEH AEBE YL T ANBAEFERAA
AR BER TMEERAASEREMERY
KA BR BAFRARBE 2R
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AEERE/RBERIAETHESMIHEEN
SEHE TEAF 2B BHIER-
BEZERIERER MK Z B@E - B
E%EWEZ.Im rEBEREREERH
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B —RMA K-

EEEA

RBEH BB 111BEE  2BARF
2EBEEB -BREEERKEAE18.9% -

Gender Profile Age Profile
4 Bl 4BE 5 FEER
6% ——
29% 14%
71% 80%
Male Female Below 30 30 to 50 Over 50
B sy B o B 30mIA T 30E508% 5087 A+

) The total number of employees and turnover rate take into account
the number of employees in our auto dealerships businesses in
Beijing and Tianjin.
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Employment number

BRBF

Number of employees (as of 31 March 2021)

EBEHE (R=FT=-—-F=A=+—8)

Gender

(<]l

Employment type
EEE7

Age
FiR

Geographical region

b [

Turnover employee number and rate (%)

BERKABREE(%)

Gender

(<]l

Age
F e

Geographical region

b2

Male

S

Female

gegid
Full-time
L
Part-time

e B

<30 years old
305 A T

30 - 50 years old
30E505%
>50 years old
505% Ak
China

a3

Male

S

Female

Eegid

<30 years old
30pR A T

30 - 50 years old
30&E505%
>50 years old
508% A
China

a3

21 (18.9)
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Creating an Inclusive Working Environment

The Group places enormous effort into recruiting professionals
and talents. We ensure that our remuneration packages to the
employees are complied with the relevant laws and regulations,
including the Labour Law of the PRC, the Labour Contract Law
of the PRC, and Regulation of Beijing Municipality on Payment of
Wages of the PRC. All full-time employees are not only provided
with social welfare schemes, holidays and rest periods, but also
benefited with paid leaves including annual leaves, marriage leaves,
maternity leaves, paternity leaves and compassionate leaves.
Besides, employees are not encouraged to work on holidays or
overtime beyond our fixed working hours. Prior approval is required
for any overtime work according to our management procedures
and employees will be compensated with overtime pay and rest
days.

The Group values fairness and equal opportunity in the working
environment. In employment matters involving staff recruitment,
performance evaluation, promotion and transferal, dismissal
and retirement, we ensure that every employee is treated fairly
and make decisions merely in consideration of their experience,
qualification, potentials and capabilities. Besides, the Group
promotes a caring and respectful corporate culture that prohibits
any discrimination on age, gender, race and any form of
harassment in the workplace. Healthy competition among our
employees are encouraged to help them grow professionally and
personally. Employees with great contribution to the Company’s
development and business will be rewarded or even promoted
according to our career ladder. A clear hierarchy is established to
provide a transparent career pathway of potential advancement in
job position and salary in the Group.
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The Group pays full respect to human and labour rights, and strictly
abides the law and regulations, including Labour Law of the PRC
and Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour of the PRC.
Child labour and forced labour are prohibited in the recruitment
procedures and no child or forced labour were identified in the
Reporting Period. For pregnant workers, paid workdays for regular
body check and special arrangement of job allocations will be
granted on a needed basis. Working mothers are provided with
reasonable breast-feeding breaks and entitled to shorter working
hours. Under a harassment free and fair treated workplace, it
enables our employees to serve and support our customers with
a welcoming attitude professionally. During the Reporting Period,
the Group was not aware of any harassment and discrimination,
or any non-compliance of relevant laws and regulations relating to
preventing child and forced labour.

Training and Development of Our Talents

The success of our business is closely related to the development
of our employees. The Group encourages employee training to
continuously improve the professional skills and strengthen their
efficiency and abilities. We invest resources in establishing an
annual training programme with various training provided for our
employees, including orientation training, departmental training and
external training and supported with learning subsidies to meet the
market demand in professionals.

Orientation Training

EEEI

e Overview of corporate culture and background
history
TEXERESELHRE

e Internal guidelines and rules, human resources

AEBTHEEARNRS TN WESEST
(FESEE) k (FERZILERETRTE)
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¥R &S A BRI B E Teams T -
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ATBIRER

BPcAEXRRREEEREBEE AEE
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EBFILE A R SR A (B 2 R 2 SNER AR B DA e
MEHERALT 2R R

Departmental Training
P E

e Technical on-job training by responsible
departments
B B BPIEB M EI

e Supplier training

policy, code of conduct introduction e Ry I

MNEBE Bl KA A~ AN ERBUR - 1A RSN e Operational skills and case study
e Foundational knowledge BIERT RERHRE

ELHE A e Workplace safety
e Mentorship programme for technical position THESZE

il B8 o 8 B =1 21

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED E#&BHER A & 99

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3R



RE-HAERERMRSE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Orientation training is provided to welcome our new employees
and to help them familiarise with the Group. It includes the
corporation’s background information, rules and regulations, and
mentorship programme so that our new employees can adapt
to the new working environment at ease. Besides, departmental
training including technical and operational skills relating to
their job duties are held on a regular basis for our employees to
develop their technical proficiency and improve their professional
techniques. Employees are also kept updated with innovative
technology in the industry so we can ensure that the best and
professional services are provided to our customers.

In the Reporting Period, we provided specialized training to our
technicians to enhance their work efficiency and professional
maintenance skills including automotive technology training, tools
application training and cases studies sharing. About 80% of
employees received training and their average training hours were
0.96.

BEEIN D REE LMK BERFINRR
BAKE ABRBREARESRER RAUKR
BIAR BEDET 8] RS HTIE B RE B RRE e
MIERE - B WFIBIIe e BEERE
HERA 2 BT RIRAE TS - @ ERITIARE
BABRED &m-&%%%&g EENEER
BEERRNBIFBREN  BERRMENSETF IR
HREZZEXRS -

RERER - BPIM BRI A B REEZPIEI A
REBECITEREREXEERE BEA
BRI TAEAZIIREARFARS = -
#180% & B #E X155 - 9153 80/20.96 °

Employees
who received
training
number and Average
percentage Training
Training information (%) hours
EZEIES
ABRBDH
3= 31 & R (%) 15 3% I B &
Total 89 (80) 0.96
et
Gender Male 65 (82) 0.77
5l S
Female 24 (75) 1.44
i
Employee category Senior Management 3 (50) 1.83
EEER SRERE
Middle Management 9 (100) 3.67
FARERE
General Staff 7 (80) 0.66
—RET
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group prioritises the workplace safety and the health of our
employees, as the work procedures involving paint spraying and
metal plating may pose hazards in daily operations. To create
a long-term sustainable business, the health and safety of our
employees are important to the Group. During the production
process, we put our employees’ safety as our top priority. With
the compliance of relevant laws and regulations including the
Work Safety Law of PRC, the Law of the PRC on Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases, Emergency Response Law of
the PRC and the Law on Safety of Special Equipment of the PRC,
we implemented safe production and occupational health related
policies, and an occupational health and safety management
system with detailed operational procedures that our employees
must strictly follow. Under our health occupational policies, the
occupational health risks of our employees are identified and
eliminated promptly, especially for the technicians working with
hazardous chemicals.

BrEERZ2

HRABEFZIF P RERREBEE
AR E MAKBEEREE TIFSME
2REERE REEBAIRESERR K
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Health and Safety 2021 2020
BREEZSR —E-—F —E-EHE
Number of work-related accidents and fatalities 0 0
TEHEBEIIN R THEE

Lost days due to work injuries 0 0
AIBELXZITIEBH
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Safety Risk Identification and Prevention B REHRZZEER

The Group continues to carry out safety precautionary measures ZAEB—EHRBERREHRLZEHBIEHK &
for possible risks including high-risk operational activities, fire, SRR ZER TS AZ BRLER
chemicals spillage, electricity shock and mechanical failure to %&% SRE BEREEINEER TR
minimise the adverse effect when accidents happened. The £ -ZiETEREfeLKEMEEBEHINDT
possible major risks and their relative measures are listed below:

Fire
& N\

e Regularly inspect firefighting equipment o TEHIRAI AR
e Establish emergency plans and escaping routes e HIFTESFERKERE
e Conduct fire drill training regularly o  THEITHIEZ IR

e Strict regulations in handling flammable operational equipment o I8 E SRR IERE M D E R
and substances

\_ J
Chemical Spillage
w
e Regular training on safety drill e THZEEBIR
e Strictly comply with the safety guide on harmful chemical e ERETEECLZERRELZEIES
spillage
e Regular inspection in the handling of production, e HERBAE BRNEELCEVMEET
transportation and disposal of chemical substances EHmE
e All employees must be qualified and trained before handling e FBEEREELS W78 BEHE R
the chemicals B REXE
_J
Operational Risk
R ER R )
e Provision of high quality personal protective equipment for e REEREEHHEARER
employees
e Employees must be trained before handling operational o  ([EEREIBEREMMATNEREZIE
machineries
e Attach safety instructions and procedures in conspicuous e RERENELEZETLEF
zones
. J
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In accordance with Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Treatment of Occupational Diseases and Provisions on the
Supervision and Administration of Occupational Health at Work
Sites of the PRC, the Group provides regular health checks for
employees and those identified with occupational risks are always
put in the first place and regularly monitored. Sufficient preventive
measures are provided to our employees and they are required
to wear protective gear properly to prevent any occupational
diseases. Moreover, occupational safety procedures and warning
signs are attached in conspicuous zone. Besides, employees are
fully trained and informed with the occupational risks to ensure
that the safety instructions are followed strictly. The training is
conducted before performing the job duties and during briefing
sessions in the daily operation. In the Reporting Period, the
Group was not aware of any non-compliance with the laws and
regulations relating to occupational health and safety.

Production Safety

The Group offers safety and occupational health training
programmes. New employees are fully trained on workplace safety
before works and specialty safety trainings are provided based on
the required techniques at the job position. For employees who
work in the high-risk position such as metal plating and spray
painting, qualifications and certifications must be obtained prior to
the commencement of work.

Rig CPEBERIE) & (CPETESH
BEXFLEEBEEERATE) FAEERESRH
EHRERE YEZNELMNEREREY
BEREREEE -HMREESETRAENE
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EmoUIN EREEHNEBRELE2EFRE
SFRw-BE BEEERIZEBERAREI
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BT RBMEH AREY TN HEEER
ERRRERELTERAEEAR BN -

SERZ
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We implement measures based on the principle of whose
responsibility when in charge, enabling all parties to participate
in safety management duties. Detailed and systematic measures
are implemented for our employees’ production safety. Safety and
occupational facilities are examined with regular maintenance while
the outdated machineries are eliminated to prevent any occupational
accidents. The Group highly encourages the employees to follow our
safety regulations by rewarding them with bonus salary. To enhance
safety awareness of our employees and stay alert on the risky
environment, we establish a thorough training plan to various safety
risk items regular safety training is conducted including fire drill,
occupational health training and accident case study.

BPETAEEABRRERRRIZER &S
THERRLEEREF RANEELER
EHTHAMB ARG IR T2 RBERE
SEBTHHENMERES  BRESRSRE
K AP BEEFEMBERIN - REE+ 5B
BEETREMRO AWis TR AEER - B
REEELREEH URESEBRRER 2R
HES BASTRZERARERHIFIHEZ
BHIEE - WETEM L 2B BFEENE
B BEREEIIRBIMEARRE -

Occupational Disease Prevention Training

B mPaiEdl

Harmonious Workplace =

The Group promotes work-life balance

and is concerned about the mental well-
being of our employees. The relationship
with our employees is very important
to foster a harmonious workplace and
the sense of belonging towards the
Group. Therefore, we arranged various
recreational activities such as dinner
party for our employees during the
Reporting Period.
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COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION

We acknowledge the social benefits in investing in the community
in which we operate. We seek opportunities to promote love and
care culture in our society, echoing with our corporate culture.
The Group will continue to encourage our employees to join
the voluntary activities, particularly providing assistance to the
underprivileged or deprived groups.

BUILDING A SUSTAINABLE ENVIRONMENT

The alarming trend of climate change lately has brought us
unprecedented concern on environmental stewardship. The
Group believes in the critical importance of being a responsible
institution through managing the potential negative impact that our
activities could have. Focusing on tackling our carbon footprint, we
understand that we have the responsibility to protect the natural
environment, which can bring mutual benefits to the long-term
operation of the Group and preserve the planet for our current and
future generations.

In order to systematically control the environmental impacts
throughout our operation, we have established an ISO 14001:2015
certified Environmental Management System (‘EMS”) to identify,
manage and mitigate the environmental risks associated with our
operational processes as well as to provide a framework for setting
out specific and measurable environmental objectives for improving
our environmental performance, and allocate the resources required
accordingly. The environmental policies and objectives are regularly
reviewed so as to keep up with the statutory requirements and
standards, including the Environmental Protection Law of the
PRC, the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the PRC, the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
PRC, the Water Law of the PRC and the Law on Prevention of
Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid Waste of the PRC etc.
During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
significant non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
generation of waste and use of resources.
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Coordination in environmental management

We adopt a forward-looking approach in managing emerging
environmental risks and advancing our performance in pursuit of
long-term and sustainable operation and goals. We have developed
an administrative framework which aims to improve the coordination
and effectiveness of environmental management efforts across the
Group, and to make environmental management an integral part
of our operation. Each with its focus and priority tasks, the units
work in close cooperation to promote a holistic environmental
management approach, aiming at enhancing our environmental
performance. By holding the working principles in prevention over
the mitigation, we can synchronise economic development without
depleting the environmental quality. Our chief executive director
(“CEO”) leads the environmental pollution protection strategies, and
supported by various working units in supervising and coordinating
the daily works. Especially due to our business operations,
the generation of hazardous waste is of utmost concerns. By
establishing a responsibility system in the Group, we can effectively
pinpoint the issues and the division of works is highlighted below:

HAREER

TAPVEREX AN BE 177 $1 B IR B IR 2 BRI R Ko 2
EER NERRRAIFELERBR BN
ERIFTITRERER  §HEMBAKE L TR
B TR B B - AREIRTE IR
REMEBEEZ —BD - ZTHFIELSAE
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RERLCERR - R THRARBERES
RRERE B TETEELEEERIHHR
BEIE- LHEERRMcEBERERF
EREVCEENREH CHITHERB - BBE
AEBRETBESE R BRI HRHRE
DIREMT

Sl
’ 3 »

CEO EMS Taskforce

Working Unit

106

TR

* Provides leadership in the
environmental protection
works and work plans in
the year.
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e The EMS taskforce is
responsible for setting,
monitoring, measuring
and managing the
performance, KPls and

measures, and to keep
a record for reference of
the authority and other
stakeholders.
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In addition, we organise environmental training for our employees
to acquire adequate knowledge in environmental protection and
professional techniques to conduct specialised environmental
protection measures.

Raising environmental awareness

We regularly provide our employees with training sessions on
environmental topics to raise their environmental awareness.
During the Reporting Period, we gave a training session on
EMS to our employees at the service centre, focusing on basic
establishment of EMS, environmental objectives, environmental
factors that may occur at workplace and mitigation measures.

Waste management

The Group recognises the potential environmental impacts induced
by irresponsible and improper waste disposal. All of the waste
is segregated into hazardous and general waste and would go
through separate disposal procedures accordingly.
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Hazardous waste

While we proactively promote cleaner production to minimise the
generation of hazardous waste, some hazardous waste such as
waste mineral oil, waste lead acid batteries and waste filters are
inevitably generated given our business nature. To mitigate the
environmental impacts thereof, we have set up the Hazardous
Waste Management System to regulate the disposal and
management of hazardous waste, and other measures to reduce
hazardous waste at source.
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practicable.

Reduction BEREZEY-

o All production units are encouraged to adjust the choice of raw materials, production
methods and product design to minimise the generation of hazardous waste as far as

e HEASRALEEEURABRRVMAER EESEREMK EERAUTBELTEERLESL

R o Contaminated gloves are to be washed and reused, instead of disposal.

s BRRER(MIRB)FBRZFE-

e BAEREHMREXEE-

o Reduce the consumption of batteries and fluorescent tubes.

respective containers.

Handlin
BB . dust and leakage.

s FMAAERERMHANEEFRANKLE -

o All hazardous waste is well-documented and classified, clearly labelled and sealed in

s MEBEEEVHAAEXNELEISE HBASETEEEERREH-
o All hazardous waste is securely stored, kept away from rain and well covered to prevent

s LEREGMERTEREY EBMAKRUEEBE UBKKERR-
° All hazardous waste is disposed of within an expected time frame.

° lllegal dumping is strictly prohibited.
o EBEIFKIEREERY-

° All hazardous waste is consigned to qualified professional waste collectors for detoxifying,

Disposal handling and treatment, who are required to stipulate with the strictest safety and
RE environmental standards throughout the logistics and storage process.

MIEFHARTRERZIZERIRERE

s FMEAEEREVMBRTAERIEXEZVEEREATHES BERNT EBEADRMFEF

Supervision f , i .
B ensure the hazardous waste is handled properly in accordance with the best practices, the

applicable laws and regulations.
e YHBPIRDEEEMFIHRATHETEMER BRESEEZEVRRBREEER EREE
EREERE
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° The Material Department is responsible for performing supervision of waste collection
facilities, and to report to the Quality Control Department regularly.

e PHBPIABEEBEEEMUERE WEHMREERMBPIER-

° The Material and Quality Control Departments jointly conduct on-site inspections regularly to
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While every effort is made to ensure all hazardous waste we
generated are disposed of properly and safely, we do recognise
the potential risks of handling hazardous waste. As such, a
contingency plan has been set up to mitigate such risks. The plan
sets out a guideline to minimise the environmental impact in the
event of an incident in hazardous waste disposal. The individuals
and units which are under danger shall be notified at once, and the
environmental protection administrative department shall be notified
in a timely manner to initiate an investigation.

General waste

Our solid waste management policy regulates the handling and
disposal of general waste and ensures the compliance with the
applicable environmental laws and regulations. The general waste
is segregated into recyclables and non-recyclables. To ensure the
effective recycling of different types of waste, we have installed
multiple bins with designated colours for our employees to
conveniently sort their domestic waste.

To give the recyclables a new life and value, some recyclables with
resale value will be put on sale by tender. All non-recyclables are to
be collected by qualified contractors.

As compared to last year, we successfully achieved our target
for proper waste management (i.e. categorisation, storage and
disposal) during the Reporting Period.
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Water saving and sewage management

Water is vital to life on the Earth. Despite about 70% of the Earth’s
surface is covered by water, only a small fraction is available for
human use, which also provides habitats for various plant and
animal species, and constitutes an essential resource for industry.
While water consumption and sewage discharge is essential in
our daily operation, we pledge to protect the water source around
us and save water. In the Reporting Period, there is no issue in
sourcing water.

We believe that the most effective way to conserve water resources
is by reducing water consumption at source. We monitor a water
saving performance for various departments and production lines
every year. We monitor the water consumption of our facilities and
production units with larger water footprints regularly and respond
promptly to any irregularities. To facilitate a more comprehensive
plan in conserving water, we have set up a database on water
consumption, which provides us with the crucial data for
performing analysis on water saving. We also advocate reuse of
water for different purposes to further reduce water consumption.

We also make the best effort to ensure that the sewage we
discharge does not pose significant environmental impacts to
the water source nearby. To improve the water quality of sewage
generated by the domestic use of our employees, we only use
phosphate-free detergent, and treat sewage in the septic tank prior
to discharges. To conserve water resources and reduce sewage
discharge, we recycle and reuse the effluent from the car washing
process in the service centre and encourage our employees
to avoid running water. We carry out testing against the water
quality of our sewage regularly to ensure that it comprise with the
discharge requirements.

Due to the suspended business operation as a result of the
COVID-19 pandemic, the usage of water was reduced, thereby
causing a percentage increase in the Reporting Period. However,
we were able to reduce water consumption intensity by about 14%
in the Reporting Period as compared to 2020. It is a significant
achievement of reducing the Group’s water consumption. Looking
forward, we target to reduce water by at least 20% in our Beijing’s
operation as compared to the Reporting Period.
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Emission management

After conducting environmental factors identification and
evaluation, we have recognised that our air emissions are mainly
from the emission of volatile organic compounds (“VOCs”)
and dust through the process of paint spraying, grinding and
polishing of the vehicles, and the direct and indirect greenhouse
gas emissions derived from our vehicle fuel combustion and
electricity consumption respectively. We have been sparing no
efforts in minimising such emissions by setting up green workplace
guidelines and with the aid of the latest technology.

We have been incorporating technology into the operation of our
service centres to enable green production. Examples include the
installation of an industrial-grade air purification device at our paint
spraying compartment. The device is equipped with multiple layers
of filters. With the aid of the device, the VOCs and dust generated
could be filtered out and decomposed through the process of ultra-
violet photocatalytic oxidation. We carry out testing against the air
quality around our facilities to ensure that we are in compliance
with the emission requirements.
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In regard to our greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions derived
from our vehicle fuel combustion and electricity consumption,
we have implemented a set of green workplace guidelines. To
promote responsible use of company vehicles, we have set up
a company vehicle management policy with working guideline to
regulate the use of company vehicles in the daily operation. The
employees are encouraged to use the public transport and greener
transportation options as far as practicable, and those who intend
to use the company vehicles must make a reservation in advance.
The General Management Department will make approvals on
the reservations based on actual needs. Those who travel to the
same destination will be asked to travel together and the route is
optimised to reduce the use of vehicle fuel. To reduce electricity
consumption, our policy requires employees to turn off idling
machines and electrical appliances, and minimise the use of light
during the daytime. The room temperature should be kept at 25°C
or above. Lights and air-conditioners are to be cleaned regularly
to maintain their energy efficiency. We encourage our employees
to use the stairs instead of taking the lift to maintain a healthier
lifestyle and to save energy.

Since a large portion of carbon emission is induced by the
electricity consumption, we put an extra effort to reduce the
consumption by setting a target for the Reporting Period.

Similar to the situation in water consumption target achievement,
due to the COVID-19 pandemic, we can only achieve electricity
consumption reduction in terms of the intensity but not the
absolute value. During the Reporting Period, the electricity
consumption intensity was decreased by about 2%. Looking
forward, we continue to review and set target for our operation to
drive reduction through the electricity conservation in production
and increasing employees’ awareness. In the coming year, we
aim to reduce electricity consumption intensity by 10% in Beijing
as compared with the Reporting Period. Despite the business
suspension caused by COVID-19 in FY2020, we managed to
reduce the GHG intensity in the past few successive years.
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GHG Emission (tonnes carbon dioxide equivalent) Total GHG Intensity (per RMB'000)
AERBEHN (B_StREE HRERREE (BARBTT)
2000 0.0010
0.0008
1500
0.0006
1000
0.0004
500
0.0002
0 0.0000

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Resource conservation

Responsible consumption can not only save our precious
resources, but also reduce waste at source. We believe that
behavioural changes and proactive actions over time can
minimise our environmental footprint. Therefore, we encourage
our employees to use the office supplies wisely and responsibly in
order to uphold a sustainable workplace culture.
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e \We have switched to a paper-free workspace, internal and
external communication are primarily based on electronic
channels.

e \We encourage employees to
e only print when necessary.

e print on both sides.
e proofread before printing to avoid wastage.
e utilise scrap paper where applicable.

RFEBEEEA TERS
BHIBEAETEE-

M HNE

Bz EES

o ARVERITH-
RASEETH -
RATENRTETTIRY - Bi LLRE -
T E B R A RE AR -

Office supplies i X = A

e \We prefer reusable/refillable stationery, such as refillable pens
instead of conventional pens, clips instead of glue.

e \We encourage employees to
e bring their own mugs; disposable cups are only for the

KRMELERAAIBRA#HEEA
mERAAARKEMIFERER K
TimIEB K

Hifiz B E S -

s BHEM T HENRFRABRBENR

use of our guests. Eo
e recycle and reuse the supplies as far as practicable. e HEMAITEATNEAIEREREAR
FEM o
Preparedness for extreme weather EHERXR

We are fully aware of the potential impacts that climate change may
have on our business. Climate change caused by global warming
intensifies the heaviest downpours, and we have been facing the
increasing risk and severity of flooding. We are well prepared for
it and have been striving to eliminate its impact on our operation.
During the wet season, we regularly carry out inspections of the
sealants around the doors and windows of our warehouses to look
for water leaks. We also inspect the drainage of the compartments
Sandbags are to be placed
around the entrances and exits as a precautionary measure when

to ensure they function as normal.

we expect a heavy rainfall.
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Environmental Performance Mot

The environmental performance of our four substantial subsidiaries

%iﬁg;&(ﬂﬁﬁﬂ

TRINTASENREIEMB AR ZERES

is presented in the following table. B e
Unit 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19
B —r-®/ —B-NS ZB-N/
=g i —hEE
Types of Resources Use "2
&R AR (e
Direct Energy Mot 3
B AR (W)
— Petrol for mobile combustion Litre (“L”) 20,618 27,031.00 101,714.87
BN IR PR 2 6 )7 7t
GJ 675.90 886.13 3,334.42
HEEH
Intensity GJ per RMB ('000) sales 0.00022 0.00038 0.0012
BE HEEH
(BARKTLHER)
Indirect Energy
B IR
— Electricity Megawatt hour (“MWh”) 1,130.94 974.75 905.40
W) JEFL B
GJ 4,071.39 3,509.09 3,259.45
HEH
Total Energy GJ 4,747.29 4,395.22 6,593.87
H#EeR "EF
Intensity GJ per RMB ('000) sales 0.0015 0.0019 0.0025
=E HEE
(BARBTTHESR)
Water m? 3,944 2,533.00 2,185.97
7K K
Intensity m?® per RMB ('000) sales 0.0013 0.0011 0.00082
BE SR

(BARETTHER)
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Unit 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19
B —B=-F/ —ZE2-h/ —E2-N/
——FE —EFE —NFEE

Paper Tonne 15.07 55.28 0.38
?ﬁ u@g (Note 4) (Bff3t4)
Refrigerants kg 0 40.00 135.20
515 7| T
Lubricant Oil L 22,568 13,127.00 21,176.00
8 h 7t
Paint L 988.00 1,950.00 =
R 7t
Type of Waste
BEYESR
Hazardous Waste Tonne 5,393.64 87.16 19.29
EEEEY A (Note 5) (HE5)
Intensity Tonne per RMB 0.0017 0.000038 0.0000072
RE ('000) sales

g

(BARKTLHER)
Non-hazardous Waste Mot 6) Tonne 0.24 0.88 2.33
4 22 % 25 ) (Wte) i
Intensity Tonne per RMB sales 0.00008 0.00038 0.00087
=g A
(BARMBIHER)

Type of Emissions
RYES
Air Emission
RE SRR L
VOCs Tonne 0.0043 0.0096 0.0051
BEUEARILEED A
Benzene Tonne 0.0012 N/A N/A
N S T E A THEA
Toluene Tonne 0.0012 N/A N/A
SEFS I 5@ A A58
Dimethylbenzene Tonne 0.0012 N/A N/A
ZHE g i@ A i A
Non Methane Hydrocarbon Tonne 0.00073 N/A N/A
EREBREIEY M4 5 38 A
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Unit 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19
B —2-2/ =2-h/ =2-N/
——5E —EFEE —NEFEE
GHG Emission
BERBHR
Direct Emission (Scope 1) Note ) tCO2e 49.24 116.56 418.68
EEHEW (EE1) e WE S| LIRE 8
Indirect Emission (Scope 2) MNote 8 tCO2e 1,065.23 943.56 943.07
B (FE2) (e W —ELIRE 2
Total tCOze 1,114.47 1,060.11 1,361.74
me —atmEE
Intensity tCOze per RMB 0.00036 0.00046 0.00051
nE (‘OOO) sales
—atmEE
(/\EM:FTE%'%%E)
Note 1: The environmental key performance indicators (KPIs) only cover — Mf3E1 : REBREVEZERENBEMNER

the four subsidiaries namely Beijing Mei He Zhen Yong Motors
Trading Limited, Beijing De Te Motors Trading Limited, Tianjin
Heng Ying Tai Fu Trading Development Limited, Tianjin Xin
Chang Tai Fu Trading Development Limited.

Note 2: The packaging materials are not applicable to the Group as the
Group engages in automobile dealerships and provides after-
sale services to our customers within the reporting scope.

BifsE2 :

A AMHEREASRKABEEZERA
A EREEAEBRSERAR K2
\EQ%*E%E‘*EEKE A RZE
REEHEREAERA

HRERSHEALEERELED
EhAEPRHERRY HEEM
BN ERARAEE -
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Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

Note 8:

118

The conversion factors from volumetric units of petrol
consumption to energy units are in reference to CDP Technical
note: Conversion of fuel data to MWh.

In 2019/20, we refined our data collection approach and
included the paper consumption from our subsidiaries in Beijing
and Tianjin, while only the consumption from our subsidiaries
in Tianjin were recorded in 2018/19. Hence, the consumption
increased.

The customer flow in our subsidiaries in Tianjin increased after
the relocation of operations. Hence, the generated hazardous
waste in the Reporting Period increased.

The figure of non-hazardous waste in 2019/20 covers the
wasted paper consumption and domestic waste. The domestic
waste generated by the two subsidiaries in Beijing is collected
by the building management company and the data is not
available.

The direct emission (Scope 1) covers the emission from the
mobile sources combustion. The calculation is referred to
the published emission factors from 2006 IPCC Guidelines
for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories and the guidance
worksheets of World Resources Institute’s GHG Protocol Tool
for Mobile Combustion.

The indirect emission (Scope 2) covers the emission from the
purchased electricity from the Power Company. The calculation
is based on the emission factors from 2019 Emission Factors
for purchased electricity within Mainland China, published by
Climate Change Info-Net.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B &EEER AT
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HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs
BIARE HERERBREES —REEREARENIER

Bt ST PR IR
£

IR HERERBEES

Explanation/Reference Section

R SEZEH

Aspect A: Environment

EBEA: RE
A1 Emissions Information on:
By (a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and

Building a Sustainable Environment
— Emission Management
HEMHBERRE -BINER

regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BRAERMBEERBIR KR LB

SBEREBEEREVMNELSTMN:

(a) BE: &

(b)) BTUBETABEARXENHBEZNK

MO E L

Note:

Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other

pollutants regulated under national laws and

regulations.

Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide,

methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons,

perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride.

Hazardous wastes are those defined by national

regulations.

&
ERERBERA Y -
BERBOIRE R TR -

maE Y Rk E 4R ERE

BRERESRE S Fit SR SRRIL

aY - 2HEIR RSB
EEREEMERRBAOIMAES -
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs
BRIARE HERERBREES —REERARENIER

Explanation/Reference Section

g SEEH

KPI A1.1
FARENEEALA

KPI A1.2
A MIEEAL2

KPI A1.3
FAREWIEEALS

KPI A1.4
FRRBENIEEZALIL

KPI A1.5
FABENIEEALS

KPI A1.6
R EWIEEALG

The types of emissions and respective

emissions data.

e R RR AR R R BE

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

BERBANE (UEAE) L (ER) =

E (M BESEN SHERMTE

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

EXEEEEMEE (LHEE) R

%)QSE(QDDAE%E‘DLL ‘!‘IE flﬂu-l_#)

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and where appropriate, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

PREEBEREMHAE (AMEE) R

B)ZE (AGES86 - tﬁ&mﬁ#%

Description of measures to mitigate
emissions and results achieved.

AU AR HE R E B R ISR -

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction

initiatives and results achieved.

WHEEREMBERZEYN L REEE

SNHEMEETEKE-
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Building a Sustainable Environment
— Emission Management and
Environmental Performance

WEAREERRR
—HERE R MIRIRA N

Building a Sustainable Environment
— Emission Management and
Environmental Performance

WETRBEZRRER
—BEEIE MIRIBE X

Building a Sustainable Environment
— Environmental Performance

WEAHEERRR
—RBAM

Building a Sustainable Environment
— Environmental Performance

MEARBERERERR
—REBEN

Building a Sustainable Environment
MERRERRIRR

Building a Sustainable Environment
— Waste Management

WEAREERRR
—BEERWEE
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs
BRIARE HERERBREES —REERARENIER

Explanation/Reference Section

R SEEH

A2 Use of Resources

BERER

KPI A2.1
B RENERA2.1

KPI A2.2
BRENERA2.2

KPI A2.3
AR ENIEEA2.3

KPI A2.4
HEEMIERA2.4

KPI A2.5
BB A M HRA2.5

Policies on efficient use of resources
including energy, water and other raw
materials.
BERFERER (BIEER  KREAMERME) &
BUR ©

Note:

Resources may be used in production, in storage,
transportation, in buildings, electronic equipment,
etc.

i
BRAANEE RE -E®H BT ESTRES-

&

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption
by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total
(kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

HRAESNEER /LEERER(ME R
gom) e (A TETERE) REE (W
NEEEBEM BERMETE) -

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

BFEKEREE (WASERED  TERIS
JEE

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives
and results achieved.

ot BE IR R ks st B TS AR

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
3SR BGE A KR _ ERT B ERIMRE - A RRFA
KB RAIFEHRR -

Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes), and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

R MATABEMENRE (LAMERTE) & (40
ER)BEESMEE-

Building a Sustainable Environment
— Resource conservation
MENREBEERER
— BB IR

Building a Sustainable Environment
— Environmental Performance

MERRBEERRIR
—RBAM

Building a Sustainable Environment
— Environmental Performance

MERRBEERRIR
—RBAM

Building a Sustainable Environment
MERRERRIRR

Building a Sustainable Environment
— Water saving and sewage
management

GIER B RRIRE
—fiKREKE R

Building a Sustainable Environment
— Environmental Performance

BETHERRES
—RBER

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A 1 21
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs
BRIARE HERERBREES —REERARENIER

Explanation/Reference Section

g SEEH

A3 The Environment and Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant

Natural Resources
RERKXAER

KPI A3.1
BA 2 4R X I R AS. 1

Aspect B: Social
EBHEB: &g

B1 Employment
&R

impact on the environment and natural
resources.

WMEBITAHRERRABREKNEAZEN
R
Description of the significant impacts of

activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage

[

them.

BAXRBEBHHRITERRAERNEXN

EXNEEBHEEENTH-

Information on:

(2)
(b)

ERAZME R BRREN TERE &
B FERE Znlt RESUREMETSE

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

BRI

()
(b)

BUR M

ETHRITABEAZENHEBEIZNR

MBI E R -
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Building a Sustainable Environment
— Preparedness for extreme
weather
HERRERRIRE
— & ¥ % 3 KSR

Building a Sustainable Environment
— Preparedness for extreme
weather
WEAHRERERRER
— & ¥ 1R 0 KR

Caring for Our Employees
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R -HERERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs
BRIARE HERERBREES —REERARENIER

Explanation/Reference Section

R SEEH

KPI B1.1
B & MIEEB1.A

KPI B1.2
AN ERBL.2

B2 Health and Safety
BREHEZZ

KPI B2.1
B & 1A 5 £ B2.1

KPI B2.2
B AN ERB2.2

KPI B2.3
B EEMIEEB2.3

Total workforce by gender, employment type,

age group and geographical region.

RUER RERL  FiAR MR35 E

Bhag-

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group

and geographical region.

RIER - FERARMES D EB R KL

o

Information on:
(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer relating to

providing a safe working environment

and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

BREHZE2THERREIMRERBBERBEM

EER:
(a) BE &

b) BTHETABEAFENHBZIZR

MO E RS -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

BAITHOAB R X

Lost days due to work injury.

RAIGHRARIERH-

Description of occupational health and

safety measures adopted, how they are

implemented and monitored.

A PTRANB R EREAR 2156 A RIEMH

HITMRERT -

Caring for Our Employees

AERES

Caring for Our Employees

HMEREE

Occupational Health and Safety
BERRELTE

Occupational Health and Safety
BEEREZS

Occupational Health and Safety
BERERELSE

Occupational Health and Safety
BERRELTSR
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RIE-HERERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs

BIXAERE HERERKEES

—RINEREARERER

Explanation/Reference Section

g SEEH

B3 Development and
Training

BRREI

KPI B3.1
BB WIEEBS3A

KPI B3.2
A 48 MIE1EBS.2

B4 Labour Standards
% T XA

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
EARAEEBITILERAENMNZEREENK
o HuLIFINEE -

Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may
include internal and external courses paid by the
employer.

GRp=lEE) 3

X

J A BREAEENERINEDR

The percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category (e.g. senior
management, middle management).
EZHEREEBEN(IEREEREE  ARERE
EB)ErHXIMEER DL

The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.
rRURREEERE D BEEE KX
FHEB-

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.

EEWLEETRESILTH:

(a) BE &

by BFHBTAEEATENHEBZEIZR
RO ER -
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Caring for Our Employees —
Training and Development of
Our Talents

BEREE
— AT EIRERE

Caring for Our Employees -
Training and Development of
Our Talents

EEE
— AA I R R

Caring for Our Employees —
Training and Development of
Our Talents

AERES
— AT I RER

Caring for Our Employees —
Creating an Inclusive Working
Environment

HERES
—BlE R TIERIR



RIE-HERERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs
BRIARE HERERBREES —REERARENIER

Explanation/Reference Section

R SEEH

KPI B4.1
B8 4& I EB4.A

KPI B4.2
B8 4B MIB1EB4.2

B5 Supply Chain
Management

15 e o o 32

KPI B5.1
B B WIEEB5.1

KPI B5.2
B 4E MIE1EBS.2

Description of measures to review

employment practices to avoid child and

forced labour.

fatte st RIS E GV B e AR R E T MR 55

To

Description of steps taken to eliminate such

practices when discovered.

MAEHRREZR TR EREBIERARRN T

B o

Policies on managing environmental and

social risks of the supply chain.

B EE IR A SRR BUR

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

i lm s DM EEEE o

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they

are implemented and monitored.

HEARERHERNIES MERTHERE
Pl EEmEE - AR BHEBENHRTRE

BIA

Caring for Our Employees —
Creating an Inclusive Working
Environment

BAEREE
—BlEH R TEIRIE

Caring for Our Employees —
Creating an Inclusive Working
Environment

HEREE
—BlEHF TERE

Product and Service Responsibility
— Supply Chain Management
EmRRBET
—HEEEIR

Product and Service Responsibility
— Supply Chain Management

B N IR B AE
—HEEEE

Product and Service Responsibility
— Supply Chain Management
Em&kiRBEE
—ffEEER
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RE-HAERERMRSE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs
BRIARE HERERBREES —REERARENIER

Explanation/Reference Section

g SEEH

B6 Product Information on:
Responsibility (a) the policies; and
EDEE (b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of
redress.

FRMREHEMNBRENERELZE BES-

BHEEALBEEN R ER

(a) BE &

b) BFTHBTATEAZENHEBEZR
ROIEE R -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped

RS 2 48 WIS = B6.1 subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.
EENEEXEMAHETRAREEBEREHRM
AW BED -

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related

BB WIS EBG.2 complaints received and how they are dealt
with.
REBREMMBRENRFHEBEURELT
A e

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing

B 48 2k 1S = B6.3 and protecting intellectual property rights.

R E R RENBEREBEBNED -

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and

B 42 48 Sk 12 12 B6.4 recall procedures.
B 2R EREREMBKIERF-

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and

R 2 4 WIS =B6.5 privacy policies, how they are implemented
and monitored.

3t OH B B ERHRE RABEEK - A RABEH
TRERTX-
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Product and Service Responsibility

Em MR EE

Product and Service Responsibility
— Product Quality and Safety

Em&iRBEE
—EmBERLZD

Product and Service Responsibility
— Customer Complaints Handling

Em MRS &
—BEP&RFEE

Product and Service Responsibility
— Privacy and Security

Em MR EE
— B RRZ

Product and Service Responsibility
Em &R EE

Product and Service Responsibility
— Privacy and Security

EmMRBEET
—FLERRE



RIE-HERERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs

Explanation/Reference Section

BRIARE HERERBREES —REERARENIER fRE SEEH
B7 Anti-corruption Information on: Business Integrity
E&S (@) the policies; and EEXAH
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.
B ILAEE PR MEFREREN:
(a) BEK &
(b)) BFHBEITABEAZENHEBEER
ROIEE R -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding Business Integrity

AR EMIEEBTA

KPI B7.2
B AN ERBT.2

B8 Community
Investment

HERE

KPI B8.1
B B WIEEB8.1

KPI B8.2
BA 2 45 M 15 2 B8.2

corrupt practices brought against the issuer
or its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the cases.

REBRMAHBITAREHBRERBICELED
B RARMHNEE R

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

S e R R WmRT A RBEHTRE
BAHE.

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

BRNERSERTREEMELESREME
FREXBEHEEBHLENRAOBEEK -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs,
health, culture, sport).
%EE%%E(W%E~%%$E»
2Rz -t -8B5) -

BIFX-

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time)
to the focus area.

EEIBBMHFER (NEEREMR) -

GEE24H

Business Integrity

EEEAE

Community Participation
itm

Community Participation
Zi L=} / /\

Community Participation
oy
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Independent Auditor’s Report

|IBDO

E:E : +852 2218 8288
{5H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sparkle
Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 135 to 287, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2021, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of cash flows and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“"HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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B Z MRS (F)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Impairment assessment on goodwill

Refer to Notes 4, 5 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group’s goodwill amounted to approximately HK$385,657,000
as at 31 March 2021. We focused on this area due to the size of
goodwill. Furthermore, the directors’ assessment of the value-in-
use calculation of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUSs”) to
which goodwill was allocated involves judgement and estimates
about the future results of the businesses, key assumptions
including discount rates and growth rates applied to future cash
flow forecast.

Our response:
Our audit procedures included, amongst others, the followings:

(i) Evaluating and checking the composition of the Group’s
future cash flow forecasts in the CGUs, and the process by
which they were drawn up, including testing the underlying
value-in-use calculations and comparing them to the latest
approved budgets;

(i) Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions by
comparing the current year actual results with the forecast
figures of the current year included in the previous forecast,
by reference to future plans and by performing independent
market analysis; and

FARETEE

FRETFHRERERMANEXRHE  RAY
AR AMBHREANENTR/ERZER &
LEHEAERMBABRRBEEMBHRER D
AR REETREN R TEHELFERE
HEBER-

BEZRER S

BHGEHBEHREN T4 5819

EEERERN T - —F=A=+—HHA
385,657,000/ 7T 3 9 75 2B (& M BT 1t
FEo AN ERFE EEEESEEERN
REeEEBEM2EABETER Y REYEL
ZARREEEL HIE R BRBReEE
ARARBEREFERN 2R RRIEREK-

ZAFIEY [ fE -
BAMEZREFERE (AP ef) A T&E:

() FEkeE EEERSELBURR
BenBRAZEANREELERF &

BAABECHAERSE UHEER
it 2 HEELL R

(i) BBB2ERRABRETBIMS D
T LL B AR R B R A 2 SR AT TROR
RESZENFERUKT UFGEH

RERIAENE R
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B Z MRS (F)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment on goodwill (Continued)

Refer to Notes 4, 5 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

(i) Utilising our own valuation specialists work when considering
the appropriateness of the discount rates and long-term
growth rates.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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B Z MRS (F)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

EENGEUBHRRAREZ
BfE

E=ZFRERBEEESHMASRMZER
B AE RS R R BB R AMERD 2 KB R E B
BEEMPEZEAMBHRER YHERSR
FEERAVBRR BB T FEARKIFRE
ARIME B 2 E R RRAFTFH 2 ABIES &

5o

EREEAMEHRRE BRRZEZERE
Aty BERERERLEZREN XHEERBR
THEEESELLEBMIER URERFE
RENEER KIESEER BEEED
BAFILEE HPIBEEBER B TR

EXNMAREEE BERBEZUBHmEER-
ERZEeMPEFTETENE T EZBE -

BRBMRETREMBRRARE
ZEE

BPWER RHGAMBEHRRERES T
FERRAGFRIFRM B 2 B A REL
BRERRE YHABSERMERNZEER
FoAREDRBEARE-NN—FRFES
fF 2 RE - EM2EIRRRE - M EEM
A& BT e ARE Z AR R EMEMLA
TRRYREEMAEE-

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B 2maRAa 131

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3



Bz E (48)
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misst

atements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably

be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As p

art of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

132

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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B Z MRS (F)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant efficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

REE MBS e M RRAE
ZEE (#)

s HEERAREKLLSHERZRBREN
e & o IRIZPTEEL BRTRE - FEE
EATEREENBENFHEZIEANTE
EM-KmARERY BEREZFHE
RERNELEANRE - MREMABR
FREEATEEN AU EBEZEM
REPIRBEMEIBEEMBERRP
ZHEBARE -BEABEIHETRE AR
PMEERRIFERERR HANER
RENZHBERE B ILAREZETR
7E o A - RRFHEKIERAIEEH &

Lk 4 43 4w MR
SEETREFELE -

s HEREGHMBHRIEBIEBIA &
BRAD  BREEKE UGS B#RE
EEAPERBRISHMER-

e B BERBEREBIEXKIBZMBKE
BERTR EE ZFTRE  AEHEE
EMBHRERERER -HMEE E&E
BEsH 2 A BB MATT - R AES
BRAEZHNEL

FREMERIN RAEEREZE SRR TS
ZEGHE KHELHE BEXEAERS B
ERPIERE P EA B ABIES 2 EFREXR
R BE o
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B Z MRS (F)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pak Tak Lun
Practising Certificate Number: PO6170

Hong Kong, 30 June 2021
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e EWARRE
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

T —%F=A=+—H Asat 31 March 2021

I

2021 2020
—B=-—fF —E_EF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 FE T T T
Revenue Uy = 7 4,525,762 3,443,430
Cost of sales 5 6 B A (3,834,009) (2,883,545)
Gross profit ER 691,753 559,885
Other income, gains and losses EmuA - Wz & E1E 8 (51,230) 5,506
Selling and distribution costs $HE KRB A (467,229) (382,880)
Administrative expenses THER (76,684) (84,860)
Operating profit KRR 9 96,610 97,651
Finance costs Bl & X AR 10 (64,486) (82,132)
Profit before income tax BR BT 18 Bt A1 3% A 32,124 15,519
Income tax FTis % 11 5,653 10,486
Profit for the year REERA 37,777 26,005
Other comprehensive income, BREREMEEUWA
net of tax
Iltems that may be reclassified AEANEFZHE
subsequently to BwmXZHE -
profit or l0ss:
Exchange differences on translation 28 /540 8 # R K
of financial statements of ZIEHZEE
foreign operations 133,793 (98,753)
Items that will not be reclassified AT BN HEE
subsequently to profit or [0ss: BmXZHE -
Change in fair value of equity BEARER AEAM
investments at fair value through ZHE WA 2 B
other comprehensive income WERFNER
recognised during the year NABELZE 341,019 (242,240)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)

RZE_—F=H=+—H As at 31 March 2021

2021 2020
—®B=-—F —B_FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FAIT
Other comprehensive income for ZNEERKRBI%H A
the year, net of tax 2HEB A 474,812 (340,993)
Total comprehensive income AEEZHKALLE
for the year 512,589 (314,988)
Profit for the year attributable to: T3 A LTEERFERR :
Owners of the Company KARIESR A 37,527 30,283
Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR M 250 (4,278)
37,777 26,005
Total comprehensive income B AL FEL
attributable to: E2HEHBALEE:
Owners of the Company KRAREER A 512,222 (310,619)
Non-controlling interests I 12 iR 1 367 (4,369)
512,589 (314,988)
(Re-presented)
(&&E5)
Earnings per share attributable to A2Q T #H G AELG
owners of the Company BRER
Basic and diluted BERREE HKO.7 cent HKO0.6 cent
15 A 7S
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZE_—F=H=+—H As at 31 March 2021

2021 2020
—B=-—fF —E_EF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FAIT
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% RN 16 1,021,292 955,446
Investment properties REMHE 18 379,998 408,462
Goodwill a2 19 385,657 380,978
Other intangible assets HEth\EE & E 20 265,022 280,062
Financial assets at fair value through Z AR EFAHEMEE
other comprehensive income WAZEREE 21 520,088 124,406
Prepayment for property, LERY T )& g
plant and equipment TE B FKIE 3,309 3,054
Rental deposits paid to BN —H@ES
a related party Hekse 22(b) - 6,475
2,575,366 2,158,883
Current assets REBEE
Inventories T8 23 696,224 912,922
Trade receivables & W E 5 I 24(a) 18,489 36,828
Loan receivables & W féf = 24(b) 90,000 =
Deposits, prepayments and B FBHEFIER
other receivables Ho{th & Uk 5RIE 24(c) 190,440 251,175
Tax recoverable A] Uy [B] % I8 3,575 =
Investment in films and KEEER
television program EIREH 25 65,023 28,777
Pledged deposits B FEFR 26 200,495 92,424
Cash at banks and in hand RITEFERS 26 246,540 116,049
1,510,786 1,438,175
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FERE 5 FIE 28 28,306 60,946
Contract liabilities GHBE 29 292,925 186,972
Receipts in advance, accrued W - BB AR
charges and other payables H b & 5 3R I8 30 164,366 109,654
Amounts due to non-controlling P& 3R Hﬂ&ﬁ??f&
interests 22(a) 9,999 11,915
Provision for taxation T I8 B % 4,478 2,915
Borrowings BE 31 336,056 581,962
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 49,754 55,506
885,884 1,009,870
Net current assets REBEEFE 624,902 428,305
Total assets less current liabilities A& ERAREBEE 3,200,268 2,587,188
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

RZE_—F=H=+—H As at 31 March 2021

2021 2020
—E-—%F —E-THF
Notes HK$’°000 HK$’000
B 7 FET T T
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings BE 31 113,856 173,414
Convertible bonds A] 2 {% (& 25 32 8,135
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIBEE 33 78,189 81,986
Lease liabilities HEBE 17 340,792 328,878
540,972 584,278
Net assets BEEFE 2,659,296 2,002,910
Equity R
Share capital f& 7 34 10,944 9,587
Reserves 15 35 2,644,011 1,991,135
Equity attributable to owners to ZAAFEE AEGER
the Company 2,654,955 2,000,722
Non-controlling interests JEPE R = 40 4,341 2,188
Total equity EEAHE 2,659,296 2,002,910

The consolidated financial statements on pages 135 to 287 were S135F287B ZiE I IFMERER T = —
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 FRNA=Z+HEZEoEMEETE  TH

June 2021 and signed on its behalf by: THEEREKEE
Zheng Hao Jiang Zhao Xiaodong
BR5E ST AR
Director Director
EFE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE_ZT-_—HF=A=+—HILHFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2021

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
BZE
—E—— —ZT= E
=A=+—8H =A E+—
1EE Ltif%
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 FHET FAIT
Cash flows from operating REXEB2HRERE
activities
Profit before income tax kR ATiS f Ail g A 32,124 15,519
Adjustments for: AT Iﬁf”ﬁﬂjz;ﬁﬁ
Bank interest income BrTR Bl X 8 (2,271) (2,083)
Rent concessions & =R (5,412) -
Gain on disposal of films HESEw 2z 8 - (1,486)
Loss/(gain) on disposals of HEYF KSRk
property, plant and equipment et
(M=) 8 3,315 (4)
Amortisation of other H A & i
intangible assets 9 9,982 9,825
Depreciation of property, A Y ]
plant and equipment e 9 99,120 104,820
Changes in fair value of KEMEZ
investment properties NABEEE 8 45,630 35,368
Changes in fair value of WEER
investment in films NI EE & 8 1,004 27,207
Interest on borrowings HEEZ T 2FE 10 38,678 51,157
Interest on convertible bonds A ]AREH AT
Z Rl S 10 142 -
Interest on lease liabilities HEEBEZN
Z KB 10 25,666 30,975
Modification of leases charged to MRiE & R
profit or loss ZHEER (8,555) (1,669)
Derecognition of investment RILERREYE
properties 8 14,717 =
Written off of property, ESR YN
plant and equipment s 8 68 681
Written off of other intangible H b % 72 & B 3H
assets 196 —
Write-down of inventories FEMR 9 14,770 1,701
Reversal of write-down 7 Bl 17 & MO
of inventories 9 (7,668) (431)
Impairment of goodwill EER(E 8 26,136 2,287
Impairment of other intangible Hihfm & ERE
assets 8 26,866 -
Operating cash flows before working & & & 28512
capital changes AR S M 314,508 273,917
Decrease in inventories 7 &R 278,529 81,604
Decrease/(increase) in trade fEWE B R IER D
receivables (&) 20,670 (17,027)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, Re TEHAFIEREM
prepayments and other JIE Wk T8 R 4>
receivables (3Em) 78,850 (29,939)
Increase in loan receivables FE U B SR8 A0 (90,000) >
(Decrease)/increase in A %%ﬁ(lﬁ
trade payables (R 9\)/ (36,418) 7,300
Increase/(decrease) in BRI AER IJ/(H’J )
contract liabilities 87,256 (33,387)
Increase in receipts in advance, TE U FIE - Tu+%%ﬁ K
accrued charges and other H 4 1 5B
payables 30 44,003 3,278
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

=1

E-T--F=-A=+—HILFE

For the year ended 31 March 2021
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
BZE HE
—E-—F —E_ETF
=B=+-—H =A=+—H
LEFE IEEE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FABIT
Cash generated from operations BEXFMBRE 697,398 285,746
Income tax refunded B2 iR B B 15 Fi (6,342) (2,254)
Net cash generated from REEBHMEBREFER
operating activities 691,056 283,492
Cash flows from REZBHZ2HERE
investing activities
Purchase of property, BEWE MBERRME
plant and equipment (31,181) (61,037)
(Increase)/decrease in EEFIRITER
pledged bank deposits (35 i]l])/ﬁ 2 (71,015) 7,114
Proceeds from disposals of i E%% T 2%
property, plant and equipment BT ?:K 1,167 21
Proceeds from disposals of HEREEZMERE
investment in films - 111,648
Proceeds from disposal of & IR REIR B FT1S 3R
equity investment - 59,541
Acquisition of equity investment WERERE (54,663) =
Acquisition of a property Wi kE — B Y EER A A
holding company (13,464) =
Acquisition of investment in films WEREEY X
and television program BEIRE B (33,684) (25,293)
Acquisition of other WERAMELEE
intangible assets - (168,539)
Interest received B U F & 2,271 2,033
Net cash used in REZBHFAREER
investing activities (200,569) (74,512)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

HE_Z-_—F=A=+—HILFE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
BZE HZE
—E-—F —E_ETF
=B=+-—H =A=+—H
WFE IEEE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FABT
Cash flows from financing MEETBHZRERE
activities
Advances (to)/from non-controlling (%F) / k&
interests of subsidiaries o8 A A) 3H B
a2 B (2,934) 6,646
Issuance of ordinary shares TITE B 50,004 =
Capital injection by non-controlling ~ FFEZEEZEIEE
interests 1,786 -
Net proceeds from ] $8 R 4E 25 T 15
convertible bonds R F R 100,000 -
New borrowings raised MIEEE 3,775,666 2,952,850
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (4,175,265) (3,015,363)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHEERE (56,899) (75,053)
Repurchase of the Company’s ACIRN/NEIRA g5 47
own shares - (55,296)
Interest paid BEF & (38,678) (51,157)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENHEERERNE (25,666) (30,975)
Net cash used in from financing BEEFBRAREEE
activities (371,986) (268,348)
Net increase/(decrease) in ReRBALEEERA
cash and cash equivalents m CRd) #E 118,501 (69,368)
Cash and cash equivalents REAZHER
at beginning of year HEeEEER 116,049 185,241
Effect of foreign exchange ExgnovE B8
rate changes, net 11,990 (9,824)
Cash and cash equivalents RERZEERES
at end of year, comprising FEEB BFERTR
cash at banks and in hand FERS 246,540 116,049
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_ZT-_—HF=A=+—HILHFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2021

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAEEAER
Fair value
eserve Non-
Share Share Capital Special  Contributed  Exchange Other  Statutory (non- Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve  recycling) eamnings Total interest equity
AMERE

ka  RGEE  AABE  HRIRE  MARR  JERE  EMBRE  ERGR (TURM)  REEA At FEkEE  EReE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
Tén  TEn  TRn TR AT TR TEr  TEr  TEn  TEn  TEn  TET TR

t 1 April 2019 RZB-NEMA-A 9999 1,573,808 3,508 (36,810) 366,756 3,941 7,283 12805 (703,137) 1,139,484 2,366,637 6,557 2,373,194

Changes in equity in 2020
Profit for the year

= = = = = = = = = 30,283 30,283 (4278) 26,005

Other comprehensive income

- Exchange differences on
translation of financial statements
of foreign operations = = - - - (98,662) - - - - (98,662) (91) (98,753)

- Change in fair value of equity
investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

recognised during the year - - - - - - - - (242,240 - (242,240 - (242,240
Total comprehensive income for the year FEE2EMALE - - - - - (98,662) - - (242,240) 30,283 (310,619) (4,369)  (314,988)
Transfer upon disposal of financial HERDAEF AR ZERAZ

assets at fair value through SHEER 2%%

other comprehensive income: - - - - - - - - 187,696 (187,696) - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTEERRE - - - - - - - 217 - 217) = = =
Repurchase of shares BRRH (412) - - - (54,884) - - - - - (65,296) - (65,296)

At 31 March 2020

9,587 1,573,808 3,508 (36,810) 300872 (04,721) 7,283 13,022 (757,681) 981,854 2,000,722 2,188 2,002,910
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

BT - —4F=A=+—HBHItHFE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARAAES
Fair value  Convertible
reserve bonds Non-
Share Share Capital Special Contributed  Exchange Other  Statutory (non- equity  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve  recycling) reserve  earnings Total interest equity
MhERE TERES
RE  REEE EARE  KEBE  MARR  JERE  EfBE  ERE (FTRE) EERRE  REEA A FEREE EEAE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
iR T TEn TEn Tz TEn TEn T TEn TEn iR T T#n TEn
t 1 April 2020 RZF-RFNA-A 9,587 1,573,808 3,508 (36,810) 300,872 (94,721) 7,283 13,022 (757,681) - 981,854 2,000,722 2,188 2,002,910
Changes in equity in 2021
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - - 37,521 31,521 250 3,111
Other comprehensive income
- Exchange differences on
translation of financial statements
of foreign operations - - - - - 133,676 - - - - - 133,676 17 133,793
- Change in fair value of equity
investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income
recognised during the year - - - - - - - - 341,019 - - 341,019 - 34,019
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 133,676 - - 341,019 - 37,521 512,022 367 512,589
Capital injection by non-controlling
interest - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,786 1,786
Issuance of shares through placement 637 49,367 - - - - - - - - - 50,004 - 50,004
Receipt of convertiole bonds - - - - - - - - - 18,699 - 18,699 - 18,699
Conversion of convertible bonds 720 89,340 - - - - - - - (16,752) - 73,308 - 73,308
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - - - - 533 - - (533) - - -
At 31 March 2021 RZ% =f=1-H 10944 1,712,515 3,508 (36,810) 300,872 38,055 7,283 13,555 (416,662) 1947 1,018,848 2,654,055 434 2,659,296
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Notes to the Financial Statements

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

144

GENERAL

Sparkle Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of
its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal place of business
is in Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are distributorships of luxury goods
and automobiles, provision of after-sales services, provision
of property management services, provision of property rental
services, provision of money lending services, and film related
business including development and investment in films and
television program. The Group’s operations are mainly based
in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the Company does not have immediate holding
company and ultimate holding company. The Directors regard
the Company does not have ultimate controlling party.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASSs”)
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
consolidated financial statements also include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair value.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

CEEES

RAEMBHRRIRBEELGTMAER
BB EEY B REED B
S EAIRRE (TXRBES [BERME
BEER ) URBERRRIZHER
ERB-HEEMBRRNEEH R AE
FEMARA ([ EWRA) 2 @RWER

TE °

AR HMRTIRE SR AEERFS
WERARBHEZREVERETSM
T AR

EFRIR ERERCMBERREAE
SRt REBRR -BEZFMHE IR
BEEEHBEASHRITS I&ETHF
RAEEL EERERRR LG EZL
EHETAMHA- S RERH B NEH
BEZ&GE ABEXMEFHEREE
MBEBEMEBEANZEE-

REMBHRRUABTEY METTR
ARBZNEEE - BRIEXEERA T
AFEBEDENRAASRROZT

fiz -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

(a)

146

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2020

The HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions (early

adopted)

Other than the amendments to HKFRS 3, none of these
new or amended HKFRSs has a material impact on the
Group’s results and financial position for the current or
prior period. The Group has not early applied any new or
amended HKFRSs that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period except for the amendment to HKFRS
16, Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions. Impact on the
applications of these amended HKFRSs are summarised
below.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B &£ BER A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2020 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
introduce an optional concentration test that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The election
to apply the concentration test is made for each
transaction. The concentration test is met if substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is
concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar identifiable assets. If the concentration test is
met, the set of activities and assets is determined not
to be a business. If the concentration test is failed, the
acquired set of activities and assets is further assessed
based on the elements of a business.

The Group elected to apply the amendments
prospectively to acquisitions for which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 April 2020. The Group acquired
100% equity interest on a company which merely
holds a property in Mainland China. The Group
has elected to apply the concentration test to the
acquisition transaction. As the fair value of the gross
assets acquired was substantially concentrated in the
properties, this subsidiary was determined not to be
a business. Accordingly, the Group did not apply the
acquisition method to the acquisition of this subsidiary.

3. RMBERUBREER ()

(a)

RAFI RNEBITEBUBERS
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£X(E)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

— = —
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—F#=H=+—H 31 March 2021

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

148

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2020 (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (early adopted)

HKFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical
expedient to lessees in accounting for rent concessions
arising as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, by
including an additional practical expedient in HKFRS
16 that permits entities to elect not to account for rent
concessions as modifications. The practical expedient
applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of Covid-19 pandemic and only if all of the
following criteria are satisfied:

(@) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

(o) the reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may
be accounted for in accordance with this practical
expedient, which means the lessee does not need
to assess whether the rent concession meets the
definition of lease modification. Lessees shall apply other
requirements of HKFRS 16 in accounting for the rent
concession.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2020 (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (early adopted) (Continued)

Accounting for rent concessions as lease modifications
would have resulted in the Group remeasuring the
lease liability to reflect the revised consideration using
a revised discount rate, with the effect of the change
in the lease liability recorded against the right-of-use
asset. By applying the practical expedient, the Group is
not required to determine a revised discount rate and
the effect of the change in the lease liability is reflected
in profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concession occurs.

The Group has elected to utilise the practical expedient
for all rent concessions that meet the criteria. In
accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group
has applied the amendment retrospectively, and has
not restated prior period figure. As the rent concessions
have arisen during the current financial period, there
is no retrospective adjustment to opening balance of
retained earnings at 1 April 2020 on initial application of
the amendment.

3. RMBERUBREER ()

RAFI RNEBITEBUBERS
B -R-F_FFMA—H
£X(E)

BERBHEERE165 2 55T
20197k 5 & 5 16 B8 16 % & 6l |
(LBEHH) (&)

i # 7H & M SHETH E BT AR
HERAREEREEFTRRERE
A EHERE ARREETR
B TEFEREEELKHEERRE
By mBERAZERER
TE AEEBTEERLETRA
X MHEERBEZPIFENEE
BEM SRR SRR
BamRPRER-

AEECEBHMANE KT ZH
ERRERERERE AEH
ERBBEMEGCENERAER]
WESIBEHE BT AR HE
SRBMION AT BRAREL - #@R
I RERTR Y EAR —FT—
TENA—B2RE BB E R
tEHEHFHE -

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A 1 49

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3



Br RS Rk T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

130

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued and are potentially relevant to the Group’s
operations but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current
intention is to apply these changes on the date they
become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as
and HK Interpretation 5
(2020) “Presentation of Financial

Current or Non-current” and

Statements - Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause™

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction®

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use®

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 20212

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts
- Cost of Fuffilling a Contract®
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework*
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, - Phase 2!
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020°

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

3 Effective for business combinations for which the date of

acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

152

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation

5 (2020), Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period,
specify that classification is unaffected by expectations
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability and explain that rights are in
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period. The amendments also introduce a
definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services.

HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The
revision to HK Int 5 (2020) updates the wordings in the
interpretation to align with the Amendments to HKAS
1 with no change in conclusion and do not change the
existing requirements.

The Directors do not anticipate that these application of
the amendments and revision in the future will have an
impact on the financial statements.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 43§

3. RMBERUBREER (&)

(b)

EHEMGEERERZHTER
MEBEENSEEMBERSE
R ZERT (&)

EBEEREIRZIET[#
EERBERREBEFREUAR
EBRBESH (—FE_-FF)
T BHREXZZI-BEHAH =
BEHREREEGAZEHESZ
7 &/

ZEERERABNENREHR
FHEZENDBRARIAIFRED -
WHBAIPBIXEBRERTEH
CEGEHAB RN ZENTE
I 5B i R #R 5 HIR B <7 22 - #E
MENEFHE A FERTMSIATE
BIZES PAREHEABE RS
A BRATAE HibEEXRS
BREXSHTF-

BEREESR (ZZ_2F)AE
—E_FTE)\ARMIEEGFE
AIE15E 2 BRI T IAER] - K&
RIEEREESR (—T_TF)E
MRBZARA UNeBBEg £
AIFESR 2 ERT] - MRS T TR T
CRERBMRE-

EXEFEMAARERAZFETREL
BT EHMBRRERTE -



Br RS Rk T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The amendments to Disclosure of Accounting
Policies were issued following feedback that more
guidance was needed to help companies decide what
accounting policy information should be disclosure. The
amendments to HKAS 1 require companies to disclosure
their material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies. The amendments to
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide guidance on how
to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures.

The Directors are currently assessing the impact that the
application of the amendments will have on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments introduce a new definition for
accounting estimates: clarifying that they are monetary
amounts in the financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty.

The amendments also clarify the relationship between
accounting policies and accounting estimates by
specifying that a company develops an accounting
estimate to achieve the objective set out by an
accounting policy.

The Directors are currently assessing the impact that the
application of the amendments will have on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

154

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exemption so that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences.

The Directors are currently assessing the impact that the
application of the amendments will have on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before
Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds
from selling items produced while bringing that asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, the proceeds from selling such items, and the
cost of producing those items, is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Directors are currently assessing the impact that the
application of the amendments will have on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

The 2021 Amendment to HKFRS 16 extends the
availability of the practical expedient in paragraph 46A
of HKFRS 16 so that it applies to rent concessions for
which any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022,
provided that the other conditions for applying the
practical expedient are met.

The Directors are currently assessing the impact that the
application of the amendments will have on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts -
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a
contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can
either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g. direct labour and materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.qg.
the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract).

The Directors are currently assessing the impact that the
application of the amendments will have on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

156

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement that,
for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an acquirer
applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the acquisition
date a present obligation exists as a result of past
events. For a levy that would be within the scope of
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 to determine whether the obligating event that
gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by
the acquisition date. The amendments also add an
explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise
contingent assets acquired in a business combination.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of
the amendments in the future will have an impact on the
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting when a company replaces the old
interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark
rate as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform
(the “Reform”). The amendments complement those
issued in November 2019 and relate to (a) changes
to contractual cash flows in which an entity will not
have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount
of financial instruments for changes required by the
Reform, but will instead update the effective interest
rate to reflect the change to the alternative benchmark
rate; (b) hedge accounting in which an entity will
not have to discontinue its hedge accounting solely
because it makes changes required by the Reform, if the
hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria; and (c)
disclosures in which an entity will be required to disclose
information about new risks arising from the Reform and
how it manages the transition to alternative benchmark
rates.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of
the amendments in the future will have an impact on the
financial statements.
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

158

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amend a number of
standards, including:

° HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, which permit a
subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of HKFRS
1 to measure cumulative translation differences
using the amounts reported by its parent, based on
the parent’s date of transition to HKFRSs.

° HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify the
fees included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph
B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing whether to
derecognise a financial liability, explaining that only
fees paid or received between the entity and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the
entity or the lender on other’s behalf are included.

° HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend lllustrative
Example 13 to remove the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives are
illustrated in that example.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of
these improvements in the future will have an impact on
the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated.

4.1 Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations using
the acquisition method when the acquired set of
activities and assets meets the definition of a business
and control is transferred to the Group. In determining
whether a particular set of activities and assets is a
business, the Group assesses whether the set of assets
and activities acquired includes, at a minimum, an input
and substantive processes and whether the acquired set
has the ability to produce outputs.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

160

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (a2 maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition
date. All other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to owners of the Company. Profit
or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests
even if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control of the subsidiary are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amount of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

162

4.1

4.2

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for on the same basis as
would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FESTHRBE (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.3 Non-controlling interests 4.3 FERER

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity owners of
the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position depending
on the nature of the liability.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

164

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.4 Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
HK$ at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations, are
translated into HK$ at the closing foreign exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:
Land and buildings Remaining lease terms
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 10 years
Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years
The assets’ estimated residual values, depreciation
methods and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance
are charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

4, TESHHERE 2)

4.5 YR BBERRE

W~ W Rs MR IR AR R ET T
ERERIREBRIIK - ME #
BRRBARBZKANBEYE #
BERREHZBEBUNRERARESR
EEBHE R 2 BRI R R
B & EAE 2 A

BRERHERES CBHEROER
BREFREAHER ZRADER
ZEZZRETE INBREXHLE
EREBRRARER-

ME - HE R RBITERATER
A R R AN BR A ET RIEREE (40
B)& AESESE UHMEY
X Has MEREAA

T RIEF R N H A
R KB R 3E104
RE 455

B AR EE T EER
fi st T P4 B 5 3R 45 HISRAR 8T -
W R TR % -

HIRRAME L BLIA B AARE 2 KRR
BN SR A R AR E - 3 AE
A EREAKRAZBERT
FRIABEZRESRAER B
VEE(RERBRME) A
HMAA (Mg kfRE)REE
Z BB ERSERME -

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A 1 65

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3



Br RS Rk T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

— = —

=

—F#=H=+—H 31 March 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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4.6

Intangible assets

()

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities exceed the aggregate of the fair value
of consideration paid, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated
to each of the relevant cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable
amount, and whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 43§

4, TESHHEBE 2)

46 EFREE

()

A&

HA B EERABZARL
EBLENRKEZRRE"
IR UL B 77 2 (E 1] SE 4% A
2 &8 M UE T e Al B
REEBETRERKERE 22
REZEE RBLEDE
EfMENEERERDE

=7
s ©

BB ER AR ERB R
B RETRERNR BB
MELAZEEBEDEERH
BN BT E & 1 R R st
ZRERMBRECELE M-
ReELEUNELRER
AKBLEBINEMEE
HEEMRNZEERA) 2R
NRAIBAEERG B R
BE/REELEUETFE
BEBETERAENKE S
BAFRE TREHRAE
N BB AT B L ER R (B ORI
RAE



Br RS Rk T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.6

Intangible assets (Continued)

()

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the
other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However,
the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce
the individual asset’s carrying amount to below
its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable)
or its value in use (if determinable), whichever is
the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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4.

168

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.6 Intangible assets (Continued)
(ii) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible asset with finite useful lives is
amortised from the date it is available for use and
its estimated useful life is as follows:

Trademark 10 years

Customers’ list from Over the term of
property management contracts
contracts

Flim rights Over the circulation period

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

4.7 Financial instruments

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4, TESHHERE 2)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued) 47 £®MIA (&)

Financial assets (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
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within the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are MEERARITETAZEREER
considered in their entirely when determining whether ETHRERERTHABRAEIHA

their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

170

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the
business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at
FVTOCI, as described above, debt instruments may
be designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FESTHRBE (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued) 47 £®MIA (&)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVTOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in
fair value, dividends and interest income are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on trade receivables and financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are
measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12-month
ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the reporting
date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result
from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

172

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables and contract assets using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-month ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that a more lagging default
criteria is more appropriate.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90
days past due or unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that a more lagging default
criteria is more appropriate.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non-credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially measured at
fair value and financial liabilities at amortised costs are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly attributable
costs incurred.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

174

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is recognised in
profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain
both the liability and conversion option components are
classified separately into their respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the bonds into equity, is
included in equity (convertible bonds equity reserve).
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible bonds equity reserve until the
embedded option is exercised (in which case the
balance stated in convertible bonds equity reserve will
be transferred to share capital and share premium.
Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry
dates, the balance stated in convertible bonds equity
reserve will be released to the retained earnings. No gain
or loss is recognised upon conversion or expiration of
the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised
over the period of the convertible bonds using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

176

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to
a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability,
the equity instruments issued are the consideration
paid and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the equity
instruments issued cannot be reliably measured, the
equity instruments are measured to reflect the fair value
of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or
part thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.8

4.9

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of automobiles, watches,
jewelleries and fine wines included in the inventories are
determined using the first-in, first-out method while the
other inventories with different nature are determined
using the weighted average basis.

Films under production include production costs,
costs of services, direct labour costs, facilities and
raw materials consumed in the creation of films. Upon
completion and available for commercial exploitation,
these films under production are reclassified as film.
Films under production are accounted for on a project-
by-project basis and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose
of cash flows presentation, cash and cash equivalents
include bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Leases

178

The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting policy
choices exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i)
leases which are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for
which the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group
has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which
at the commencement date have a lease term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is recognised at cost and would
comprise:

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability);

(i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(i) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset to
the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property, the Group measures the right-
of-use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost
model, the Group measures the right-to-use at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liability.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
that are held for rental or capital appreciation purpose
under HKAS 40 and are carried at fair value. For right-
of-use asset that meets the definition of a leasehold land
and buildings held for own use, they are carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
losses. Other than the above right-of-use assets, the
Group also has leased a number of properties under
tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class of
asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings which
is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements
are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

180

4.10 Leases (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the

underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid

at the commencement date of the lease are considered

to be lease payments:

(1)

(if)

fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an
option to terminate the lease.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4, TESHHERE 2)

4.10 Leases (Continued) 410 AE (&)

Lease liability (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by:

(i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease liability;

(i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made, and

(i)  remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of
any lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the
probability of a lessee extension or termination option
being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the
lease liability to reflect the payments to make over the
revised term, which are discounted using a revised
discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities is
similarly revised when the variable element of future
lease payments dependent on a rate or index is revised,
except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both
cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying
value of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying
amount being amortised over the remaining (revised)
lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is
recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Leases (Continued)

182

Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms
of a lease with the lessor, if the renegotiation results
in one or more additional assets being leased for an
amount commensurate with the standalone price for
the additional rights-of-use obtained, the modification
is accounted for as a separate lease, in all other cases,
where the renegotiated increases the scope of the lease
(whether that is an extension to the lease term, or one
or more additional assets being leased), the lease liability
is remeasured using the discount rate applicable on
the modification date, with the right-of-use asset being
adjusted by the same amount. With the exception to
which the practical expedient for Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions applies (see note 3(a)), if the renegotiation
results in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both the
carrying amount of the lease liability and right-of-use
asset are reduced by the same proportion to reflect the
partial or full termination of the lease with any difference
recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability is then
further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount reflects
the amount of the renegotiated payments over the
renegotiated term, with the modified lease payments
discounted at the rate applicable on the modification
date and the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same
amount.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the leased assets to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts
for the head lease and the sub-lease as two separate
leases. The sub-lease is classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease.

The Group has leased out its investment property to a
number of tenants. Rental income from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Amounts due from leases under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

184

4.10 Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Any changes in the scope of the consideration of a lease
that was not part of the original terms and conditions
of the lease are accounted for as lease modifications.
The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, recognising the remaining lease payments
as income on a either a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the remaining lease term.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.12

4.13

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

- provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

- creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

- does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

186

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the
Group and the customer at contract inception.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For contracts where
the period between the payment and the transfer of
the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sales of automobile

Revenue arising from the sales of automobile is
recognised at the point in time when the customer
obtains control of the automobile. Factors to determine
when the customers obtain control of automobile include
issuance of registration document, full payments have
been made and the goods have been delivered to and
accepted by the customers.

Sales of other merchandised goods

Revenue arising from the sales of other merchandised
goods represents the net invoiced value of goods sold,
after allowances for returns, trade discounts and value
added tax and is recognised at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

188

Services income

Revenue arising from the services is recognised over
time as these service are provided.

Revenue from provision of after-sales services is
recognised over time as these services are provided.

Revenue from the provisions of property management
service are recognised over the scheduled period on
a straight-line basis because the property owners and
customers simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from the provision of catering service are
recognised over time when the related services have
been rendered to the customers.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
on a time proportion basis in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.

Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.13

4.14

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method. Interest income is
recognised as it accrues by using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost, i.e. the gross
carrying amount, net of loss allowance of the asset.

Dividend income

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.15

4.16

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
related costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it
is recognised as income in equal amounts over the
expected useful life of the related asset.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

- other intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication impairment.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.16 Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.
cash generating unit (‘CGU”)).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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4.

192

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.16 Impairment of other assets (Continued)
Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

4.17 Employee benefits
(a) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Retirement benefits (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
which operate in Mainland China are required
to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a
percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as employees render services
during the year. The Group’s obligations under
these plans are limited to the fixed percentage
contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

194

(c) Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-
based compensation plans for remuneration of
its employees. All employee services received
in exchange for the grant of any share-based
compensation are measured at their fair values.
These are indirectly determined by reference to
the equity instruments awarded. Their value is
appraised at the grant date and excludes the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period
if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the
compensation qualifies for recognition as asset,
with a corresponding increase in the share option
reserve in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the
expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of equity instruments that are
expected to vest. Estimates are subsequently
revised, if there is any indication that the number
of equity instruments expected to vest differs from
previous estimates.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Share-based employee compensation
(Continued)

At the time when the share options have exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve is transferred to share premium. After
vesting date, when the vested share options have
forfeited or still have not been exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve is transferred to contribute
surplus.

4.18 Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and assets
and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or
liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.18 Income taxes (Continued)

196

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be
recovered.

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at
fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
the economic benefits embodied in the property over
time, rather than through sale.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.18 Income taxes (Continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or when they
relate to items recognised directly in equity in which
case the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.

4.19 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as
those used in its financial statements prepared under
HKFRSs, except bank interest income, interest income
from investments, debt securities and loan receivables,
income tax expense, finance costs, share of loss of an
associate, gain on deemed disposal of investment in an
associate and other corporate income and expenses
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not included
in arriving at the operating results of the operating
segment.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.19

4.20

198

Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment assets exclude financial assets at FVTOCI and
other corporate assets which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment are
not allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to
the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude provision for taxation,
deferred tax liabilities and borrowings and other
corporate liabilities which are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment and are
not allocated to a segment.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(@) Has control or joint control over the

Company;

(b) Has significant influence over the Company;
or

(c) Is a member of key management personnel of
the Company or the Company’s parent.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.20 Related parties (Continued)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(a)

The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (i).

A person identifies in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the

parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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4.

200

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.20 Related parties (Continued)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies: (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influence by, that person in their dealings
with the entity and include:

(@) That person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(b)  Children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(c) Dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. BASEEsthstRHE 2
JUDGEMENTS (continueq)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the CGUs to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the directors to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value.

Impairment of other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any indication that other non-
financial assets with definite lives may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the assets. In assessing whether
there is any indication that other non-financial assets
may be impaired, the Group considers indications
from both internal and external sources of information
such as evidence of obsolescence or decline in
economic performance of the assets, changes in market
conditions, economic environment and customers’
tastes. These assessments are subjective and require
management’s judgements and estimations.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The loss allowances for trade and other receivables
are based on assumptions about risk default and ECLs
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period.

(i)

(iii)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. BEASEEsthstRHE 2
JUDGEMENTS (continueq)

202

(iv)

(v)

Provision for inventories

The management reviews the inventories at the end
of each reporting period, and makes allowance for
impairment of obsolete, slow-moving and impaired
items. The management estimates the net realisable
value for such inventories based primarily on the
expected future market conditions and the estimated
selling price. The Group makes allowance for impairment
if the net realisable value is below the carrying amount.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and other jurisdictions in which the
Group operates. Significant management judgement
is required in interpreting the relevant tax rules and
regulations and determining the amount of the provision
for income taxes and the timing of payment of related
taxes. There could have transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain in
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. BASEEsthstRHE 2
JUDGEMENTS (continueq)

(vi)

(vii)

Valuation of financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are revalued by independent
professional qualified valuers at the end of each
reporting period. Such valuations are based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. Any increase
or decrease in the valuations would affect the Group’s
profit or loss in future years.

Amortisation on other intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives. The Group reviews
annually the useful life of these assets and their residual
values, if any. The amortisation expenses for future
periods are adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimation.

(viii) Valuation of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties is determined
using valuation technique. Details of the judgements and
assumptions have been disclosed in Note 18.

(vi)

(vii)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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204

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with internal reporting provided to executive directors of the
Company who are responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments.

The executive directors have identified the following
reportable operating segments:

()  Auto dealership — this segment includes sales of
branded automobiles, namely Bentley, Lamborghini and
Rolls-Royce and provision of related after-sales services.

(i)  Non-auto dealership — this segment includes sales
of branded watches, jewelleries, fine wines, audio
equipment, menswear apparels and accessories, cigars
and smoker’s accessories and silver articles and home
articles.

(i) Property management and others — this segment
includes provision of property management services,
catering services, property rental services and money
lending services; and film related business including
development and investment in films and television
program.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the product and service lines requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches. Inter-segment
transactions, if any, are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar transaction.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuead) 6. oEPER (&)
2021
ZE--F
Property
Auto Non-auto  management
dealership dealership and others Total
} ) ) y NEEE .
RER 8 FREDH REAM &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR TR
Revenue from external customers RENBER 2 Wam 4,076,322 331,020 118,420 4,525,762
Other income, gains and losses HipA Wiz R EE 36,098 8,160 (48,784) (4,526)
Reportable segment revenue AHED Pl 4,112,420 339,180 69,636 4,521,236
Reportable segment results UHREIPEE 230,045 (39,480) (24,220) 166,345
Other segment information: Hit 2 HER
Amortisation of other intangible assets BV EERE - (39) (9,943) (9,982)
Depreciation of property, nE BUERERENE
plant and equipment (46,061) (31,932) (1,445) (79,438)
Unallocated KA (19,682)
(99,120)
Changes in fair value of investment RENEL R AER
properties ) - - (45,630) (45,630)
Changes in fair value of investment in films H& S5 R E/REE 2
and television program AAEED - = (1,004) (1,004)
Written off of other intangible assets i@ & E i - (196) - (196)
Written off of property, plant and equipment #13¢ - 1 &8 & 3% & 84 - (68) = (68)
Write-down of inventories FEMA - (14,770) - (14,770)
Reversal of write-down of inventories B0 77 SR - 7,668 - 7,668
Impairment of goodwill BERNE - - (26,136) (26,136)
Impairment of other intangible assets H B EERE - - (26,866) (26,866)
Reportable segment assets IREIHEE 1,595,965 659,343 1,017,980 3,273,288
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAREFAHMEE
WAZERERE 520,088
Deposits, prepayments and e BARER
other receivables A fth e R E 26,068
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFEAE 28,704
Other corporate assets: HEAREE:
- financial assets —SREE 43,620
- non-financial assets —FEREE 194,384
Consolidated total assets REHBEE 4,086,152
Additions to non-current segment FRREERYHBEE
assets during the year 96,920 149 74 97,143
Unallocated AP 61,511
158,654
Reportable segment liabilities IRESTBEE (530,089) (114,274) (211,789) (856,152)
Borrowings B8 (449,912)
Other corporate liabilities: EARAE
- financial liabilities -SHaR (16,102)
- non-financial liabilities -FERAR (104,690)
Consolidated total liabilities GREEE (1,426,856)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oEPER (&)
2020
it 33
Property
Auto Non-auto  management
dealership dealership and \otpers Total
\ ; NEER .
REDH FEAEDE REAM B3t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TET TET THET THET
Revenue from external customers RENBEP 2 Wz 3,016,171 293,607 133,652 3,443,430
Other income, gains and losses HipA Wz kBB 43,064 19,524 (62,565) 23
Reportable segment revenue TRED Bl 3,059,235 313,131 71,087 3,443,453
Reportable segment results THREIPEE 204,833 (50,497) (5,047) 149,289
Other segment information: At pHEH
Amortisation of other intangible assets EwEVAERE - (79) (9,746) (9,825)
Depreciation of property, ME BERRENE
plant and equipment (36,440) (38,802) (5,516) (80,758)
Unallocated AAR (24,062)
(104,820)
Changes in fair value of investment REMELANER
properties ‘ - - (35,368) (35,368)
Changes in fair value of investment in films X EEF REREE 2
and television program RAERY - - (27,207) (27,207)
Written off of property, ME BEREEME
plant and equipment i 1) 2) (678) (681)
Write-down of inventories HFEMR - (1,701) - (1,701)
Reversal of write-down of inventories BEFEHH - 431 = 431
Impairment of goodwill HERE - - (2,287) (2,287)
Reportable segment assets THREIHEE 1,669,534 601,151 969,967 3,240,652
Financial assets at FVTOCI BRAREHALBEE
WAZEREE 124,406
Deposits, prepayments and e BHETER
other receivables A it YA 27,363
Cash at banks and in hand BORTERE 6,011
Other corporate assets: EpAREE:
- financial assets -SHEE 11,866
- non-financial assets -FeREE 186,760
Consolidated total assets GRBEE 3,597,058
Additions to non-current segment FRRBHRYNHEE
assets during the year 187,694 160,821 660,944 1,009,459
Unallocated AAE 4,389
1,013,848
Reportable segment liabilities ﬂiﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ 356,394 135,975 233,884 726,253
Borrowings EE 755,376
Other corporate liabilities: HEtARGE:
- financial liabilities -TRAE 10,085
- non-financial liabilities -FeRafR 102,484
Consolidated total liabilities GBSk 1,594,148
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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=

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

A reconciliation between the reportable segment results and
the Group’s profit before income tax is as follows:

=

DEE R (&)

ﬁhie& 7 HBR 4B BN B 2 BR TS Al
i Az SRR AT

2021 2020

—E-—fF —E-FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHET T T

Reportable segment results AREDIESE 166,345 149,289
Bank interest income RITH B U A 2,271 2,033
Unallocated corporate income AOB A B A 4,027 3,449
Unallocated corporate expenses FoEBEARER (76,033) (57,120)
Finance costs B & B A (64,486) (82,132)
Profit before income tax B BT 15 74 Bl & A 32,124 15,519

Major customer

During the reporting period, there is no customer with
transactions exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue.

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external
customers and (ii) the Group’s non-current assets other than
financial instruments (“specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the goods were delivered or the services were
provided. The geographical location of goodwill and other
intangible assets is based on the entities’ area of operation
while that of other non-current assets is based on the
physical location of the assets. Management determines that
the Group is domiciled in Mainland China and Hong Kong,
which are the Group’s principal operating locations.

THREINEBAEONEEERBINSEES 2
Was: RiAEEFERDEE (@BITHE
BN ([BEFRRBEE]) HEVEY
BER-BP 2 HIBME HIEEMR sk
RERB IS S BHEREMER
BEZMBANENRER L MEE
o MEMIEREEE 2 MIBUE TR
BEZERMMNE S BEREEETASE
BAuRPREREES (HALEE Y
FELEME) o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oEPER (&)
Major customer (Continued) FEEF (#&)
The geographical analysis of revenue from external customers REINEBE P 2 Wam RIEEIEREEE
and specified non-current assets are as follows: ZHIE DT
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
RENPEFE 2 W& EEERBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--& —E-%F —E--—f& —E2-%F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THT TER THBT
Mainland China and Hong Kong MR RN RER 4,525,762 3,438,831 2,051,969 2,024,713
Malaysia BRI R - 4,599 - 235

4,525,762 3,443,430 2,051,969 2,024,948
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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7. REVENUE

The Group’s principal activities are sale of automobiles and
other merchandised goods and provision of automobile
related after-sales services. Other businesses mainly

W 58

AREE 2 EBERREREME M
EAREHRAERBERRSE -EME
BEREREMREERS - 2RSS

represent income from provision of property management

services, catering services, money lending and property rental

services.

MERYEBERB Z WA

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
Revenue from contracts with REEFEFAEHNZWE:
customers:
Recognised at point in time RBF 2] % a7
Sales of automobiles MEHE 3,998,437 2,909,604
Sales of other merchandised goods — E th i3 i $5 & 331,020 293,607
Recognised over time BE I BT 1R
Provision of after-sales services REERRE 77,885 106,567
Provision of property management 2 it ¥ % & 12 iR 1%
services 35,574 24,229
Provision of catering services R ZE KR - 20,965
Total revenue from contracts RERFAEHZW=BEE
with customers 4,442,916 3,354,972
Revenue from other sources: Hib s R
Interest income from provision of REBER® 2 M B WA
money lending 344 =
Provision of property rental services {2t ¥ SR 82,502 88,458
Total Bt 4,525,762 3,443,430

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A 209
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4§



Br RS Rk T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by

&)

KEEFPAHZWEREBEMIIRS

major product or service lines is as follows: BIFEDAT
2021 2020
—_E_—5F —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiE T FB T
Types of goods or services: EGSREER:
Auto dealership segment MBS 5 E
Sales of automobiles REEE 3,998,437 2,909,604
Provision of after-sales services REEERG 77,885 106,567
4,076,322 3,016,171
Non-auto dealership segment FERE S
Sales of other merchandised goods - th & 7t & 331,020 293,607
Other segment H 75 55
Provision of property MY EEERE
management services 35,574 24,229
Provision of catering services IR E RS - 20,965
Total revenue from contracts KEBEFPEHNZWEBEE
with customers 4,442,916 3,354,972

During the year, HK$4,442,916,000 (2020: HK$3,350,373,000)
revenue from contracts with customers were generated from
Mainland China and Hong Kong. The remaining of HK$nil
(2020: HK$4,599,000) were generated from Malaysia.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HMWA WZzKkERE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Bank interest income RITH B U A 2,271 2,033
Bonus from a supplier RE—BHEFZRE 1,736 =
Changes in fair value of KEMEZ AREE
investment properties (45,630) (35,368)
Changes in fair value of KEEBZLEREGE 2
investment in films and NAEE
television program (1,004) (27,207)
Gain on disposal of films HEBF 2 M - 1,486
(Loss)/gain on disposal of HEWMZE BREIREHEZ
property, plant and equipment (B1E) s (3,315) 4
Gain on lease modification HE ks 8,555 1,669
Government grant (Note) BT w8 B (B E) 702 -
Impairment of goodwill EESEEE (26,136) (2,287)
Impairment of other intangible assets H /i £ 2 & & i (& (26,866) =
Income from advertising, EE BREREMARE KA
exhibitions and other services 19,950 30,749
Income from insurance brokerage R 42 A 21,104 31,482
Loss on derecognition of RILERREME ZEE
investment properties (14,717) =
Rent concessions HE2ER 5,412 =
Others HAth 6,776 3,626
Written off of property, S D - 2SR AR S
plant and equipment (68) (681)
(51,230) 5,506

Note:

During the year, the Group has received financial support from the

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government who set up

the Anti-epidemic Fund under the Employment Support Scheme to

encourage entities to retain their employees who would otherwise be

made redundant. Under the Employment Support Scheme, the Group

is required not to make redundancies during the subsidy period and

to spend all of subsidies on paying salaries.

B o

FAREBEEBEFNTRERFASBEE
RERBERZEEMR L ZRUETE
AEBEBHERNRESBUSH B & - 1RIE
RBLEET 8 AR B A SH R BREEBE
B UWEAKMEEMARINEH -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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9. OPERATING PROFIT

This is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

9. RE&EF

g EMEmMER, (A ATIER :

2021 2020
—E- T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FABIT
Amortisation of other Hih\mp & EHE
intangible assets 9,982 9,825
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN B &
- Audit services — BT RTE 2,300 2,318
— Non-audit services —FEEF R 341 446
Cost of inventories recognised WREEBRAZGFERAEA B
as expenses, including 3,824,862 2,883,545
— Write-down of inventories — 17 E#UR 14,770 1,701
— Reversal of write-down of — 1 Bl 77 & MUR
inventories (7,668) (431)
Depreciation of property, ME BERIEZITE
plant and equipment 99,120 104,820
Exchange differences, net E R FERE (2,693) 11,655
Employee benefit expenses BERAMHAXZ 62,168 71,072
Interest on lease liabilities HEABMNE 25,666 30,975
Impairment of goodwill EESNEAE 26,136 2,287
Impairment of other intangible assets = b % 2 & & &l (& 26,866 =
Lease payments under short FEHMEE 2 MERIE
term leases 323 653
Lease payments under variable Tt AHEAGERFEZ
lease payment not included in AIEMHERIBE 2 HE KA
the measurement of lease
liabilities 7,138 4,155
Written off of other intangible assets #fl $4 £ {th 4 Ji2 & & 196 =
Written off of property, plant and HsE 3 - HeEE R AR E
equipment 68 681
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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10. FINANCE COSTS

10. B & K &<

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiE T FB T
Interest on bank borrowings RITEER S 20,708 24,369
Interest on other loans HaEHF 8 17,970 26,788
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGHNE 25,666 30,975
Imputed interest on convertible bonds 7] # % (& % & 51 71| & 142 =
64,486 82,132

11. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at two-tiered rates on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong at 8.25%
on assessable profits up to HK$2,000,000 and 16.5% on any
part of assessable profits over HK$2,000,000 for the years

ended 31 March 2020 and 2021.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to
income tax at the rate of 25% except that subsidiaries are
entitled to tax exemption for the years ended 31 March 2020

11.

Fi i3

BHz_—_Z—

5%

FEER-_F-_—%=H
_Jr BLEFE - FENF

NS

Fizﬁ%ﬁﬁmmﬂﬁﬁﬁmf
& ERF & F B52,000,0000% JT %

8.25%5T & -
fa] 85>

B=E

i i #82,000,0007% 7T 2 £
J& SR T M R #216.5% =1 & ©

—F-TFER-F-—%=7
=+ — B AR E 2 A
B A AR B R 5% B AR

and 2021. THERRGEERRHNTIIE-
2021 2020
:_vﬁz - ﬂi — 7 — i
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FiE T FB T
Current tax REEHIE
— Income tax of other jurisdictions —HMh el A RSN
Charge for the year KEELH 2,730 2213
Under-provision in prior years BEFEREIR 37 42
Total current tax REFZTHIALARE 2,767 2,255
Deferred tax IR AE T IR (8,420) (12,741)
(5,653) (10,486)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

1. INCOME TAX (Continued)

Reconciliation between income tax and accounting profit at

11. FRB#H (@)

BERANERAEZAEHE

REhiEH 2

applicable tax rates: HHER -
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET T T
Profit before income tax B AT 15 %0 A A 32,124 15,519
Tax calculated at domestic tax & RARER 2 m N E R
rates applicable to profit or loss ERzEMmBE
in the respective jurisdictions ATEZIA 8,210 2,830
Effect of tax exemption granted M A R EREIIE
to subsidiaries ST (16,833) (38,849)
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERBMW R 2 HBZE (2,956) (13,761)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A1 X 2 B G & 4,165 37,955
Tax effect of unused tax losses KRR 2 AE) A fR 18
not recognised BiEZHEE 2,770 1,397
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FRBERERZRIE
previously not recognised BECBBEE (1,046) (100)
Under-provision in prior years BEFEREIR 37 42
(5,653) (10,486)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EEM <
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-_Z-_—F=A=1+—-HLEFE
Retirement
benefit
Directors’ Salaries and Discretionary scheme
fees allowances bonuses contribution Total
RIKEA
Exme HoREM  REBE4L  EMR CEH
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
i TERT TERT TER TR TERT
Executive Directors: HnoEE:
Zheng Hao Jiang BET(BEER) (i

(Co-Chairman) 1,980 62 - 35 2,077
Ma Chao (Co-Chairman) SE(HEER) (i 190 - = 10 200
Zhao Xiaodong HOR(BIER)

(Deputy Chairman) 1,080 62 - 17 1,159
Zhu Lei RE 840 - - - 840
Non-executive Directors: ~ JFE{TEZE:

Qi Jian Wei 2RE 240 - - - 240
Independent non-executive BY FFHITES:

Directors:

Choy Sze Chung, Jojo 2R 240 - - - 240
Lam Kwok Cheong ME & 240 - - - 240
Gao Yu B (i) 240 - - - 240
Liu Honggiang b (i) 240 - - - 240
Liu Xiaoyi L (iv) 106 - - - 106
Lee Thomas Kang Bor ZER ) 232 - - - 232

5,628 124 - 62 5,814
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

216

Ma Chao was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 16 June 2020; and with effect from
8 July 2020, Mr. Ma was appointed as a co-chairman of the
Company. Mr. Ma acts together with Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang, the
existing chairman of the Company, as the co-chairmen of the
Company.

Mr. Gao Yu was a non-executive director, and re-designated
as an independent non-executive director with effect from 10
October 2020.

Mr. Liu Honggiang was a non-executive director, and re-
designated as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 13 November 2020.

Mr. Liu Xiaoyi was appointed as an independent non-executive
director with effect from 22 October 2020.

Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor resigned as an independent non-
executive director on 19 March 2021.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continuead) 12. EEM &€ (2)

Year ended 31 March 2020

BE_ZT_THFE_A=T-HULFE

Retirement
benefit
Directors’  Salaries and  Discretionary scheme
fees allowances bonuses contribution Total
RINTER
EENE  FelkEE BETEA B CHI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FEL FEL FEL FET
Executive Directors: 0TES:
Zheng Hao Jiang BETL (FRFTREH)
(Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer) 1,980 60 - 44 2,084
Zhao Xiaodong BIR (BERRELEHR)
(Deputy Chairman and
Chief Operating Officer) 1,080 60 - 26 1,166
Zhu Lei x5 840 - - - 840
Non-executive Directors: FRTEES:
Gao Yu BE 240 - - - 240
Qi Jian Wei 2R 240 - - - 240
Liu Hong Qiang ElpN
(Appointed on (RZZZ%
21 February 2020) ZAZtT—-BEZf) 26 - - - 26
Independent non-executive B EHTEE:
Directors:
Choy Sze Chung, Jojo =g 240 - - = 240
Lam Kwok Cheong HE & 240 - - - 240
Lee Thomas Kang Bor FHER 240 - - - 240
5,126 120 = 70 5,316
During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2021, no REZE_ZT_TFER=-_T=_—F=H

emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors as

an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement

under which a director has waived or agreed to waive any

emoluments.

=T —BLEFEAR AEEILEREM
EEZNBE AERMAREBSR N
ARSEE 2 REVRERBER 2 /E-
BMESERECALHFRELRERE
EaE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

13. EEEAAX

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiE T FB T
Employee costs, including BEKA BREZME
directors’ emoluments 54,765 55,091
Contributions to retirement RIKAE B 5T 8 4 K
benefits scheme 7,403 15,981
Total employee costs EEK AL 62,168 71,072
(a) Five highest paid individuals (a EEEEHFAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2020: two) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 12 above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining three (2020: three)
individuals during the year were as follows:

EARELEREHEALT BME
—ECTFE MB)R/ARAE
= REZHEER X128
B-FRARNEHKH=%R(=ZT_F
F:=B)ALZB20T:

2021 2020

—E-— & ZTEZEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T TFETT

Salaries and other benefits e hHMamEF 3,004 3,811
Retirement benefit scheme RAKAE F 5T 84 5K

contributions 74 92

3,078 3,903
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 13. EER®AMX (2)

(a) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (a EEEEHAL(E)
The emoluments payable to the non-director highest ERFEETSHFATZHMESN T
paid individuals fell within the following bands: THIAE R
2021 2020
—_E-—£F —_E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT T
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/% 7T 2 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T =
1,500,0007% 7T 1 S
3 3
14. DIVIDEND 14. R 2
No dividend was paid, declared or proposed by the Company ARARWEREBEE T _ZTFE_F

in respect of the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2021.

——F=ZA=1T-HLEFERN FK
SRR EARE -

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. BIR &R
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share AAREBEZEBEABGEERERR
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is BERF TR AT SRR E
based on the following data:
2021 2020
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAIT
Earnings ZF|
Earnings for the purposes of RARETEERERREF 2
basic earnings per share ”ﬂ 37,527 30,283
Effect of dilutive potential BEBRELTARZIEE:
ordinary shares:
Imputed interest on convertible bonds — A] # % & %5 2 fE 5+ K] 8 142 =

Earnings for the purposes of
diluted earnings per share

ARETEEREERT 2
& T 37,669 30,283

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A 21 9
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continuea)

15. BRR &R (&)

2021
—_E-—£F
HK$’000
FERT

2020

—_E-F
HK$’000
FET
(Re-presented)
(#£&E5))

Number of shares

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares for the purposes of

basic earnings per share
Effect of dilutive potential
ordinary shares:
— Convertible bonds issued by
the Company

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares for the purposes of

calculating diluted earnings
per share

BH#E
Rt BEEBREANRFZ
jt 38 i hn 15 £
1 58 S/ .
—ARRAEITZ AR
EE2

AR ESRESARN
BB N T 15 8

Basic earnings per share for year ended 31 March 2020 are

re-presented to reflect the bonus element of the placing of

shares during the year.

The Company did not have any potential ordinary shares

outstanding during the year ended 31 March 2020.

Accordingly, diluted earnings per share are equal to basic

earnings per share.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

As at 31 March 2020 and 2021,

—E-—%=H=+—H 31 March 2021
16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - MBRZHE
Furniture,
Land and fixtures and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
TREF HERRB AE G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAET TAET TAT
At 1 April 2019 R-ZE-hAEMA—A
Cost KA 967,338 271,074 19,753 1,258,165
Accumulated depreciation ZFMERRE
and impairment (12,272) (168,364) (11,903) (192,539)
Net carrying amount REFE 955,066 102,710 7,850 1,065,626
Year ended 31 March 2020 HE-Z-%F
SA=t-RLEE
Opening net carrying amount ENEREFE 955,066 102,710 7,850 1,065,626
Exchange differences R (51,284) (25,472) (612) (77,368)
Additions INE 64,094 52,005 9,032 125,131
Written off g - (681) - (681)
Disposals LE - (17) = (17)
Modification of leases HEER] (62,425) - - (652,425)
Depreciation e (74,910) (28,113) (1,797) (104,820)
Closing net carrying amount EXREHEFHE 840,541 100,432 14,473 955,446
At 31 March 2020 and R= %iﬁ A= + BR
1 April 2020 =t =t - ﬁlﬁ
Cost EX\ o 935,377 276,035 32,736 1,244,148
Accumulated depreciation and ~ ZitHE RIR{E
impairment (94,836) (175,603) (18,263) (288,702)
Net carrying amount REFE 840,541 100,432 14,473 955,446
Year ended E_E--%
31 March 2021 ZSA=t-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount EOREFE 840,541 100,432 14,473 955,446
Exchange differences & = 69,648 8,496 1,143 79,287
Additions NE : 59,346 21,653 9,528 90,527
Acquisition of a property holding Ui — B ¥ E 2R A 7]
company 13,464 = = 13,464
Written off a8 - (1) (67) (68)
Disposals HE = (4,482) = (4,482)
Modification of leases HEBE (13,762) - - (13,762)
Depreciation e (64,933) (30,752) (3,435) (99,120)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFRE 904,304 95,346 21,642 1,021,292
At 31 March 2021 R-B--%=A=+-H
Cost / .y 1,027,104 300,657 44,207 1,371,968
Accumulated depreciation and ~ EiH I E LAE
impairment (122,800) (205,311) (22,565) (350,676)
Net carrying amount EEEE 904,304 95,346 21,642 1,021,292

the Group’s land

and buildings with carrying amount of approximately
HK$693,818,000 were pledged as securities for the Group’s
borrowing facilities (Note 31).

N _EFERZTF—F=A=+—
H - 7N & B BRH © 58 49693,818,000/% 7T
Z T REFEEREATEEBER
B 2R (FiaE31) ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—%=H=+—H 31 March 2021
17. LEASE 17. A&
(a) The Group as lessee (a) AEBEEHBEBAA
The Group has lease contracts for building, office AEEFBEREFT WOAE RM
premises, bounded warehouses, showrooms and EE -BEKTEEFEZHESY-
retail stores. Lump sum payments were made upfront RUEEREAREME ([HE])
to acquire the interests in the leasehold land in the AE i s B —Rk
People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”). Leases of office - MAREZHE—RITEN
buildings generally have lease terms ranging from two to TREE+RF2HEE ABRERN
fifteen years and lease payments are fixed over the lease MEFIEEE -
terms.
Certain leases of office buildings have lease terms of 12 BETHAKNERE 2 A12(E
months or less and the Group did not capitalised these AT HASEERAREHESE
leases by applying the short-term lease recognition HREHE WESZSHERTE
exemption. PN
(i)  Right-of-use assets (i) EAREZE
The movements of the carrying amounts of the rEBGAREECKRES
Group’s right-of-use assets during the year are set BRENZEBHINWT
out below:
Prepaid lease
payment Buildings Total
ENHE
MIE BF &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T
At 1 April 2019 RZZE—hFENMA—H 582,165 241,188 823,353
Additions NE - 64,094 64,094
Depreciation expense nEEH (16,417) (54,769) (71,186)
Modification of leases HEBE] - (52,425) (52,425)
Exchange differences fEH =% (37,806) (5,262) (43,068)
As at 31 March 2020 RZZEZTEF=A=+—HK
and 1 April 2020 —E_ZTFWA—H 527,942 192,826 720,768
Additions NE - 59,346 59,346
Depreciation expense mEER (16,794) (43,874) (60,668)
Modification of leases HEEET - (18,762) (13,762)
Exchange differences &5 ZE5E 43,395 15,950 59,345
As at 31 March 2021 R-ZB—_—F=H=+—H 554,543 210,486 765,029
222  SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 5% B AR A F
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

17. LEASE (continued)

(@) The Group as lessee (Continued)
(i) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s right-of-use
assets in respect of leasehold land with carrying
amount of approximately HK$554,543,000 (2020:
HK$527,942,000) were pledged to secure certain
bank loans granted to the Group.

(ii) Lease liabilities

17.

HE(#)
(a) AEEEBEBA(H)
() RFAELE (&)

R-_BE-—F=/A=+—
H ASBEEEREE SR
49554,543,000/8 7L (= Z —
T4 527,942,000 L) &
BHELT 2 FRAEEE -
DERSAEEER 2E TR
TE

(i) HEBE

2021 2020

—E- T T

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T T

As at 1 April REA—H 384,384 479,401
New leases Mg 59,346 64,094
Interest expense MEER 25,666 30,975
Lease payment HERIE (62,311) (75,053)
Interest payment PSR EEN (25,666) (30,975)
Modification of leases HEEE (22,317) (54,094)
Exchange differences EH E%R 31,444 (29,964)
As at 31 March M=A=+—8H 390,546 384,384

Classified under: DR

Non-current portion FEMBNEB 340,792 328,878
Current portion mE) a8 49,754 55,506
390,546 384,384
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—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

17. LEASE (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

17. A& (&)

(a) The Group as lessee (Continued) (a) ZNEBEEREBEA(E)
(i) Lease liabilities (Continued) (i) HEEE(E)
Future lease payments are due as follows: RIREE B 2 B HR 1B a0
T
Minimum
lease
payments Interest Present value
B €70 % 50H e R
31 March 31 March 31 March
2021 2021 2021
—_E_-_—=F —E_—5F —_E_—5F
=H=+—-H =ZHA=+—-H =ZHBA=+-—H
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT & T & T
Not later than one NER—F
year 74,355 (24,601) 49,754
Later than one year ZR—FEBRTZHNH
and not later than
two years 70,794 (21,035) 49,759
Later than two years ZRMEBTZRE
and not later
than five years 147,721 (47,904) 99,817
Later than five years %R AF 230,014 (38,798) 191,216
522,884 (132,338) 390,546

224
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

17. LEASE (continued)

17. A& (&)

(a) The Group as lessee (Continued) (a) XNEBEEREBEA(E)
(i) Lease liabilities (Continued) (i) HEEE(E)
Minimum
lease
payments Interest  Present value
KK ERIE ME RE
31 March 31 March 31 March
2020 2020 2020
—T_EF —T_EF —E_EF
ERET—B ZEF=ET—EB ZEFET—E
HK$ HK$ HK$
T BT 78T
Not later than one TR —F
year 80,067 (24,561) 55,506
Later than one year ZR—FEBLNEZRWE
and not later than
two years 68,236 (20,774) 47,462
Later than two years ZHRMEEBTZRAEF
and not later
than five years 180,588 (567,946) 122,642
Later than five years Z R EE 193,227 (34,453) 158,774
522,118 (137,734) 384,384

(iii)

Information in relation to exemption of

(iii) EEHFEEEMBEHEER

HKFRS16 lease: E165 [HE | 2&E#
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET T T
Short term lease expenses EHEERY 323 653
Variable lease payments not rEHEaERTE
included in the measurement STAZ A ERIE
of lease liabilities 7,138 4,155
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

18.

226

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REW %
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FATT

Fair value NI

At beginning of the year REF] 408,462 478,990
Changes in fair value NREEE (45,630) (35,368)
Derecognition I ETERR (14,717) =
Exchange differences EH E%R 31,883 (35,160)
At end of the year RERXR 379,998 408,462

All investment properties of the Group are situated in

Mainland China and held under medium lease terms.

The Group measured the deferred tax relating to the

temporary differences of these investment properties using

the tax rates and the tax bases that are consistent with the

expected manner of recovery of these investment properties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18. REW =X (%)

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021 by CHFT Advisory
And Appraisal Limited (“CHFT”), an independent firm of
professional surveyors, on an open market value basis. The
fair value measurement is disclosed in Note 41.7(i) to the
financial statements.

The fair value of the investment property is under level 3 fair
value hierarchy.

Fair value is determined by applying the income approach,
using the term and reversion method, based on the estimated
rental value of the property. The valuation takes account the
significant adjustment on term yield to account for the risk
upon reversionary and the estimation in vacancy rate after
expiry of current lease.

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs:

EHATGERAR ([Ey] Bz
HEHNEMTIN - T -_TF=A=1+—
BRk—_FE-_—F=HA=+—H&EAAM
BEESEHAEE 2 RENE - A AE
STERM BRI E41.7()HRE

REMEZAREBE=BRARE
Ao

TE]

RABEDERYEZGEE ERF
HRERAERABALETE - HE K
HEMOBFR s BAHFE  UHERK
MER RRREERE MR 2 EE XA
NN

BRAERERTABRBABBETZA

A B2 AR

Relationship of
unobservable inputs

Significant unobservable inputs to fair value
FAEERABEE
EXFTABEGRAE DREZEBR
2021 2020
—s=-— T T
Market yield (%) T 45 [ ¥R 3 (%) 6.50 6.75 The higher the market yield,
the lower the
fair value.
mHERERS -
ARERE-
Unit market rent BMENRS 3.48 to 4.29 3.20 to The higher the market rent,
(RMB/sqgm) (AR /FHK) 3.48%4.29 3.45  the higher the
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

18.

228

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

In addition, as a result of the increased uncertainty, significant
judgement is required when evaluating the inputs used in
the fair value estimate. Reasonably possible changes at the
reporting date to any of the relevant assumptions would have
affected the fair value of the investment property as presented

18.

BEWE &)

AN R BB = 0 - SR AT 1A
NI EEE PN LS ,,J’Etljiﬁ%u
B o NiE BE - AR EEREE

AREE ) MEREWMEZ R ARBEBK
FEMT:

below:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAIT
Market yield decreased by 0.5% ﬁ%@iﬁ*?ﬁ%o 5%
(2020: 0.5%) ZEZTF:05%) 7,674 8,315
Unit market rent decreased by 2.5% EEfz Tﬁ%ﬁi‘FEﬁZ 5%
(2020: 2.5%) —E-TF:25%) (9,500) (10,212)

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual
use.

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2021, there were
no transfer into or out of Level 3 or any other Level. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between Levels of the
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

19. GOODWILL

The net carrying amount of goodwill is analysed as follows:

10. &

BEZREFEITIT

2021 2020
—E- T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FABIT
At cost: DN

At beginning of the year R EH] 746,931 772,053
Exchange differences PE 5 E 58 62,135 (25,122)
At end of the year RER 809,066 746,931

Accumulated impairment: REHRE
At beginning of the year REA] (365,953) (374,508)
Impairment loss recognised R EEE (26,136) (2,287)
Exchange differences MEH =58 (31,320) 10,842
At end of the year RER (423,409) (365,953)
Net carrying amount BR T F R 385,657 380,978
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—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

19.

230

GOODWILL (continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the
cash-generating unit is as follows:

190. B8 (&)

PEESRESEABN AEZERS
RN

2021 2020

—_E-—£F —_E-F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FTHET T4 T
Auto dealership MEDH 216,886 200,202
Property management services Y % 18 AR 7% 168,771 180,776
385,657 380,978

For the purpose of the goodwill impairment test, the directors
determined the recoverable amounts of the CGUs from value-
in-use calculations with reference to the business valuations
performed by management and CHFT, an independent firm
of professionally qualified valuers where applicable using the
income approach, i.e. pre-tax cash flow projections from
formally approved budgets covering a detailed five-year
budget plan.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

19. GOODWILL (continued)

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are:

190. B8 (&)

EREEFE <BRERET:

2021 2020
—E-—%F —E T
Re: Auto dealership BB REDH
Growth rate after five-year period hEHEZIERE 0% 0%
Discount rate AR IR & 17% 17%
2021 2020
—=E—— —ETF
Re: Property management BB - YEEBER®E
services
Growth rate after five-year period hFEHEZIERE 3% 3%
Discount rate Ah 3R & 19% 17%

The key assumptions have been determined based on past
performance and its expectations for the market’s share
after taking into consideration published market forecast and
research. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the CGUs.

For the year ended 31 March 2021

One of the sub-lease projects was expired in April 2021
which was not renewed after its expiration and management
concluded that there was indication for impairment and
conducted impairment assessment by determining the
recoverable amounts of certain items of relevant assets
including goodwill, property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the property
management services has been determined to be
HK$497,265,000 by the directors of the Company with
reference to a value-in-use calculation, using cash flow
projection based on estimates and financial budgets approved
by management covering the remaining lease term of the
property leases with a pre-tax discount rate of 19% as at 31
March 2021.

BARERDBERAERR UREE2E
B R i 35 B K A 55 2 35 1) FE TR
REE - PIERA BRI R DB AT IEE -
YRBReELBUHEBZHERR -

BE-ZE-_—F=A=+—HLEE

Hp—EAEABEAERN T _—FMA
Hm HRITEEE EEERRALR
BERR WEBETHBEEES TA
B(EERE UE #ERREARE
M\ EE) 2 KB S5 ETRER
ft7 o

R_ZE-_—F=ZF=+—H ARQF
EFC2RBEABENEECMES
ERBReELENZAIKMBEESER
497,265,000 7T © £ B BT E A AR
BETREEEENEREMEREH
THE B ETEE - AR ATALIR R19%
HEITHRESRERAEL -
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19.

232

GOODWILL (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Continueqd)

As at 31 March 2021, based on the result of the assessment,
management determined that the recoverable amount of
the CGU is lower than the carrying amount. The impairment
amount has been allocated to each category of goodwill,
property, plant and equipment such that the carrying amount
of each category of asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less cost of disposal, its value in use and
HK$497,265,000. Based on the value in use calculation
and the allocation, impairment losses of approximately
HK$26,136,000 have been recognised against the carrying
amount of goodwill and no class of asset other than goodwill
is impaired.

Apart from the considerations described in determining the
value in use of the CGUs above, the Group’s management is
not currently aware of any other possible changes that would
necessitate changes in its key estimates in auto-dearship. The
recoverable amount of the CGUs exceeded the respective
carrying amount of those units, and therefore no impairment is
required.
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—T-—F=H=+—H 31 March 2021

=

19. GOODWILL (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020

The Group had closed down a restaurant during the year
ended 31 March 2020 which acquired in prior year due
to poor performance. Management concluded that there
was indication for impairment and conducted impairment
assessment by determining the recoverable amounts of
certain items of relevant assets including goodwill and
property, plant and equipment.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the Catering services
has been determined to be HKS$nil by the directors of the
Company with reference to a value-in-use calculation,
using cash flow projection based on estimates and financial
budgets approved by management covering the remaining
lease term of the remaining restaurant with a pre-tax discount
rate of 12% as at 31 March 2020. Another key assumption
for the value in use calculation is the budgeted gross margin
which is determined based on the CGU’s past performance
and management expectations for the market development.

As at 31 March 2020, based on the result of the assessment,
management determined that the recoverable amount of
the CGU is lower than the carrying amount. The impairment
amount has been allocated to each category of goodwill,
property, plant and equipment such that the carrying amount
of each category of asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less cost of disposal, its value in use and zero.
Based on the value in use calculation and the allocation,
impairment losses of approximately HK$2,287,000 have been
recognised against the carrying amount of goodwill and no
class of asset other than goodwill is impaired.

Apart from the considerations described in determining the
value in use of the CGUs above, the Group’s management is
not currently aware of any other possible changes that would
necessitate changes in its key estimates in auto-dealership
and property management services. The recoverable amount
of the CGUs exceeded the respective carrying amount of
those units, and therefore no impairment is required for the
year ended 31 March 2020.

190. B8 (&)

BE-—S-EF=-A=1+—HLEE

REBEE_ZT_FTHF=-_A=+—HLHF
B AEECDHEA-—RAREFREBME
BREZER -BEER/LIRBED
R WERBERBEEES THE (B
BEARYE #ER&E) 2IRES
BoOEITRER -

RZZBE_ZTF=RA=+—RH ARAE
ZEE2REABEAEEETERRY
ReELFEUZAIRESBERTET
ﬁﬁﬁfﬁfﬁﬂ'%ﬁf'ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ'&i@%ﬁ
HEREZEBATHBRZMBEEE
PARS B BG IR E12%#E TR & R = TRR1S
HoEAEBEAES FTERRATER
ENXR NEREEABM 2 BERE
NEBEHMSER TAHETE -

RZE-TF=A=+—H EEER
B ERET BeEEBEMN 2K
BeBEERNERHeE BRESED S
EEE MEBBERIESER®
FEREERNZEASBETEREBERE
REAARBREEXNA - FREERS
ZEZERE RRBERAEETERS
E-EErFkEsECBRBRESRY
2,287,000/ 7T - M BR G B 5N - I & E Aib
BEBERLITRE -

BRLiETReELEUZEREER
Pt 2 & B E RS A KB E R ERE
WAFEA EAE M AT RE B B & G H W
BHAEDHEMEEERTZER
LA FEFELRE - RBE_T_TF
ZH=Z+-HUEFE RAEeELEuY
AlEEEBEZEEMEBZRES
B E - BAELRE-

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A 233

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3



Br RS Rk T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

20. EERLEE

Customers’
list from
property
management
Trademark Film rights contracts Total
MEEBEHN
(X BEXE EF &8 &5t
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
TATT FAET THET THET
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NFMHA—H
Gross carrying amount REBE 33,163 - 136,866 170,029
Accumulated amortisation RETEERRE
and impairment (32,849) - (6,618) (39,467)
Net carrying amount REFE 314 - 130,248 130,562
Year ended 31 March 2020 EZE-ZT=TF
ZR=+—HILFE
Opening net carrying amount 347 8% % &8 314 - 130,248 130,562
Addition NE — 168,539 — 168,539
Amortisation i (79) - (9,746) (9,825)
Exchange adjustment B 3 - (3,708) (5,511) (9,214)
Closing net carrying amount ~ Hi4XBR )5 58 235 164,836 114,991 280,062
At 31 March 2020 R_ZE_TF
=A=+—H~H
Gross carrying amount REAR 33,163 164,836 130,850 328,849
Accumulated amortisation R EERRE
and impairment (32,928) - (15,859) (48,787)
Net carrying amount REFE 235 164,836 114,991 280,062
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20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 20. HWEFEEE (#)

Customers’
list from
property
management
Trademark Film rights contracts Total
NEEEEHN
(2 BEE EFEE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
TAT TAT FAT FAT
Year ended 31 March 2021 #HZ_-T—-—4
ZRA=+—HItFE
Opening net carrying amount B #]8R 5 58 235 164,836 114,991 280,062
Amortisation B (39) - (9,943) (9,982)
Exchange adjustment [ 5 - 12,775 9,229 22,004
Impairment B - (26,866) = (26,866)
Written off 88 (196) - - (196)
Closing net carrying amount ~ H#XBR 1 5 58 - 150,745 114,277 265,022
At 31 March 2021 RZT=——F
=A=+—-H
Gross carrying amount REEE = 178,571 141,755 320,326
Accumulated amortisation RETEHERAE
and impairment - (27,826) (27,478) (565,304)
Net carrying amount BREH5E = 150,745 114,277 265,022

The Group regularly reviews its film right to assess AEBETFHRIELE UTIEEET

marketability/future economic benefits of film and the
corresponding recoverable amounts. The estimated
recoverable amounts were performed by CHFT as at 31
March 2020 and 2021 were determined based on the present
value of expected future revenues and related cash flows
arising from the distribution and sublicensing of the film,
which were derived from discounting the projected cash flows
using a discount rate of 26% (2020: 29%) for the relevant
assets. As at 31 March 2021, the recoverable amount of film
right is lower than the carrying amount, impairment losses
of approximately HK$26,866,000 is recognised for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

B/ RREENZIARMBEDKRE S
H-WESERESN =T _TFR
T FZA=+—HEHH ERE
HBTKBREE ZHEIARKEBARAE
BIREREREET UWEBEE 28
WE6% (ZE_FTF:29% ) HHE <
REBAUMBESE -R_T=-_—F=F7
=+t—HB EXEZATROESEERE
Tl & %8 © #926,866,0007 7T 2 B E &5 18
EREBE—_T_—F=A=+—HLF
JERER
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21.

22.

236

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE TRMEE
INCOME (“FVTOCI”)

21. BRAREFARMBZEBAZ

2021 2020
—E- T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T T
Listed equity securities, ETRABS BARE
at fair value, classified as PEBRAAAERTTA
financial assets at FVTOCI H2EBAZEREE 520,088 124,406
The balance represented the investment in Bang & Olufsen ZAEERIE A Bang & Olufsen A/SZ &
A/S which is a listed equity in Denmark. The fair value was (ARZEEMRE) AnEDNER-Z
based on quoted market price as at 31 March 2020 and —EFERZFE—F=A=1T—HF#
2021. The equity investment was irrevocably designated at ZMIGERTE AR AEERABZIE
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group BEBEFRBMRE BRAREE DA
considers this investment to be strategic in nature. B E BIEA DB AHMmEERK
A
BALANCES WITH NON-CONTROLLING 22, B ER N EE R 2 &R
INTERESTS AND RELATED PARTIES
(a) Balances with non-controlling interests (a) BEIEERER AR
The amounts due to non-controlling interests are FERT FEVE R e 2 2 FRIE A AR 4R
unsecured, interest-free, and repayable on demand. REBRBERBERER-
(b) Rental deposits paid to a related party (b) ENf—ZEBITESES

The Group entered into several agreements with Mr. Kei
Kin Hung (“Mr. Kei”), a former substantial shareholder
of the Company, for leasing of properties as office
premises, warehouse and showrooms in Mainland China
to the Group. The refundable rental deposits paid to Mr.
Kei have been recognised as non-current assets as at

REBEANT ZAIEBRFEARE
H(RBEET) feE ([HEE])
BAAEERES TARFBE A
ZYEEMDE EEREER AL
ZHEWHE BNETECARER
SREBEN_E_EFE=A=1+—

31 March 2020. ARERBIERBEE-
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— = —

=

—F#=H=+—H 31 March 2021

23. INVENTORIES

24.

23. F&

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

T8 T THETT

Raw materials and consumables R # B R G 39,290 38,154
Film production in progress TEREL 6,948 4,557
Merchandised goods 5 oh 649,986 870,211
696,224 912,922

As at 31 March 2021, merchandised goods of approximately
HK$47,405,000 (2020: HK$414,005,000) have been pledged
to secure the loan facilities (Note 31).

TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

(a)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables represent rental receivable from
tenants, and sales from customers. The Group's trading
terms with its retail customers are mainly receipts in
advance from customers or cash on delivery, except for
certain transactions with creditworthy customers where
the credit period is extendable up to three months,
whereas the trading terms with wholesale customers
are generally one to two months. In addition, the Group
generally provides a credit term of two to three months
to automobile manufacturers for the in-warranty after-
sales services. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding trade receivables and has
a credit control policy to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by the management.

24,

n =

T-—4=A=+—0 @S

#)47,405,0008 T (& - T F:
414,005,000/ 70) B EE # - LLERIS &
HEE (MsE31) »

W E 5 IR - BRE AR
BE RAATEREMER

IR
(@) BRESRE

EWE ZFAEREKEFES RE
FHER AEERTERF 2[H
MRXZPERTERTARERKE
AN EETHEERENER
ZHANRZESER=AAZE
B MEHRBEF ZHANR S K
RA—B B —=mEA - gt
AEE R REHAZ ER& RS
AAERERRERNE=MEAZE
B8 - AEE S SREE R D YK
BHRAETRIBEE  ARHIE
EEEREEASEERRRER
K- EEETHEHABER
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—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continuead)

(@) Trade receivables (Continued)

An ageing analysis of trade receivables at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice dates, is as

24. RREZRE BRERUR
Be RAHFEREMER

FIE (&)

(@) FEWESFE (&)

RBEHRENERAH 2 BKE
SRR LR OTT

follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F T TEF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T & T T T
0 — 30 days 0£30H 15,976 34,441
31 - 120 days 312120H 2,513 2,387
18,489 36,828

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired related to certain customers from whom there
was no recent history of default.

(b) Loan receivables

REBEATARREZ B E 5 5KIR T
BREETIOMITEEOLE LT
Eo

(b) EWER

2021 2020
—E-_—F —E-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5 FHET FAET
Loans to independent MBIE=ZFER
third parties:
- Loan A -8 (i) 58,000 =
- Loan B =B (ii) 32,000 =
90,000 -

Loan receivables were neither past due nor impaired.
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—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN 24. EREZRIE - EWRERAUR
RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS, RE BAHRERAEMER
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER IE (&)

RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b) Loan receivables (Continued) (b) EWER(£)
Notes: Bt 5 -
The Group entered into the loan agreement with the REBE-—ZBIE=FLERD
independent third party with a principal amount of % A& % A58,000,000 T A H
HK$58,000,000 for a term of 12 months, bearing interest at a 1218 B - 12 F F £6.5%:F B - ZE X
rate of 6.5% per annum. The loan is secured by a charge over LAERA R A EBGRIEZR L 2 e &
receivables of the borrower executed by the borrower; and a BERABESL 2 EAEREER-

personal guarantee executed by the guarantor.

The Group entered into the loan agreement with the REBEBR-—FZBIE=FLERD
independent third party with a principal amount of W% A% % /32,000,000 5T - & HA
HK$32,000,000 for a term of 12 months, bearing interest at 1218 A - IR EF R7%:T 8 o 5% B 5K A
a rate of 7% per annum. The loan is secured by a personal BRABNL 2 EAEREER-

guarantee executed by the guarantor.

(c) Deposits, prepayments and other receivables (c) & FEHRERHEMEKRIE

2021 2020
—_E-—£F —_E-F

HK$’000 HK$’000
FB T FB T
Deposits "e 43,390 34,780
Other receivables H b pE W R I8 108,230 120,035
Prepayments TEBRIE 34,686 95,588
Loan interest receivable FE W E FRF B 344 =
Value-added tax recoverable ] 4[]8 (& #{ 3,790 772
190,440 251 a7
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—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

25. INVESTMENT IN FILMS AND TELEVISION 25. REEXRERTE
PROGRAM

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-THF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

Investment in films, at FVTPL REBY RANEFAERR 30,346 28,777
Investment in television program, RETBHREE - ZAABEEA

at FVTPL Bk 34,677 -

65,023 28,777

The amount represents investment projects with certain
production houses for co-production of films and television
program. The investments are governed by the relevant
agreements whereby the Group is entitled to benefits
generated from the distribution of these films and television
program.

The Group’s investment in films and television program
were revalued on 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021 by
CHFT, an independent firm of professional surveyors. Fair
value is determined by applying the income approach, using
the discounted cash flow method, based on the estimated
distribution income of the films. The valuation takes account
of expected income generated from the box offices receipts
and other income streams. The discount rates have been
adjusted for the marketability and current market conditions.
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—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

25. INVESTMENT IN FILMS AND TELEVISION

PROGRAM (continued)

Information about fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs:

25. REE®

EREE (2

HERSEATAIEERHARBZANE
ATEABZERM:

Significant unobservable inputs

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value
FHEREABE
HARBEZER

Average returns

Discount rate

EAFAUBE@DARBE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
15 [0 3 K Ranging from Ranging from
22.1% to 96.2% 12% to 96.2%
NF NF12%E96.2%

22.1%%£96.2%

AR IR & 25.5% to 32.3% 29%

25.5% %32.3%

The higher the average
returns, the higher
the fair value.

THERERE -
ARERE -

The higher the
discount rate, the

In addition, as a result of the increased uncertainty, significant
judgement is required when evaluating the inputs used in
the fair value estimate. Reasonably possible changes at the

lowerer the fair value.
BHESE
NAEBIE -

SN - A B BA [ R IE pn - MR RS
At AR EMRBAERBELERH
i o X3RS B H - HERRNE EASE

reporting date to any of the relevant assumptions would have e HEREETREREGHE 2
affected the fair value of the investment in films and television NAEBKREEDT :
program as presented below:
2021 2020
—E-—% —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET 7T
Average returns decreased I E R T #%5%
by 5% (2020: 5%) (ZE=FF:5%) (1,872) (529)
Discount rate decreased BhIR T T 1%
by 1% (2020: 1%) ZETF1%) 544 305
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—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

25. INVESTMENT IN FILMS AND TELEVISION

PROGRAM (continued)

Reconciliation for investment in films and television program
carried at fair value based on significant unobservable inputs (F=AR) IR 2TKE

(Level 3) are as follows:

25. REEY

s —

U

EREE (2

BEREATABRBARBEZARE
KBRS B Y

242

2021 2020

—E- T

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

At beginning of the year REA] 28,777 301,832
Additions NE 33,684 25,293
Disposals & - (250,821)
Changes in fair value NAEEE (1,004) (27,207)
Exchange differences &5 =% 3,566 (20,320)
At end of the year RER 65,023 28,777

The Group acquired the investments through the acquisition
of San Sparkle International Investment Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “San Sparkle Group”) during
the year ended 31 March 2019. Pursuant to the sale and
purchase agreement, the Group conditionally agreed to
purchase and the vendor conditionally agreed to sell the
entire equity interests of the San Sparkle Group at an initial
consideration of issue of 340,000,000 shares of the Company
and the contingent consideration, in which the Company
will issue the convertible bonds with reference to a formula
as stipulated in the sale and purchase agreement, in the
event that the financial performance of the San Sparkle
Group meets the designated targets within the three years
ending 31 December 2021 in any reporting period since the
date of acquisition (i.e. 17 January 2019). As at the date of
acquisition, the fair value of the contingent consideration was
assessed to be minimal, based on the budgeted profit after
tax of the San Sparkle Group, probability of issuance of the
convertible bonds and fair value of the convertible bonds. The
fair value of the contingent consideration payable remained
unchanged as at 31 March 2020 and 2021.
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AR DR B2 EZEEERZMHIAANE
TR ES - NUKEE B HA - IR IR B BB
HEBZEERBE SR BITTRR
BEH Al ERAIGRES 2 AAE
FARBZANBLTEBHTEM-
RZEZTEFERZF—F=A=+—
B BNSARBEZAARBHEIFTE -
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26.

27.

PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AT
BANKS AND IN HAND

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. As at 31 March 2021, the deposits bore
interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 2.28% per annum (2020:
ranging from 0.01% to 2.00% per annum) which are close to
the market interest rates.

The Group’s deposits have been pledged to secure loan
facilities granted to the Group (Note 31), which will be
released upon the settlement of the relevant borrowings.

As at 31 March 2021, the cash at banks and in hand and
pledged deposits of the Group which were dominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”) and held in Mainland China were
HK$409,007,000 (2020: HK$191,064,000). RMB is not
a freely convertible currency. Under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
foreign currencies through banks that are authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

26.

27.

EEAEFRURRTRFR
BE

RITH e 2 FETHIRE B RITFEHA X
WEBHE R E-—F=F=+—
B &R E R ENF0.01%%E2.28%
(ZZEZZF:FMNENF0.01%E
2.00% )5t 2 B G & o

AEBZERETER RAEEER
ZERBEFEER (KFE31) - FRHR
BNBEEEERER-

R-—_E-_—F=ZA=Z=+—H K&
BHERTEFERSRERBER
(AUAREHE RFBEAMES)
/409,007,000 L (Z T =T F:
191,064,000 7T) - AR BB K
BRAEEMEE - REPBRAMZINES
BRI REE EERNEEERT -
REERERNERELCEINEEL 2R
TIARBHIBBINEG -

HttREREEH

METHFELEEEHR

TERAACERELAPFELRECLE
B (ERAS KRB ) FHE-RE
ABELREAETREREEENK
FERERERENAKEFZSRER
EXRNVERABEEDHEECREZEE-
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=

27. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

244

7. HIREREER (&)

(Continued)
Amounts due
to non-
controlling Convertible Lease
interests Borrowings bonds liabilities Total
FEfS 12 1
EEHE & & TRRES HEAE it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TEn ThR TER TEn ThE R
(Note 22(a)) (Note 31) (Note 32) (Note 17)
(Hi&E22(a)) (HizEs1) (KaE32) (HzE17)
1 April 2020 R-ZE-ZFWA—H 11,915 755,376 - 384,384 1,151,675
Changes from financing cash flows: wﬁﬁfﬁﬁm =1
Advances to non-controlling LTNBL T?H&H&%ﬁ?&%ﬂ
interests of subsidiaries (2,934) - - - (2,934)
Net proceeds from TRREHMENEFE
convertible bonds - - 100,000 - 100,000
Proceeds from new borrowings ~ HTiEEE ZF558E - 3,775,666 - - 3,775,666
Repayment of borrowings BEREE - (4,175,265) - - (4,175,265)
Interest paid on borrowings EEZERFIS - (38,678) - - (38,678)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ~ HEBEZEMFE - - - (25,666) (25,666)
Payment for lease liabilities BERENR - - - (56,899) (56,899)
Total changes from financing RERGREZHLEE
cash flows (2,934) (438,277) 100,000 (82,565) (423,776)
Exchange adjustments AR 1,018 68,242 - 31,444 100,704
Other changes: AE:
Interest on borrowings BEZF S - 38,678 - - 38,678
Interest on lease liabilities HEAELFIE - - - 25,666 25,666
Imputed interest on MaRES 2B HE
convertible bond - - 142 - 142
Conversion into ordinary shares B AL &R - - (90,060) - (90,060)
Addition of lease liabilities HEHEaE - - - 59,346 59,346
Addition of bills payable TEEAEE - 25,893 - - 25,893
Modification of leases HEEE - - - (22,317) (22,317)
Rent concession HeEH - - - (5,412) (5,412)
At 31 March 2021 W-ZE--%=fA=1+-8 9,999 449,912 10,082 390,546 860,539
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27. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION HttREREER (40)
(Continued)
Amounts due
to non-
controlling Lease
interests Borrowings liabilities Total
JE T FE 1 AR
i g O] R HEBR A&t
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT THT THL
(Note 22(a)) (Note 31) (Note 17)
(i 5E22(a) ) (Pi#E31) (B3E17)
At 31 March 2019 as originally R-Z—HAF=A
presented =+—H RREZ 6,639 873,881 = 880,520
Initial application of HKFRS 16 #1iA[E A &8 M B k=
R 5165 - = 479,401 479,401
Restated balance as “E-NFHEA—-A"
1 April 2019 mEY 6,639 873,881 479,401 1,359,921
Changes from financing RERGRER
cash flows:
Advances from non-controlling K B2 7] JEIF R 25 8 3%
interests of subsidiaries 6,646 - - 6,646
Proceeds from new borrowings #7&{& & 2 frg 58 = 2,952,850 = 2.952,850
Repayment of borrowings EREE - (3,015,363) - (3,015,363)
Interest paid on borrowings EEZBRFE - (51,157) - (51,157)
Interest paid on lease liabilities FAE&EZEMHFIE - - (30,975) (30,975)
Payment for lease liabilities MEBBENR - - (75,053) (75,053)
Total changes from financing ~ BBEHR L REL A
cash flows 6,646 (113,670) (106,028) (213,052)
Exchange adjustments BE 5 58 2 (1,370) (55,992) (29,964) (87,326)
Other changes: Him&E:
Interest on borrowings BEZFS - 51,157 = 51,157
Interest on lease liabilities MEREBEZHE - - 30,975 30,975
Addition of lease liabilities HEHERR - - 64,094 64,094
Modification of leases MEEE] - - (54,094) (54,094)
At 31 March 2020 RZEZTF=A=+—H 11,915 755,376 384,384 1,151,675
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28.

29.

246

TRADE PAYABLES 28. EFE ZME
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables based RBERARERNZZAHCENE SR
on the invoice dates as at the end of the reporting period: HZREDWWT
2021 2020
—_E-—£F —_E-F
HK$’°000 HK$’ 000
FET T
0 — 30 days 0£30H 31 1,746
31 - 60 days 31£260H 26,645 48,784
61 — 90 days 61£290H - -
Over 90 days @90 H 1,630 10,416
28,306 60,946
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. B E
2021 2020
—E-— & ZTEZEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Contract liabilities arising from LNTHEELEZANAERE
Sales of goods HEEm 292,925 186,972
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29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued)

2. WA E (&)

Movements in contract liabilities EHNEEED
2021 2020
—E- T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
At 1 April R A—H 186,972 235,034
Decrease as a result of recognising B 4 A & 52 U8 25 1M s
revenue during the year (186,972) (235,034)
Increase as a result of receipts in  F B I 4 E & & 28 M 15 40
advance of sales of goods 292,925 186,972
292,925 186,972

The contract liabilities are related to the advance
considerations received from the customers for sales of
automobiles and other merchandised goods, revenue from
which is recognised when the performance obligation
is satisfied by delivering the automobiles and other
merchandised goods to the customers.

30. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE, ACCRUED

eHEREERTEREMEREE (K
W EBRAEP XM AEREAME M
BITRAORTHER) KRB EF 2
BHRREARM-

CFAWRE B ERAREM

CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES P& 145X 18
2021 2020
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FAIT
Receipts in advance from FEWE P RIE
customers 38,244 24,599
Accrued charges and other FEET & A K E b BT 5RIE
payables 126,122 85,055
164,366 109,654
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31. BORROWINGS 31. B8 &
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T8 T THE T
Current B

Bank loans RITEX 177,813 175,397
Other loans EmER 158,243 406,565
336,056 581,962

Non-current IERE
Bank loans RITER 113,856 173,414
Total &5t 449,912 755,376

Effective interest rates per annum B E F| R & & -

in range of:
- fixed rate borrowings —ELEE 1.59% to 8.50%  2.40% to 8.50%
1.59%%8.50%  2.40%%8.50%
— variable rate borrowings —FEEE N/A N/A
iE A i A
The Group had the following undrawn borrowing facilities: AEERENEERBREWDT
2021 2020
—E=-—-F —T_THF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET T T
Expiring within one year R—FERNER 355,765 252,892
Expiring in the second to REZEZEEREFEA
fifth year inclusive (BREEEMT)EM 402,678 187,020
758,443 439,912
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F£=HA=+—H 31 March 2021

31. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The borrowings are denominated in RMB and HKS.

As at 31 March 2020 and 2021, certain inventories (Note 23)
and pledged deposits (Note 26) were pledged to secure the
loan facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31 March 2020 and 2021, the Group’s certain property,
plant and equipment (Note 16) were pledged to secure the loan
facilities granted to the Group.

Certain borrowings were secured by corporate guarantees
executed by the Company and certain subsidiaries during the
years ended 31 March 2020 and 2021.

Certain borrowings were secured by guarantees executed by a
director of the Group and a director of a PRC subsidiary during
the year ended 31 March 2020.

Certain borrowings were secured by guarantees executed by a
former controlling shareholder of the Company and his spouse
during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2021.

Certain borrowings were secured by guarantee of state-owned

enterprise of the PRC.

Certain borrowings were secured by the properties held by an
independent third party.

31. BE (&)

o :

DH|’

(i) ZEEEAARBRB T E-

e

T _ZTFRZZZT=—F=AH
=+t—HB AxEEETEFE (M:E23)
MEEBFR (HF26) BEHRE - EA
AEBMERZERBEZER

(i

iy RZZE_ZTEFR_ZFT-_—F=A
=t+t—H AEEETYWE #BERE
& (MsE1e) BT (EARNEEER

ZERMEZER-

(ivy, REE-ZZT-_TFR_ZT-_—F= H
=+—HLFE HAFTEBEHAEAD
&%?WEQEQ¢Z¢%W%¢#
=R

vy REE-ZT-_TF=A=+—H1IHF
B ETEEALAER—REEFR—
MAENEARZ —BEBRLZE
RIEFEIR

V) MRBE-Z-_ZFR-_T-—F= ﬁ
:+*E¢¢F"%¥%Em$
— % B PR R R Ko B B %% 42?&
TEHELR ©

(viiy BTEEHTEEALEZERIER

fRe
(viii) ETEER—BBILE=FFYE
TEFER -
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32.

250

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Company issued zero coupon convertible bonds
with aggregate principal amount of HK$100,000,000 to
three independent third parties on 9 February 2021, 23
February 2021 and 9 March 2021. The convertible bonds
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The convertible
bonds will mature in three years from the issue date at their
principal amount or can be converted into ordinary shares
of the Company at the holder’s option at a conversion price
of HK$0.25 per share at anytime from the issue date to the
maturity date. Unless previously converted or cancelled, the
Company shall redeem all the outstanding convertible bonds
on the maturity date at a redemption amount equivalent to
100% of the outstanding principal. Neither the Company
nor the convertible bondholders shall have the right to early
redeem the convertible bonds.

The fair values of the liability component was determined at
the issuance of the convertible bonds. The fair value of the
liability component, include in non-current financial liabilities,
was calculated using a market interest rate for an equivalent
non-convertible bonds. The residual amount, representing
the value of the equity conversion component, is included in
shareholders’ equity.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A
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RZEZ—F-_AhLB ZE=—F=
A-+=BR-_ZE=-_—€=AhB &
RAAZRBYE = HETRECRES
100,000,000/ 7L 2 & B B AT AR ES o
AR EFABTEHE AT IRREF K
REETERRT = FRIREAS R
H AR BEAZBRENRBITRRE
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continuea)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company
has received conversion notices from the convertible
bondholders to exercise the conversion rights attached to
the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amounts of
HK$90,000,000. Accordingly, the Company has allotted and
issued 220,000,000 shares and 140,000,000 shares to the
convertible bondholders at conversion price of HK$0.25 per

share on 2 March 2021 and 11 March 2021 respectively.

The movements of the convertible bonds are set out below:

32. TARES (&)

REBEE-_FTE-_—F=ZA=+—81
FE - ARREBWBTRBESREFES
AR ZEBBN 1TEASRHE
90,000,000/ 7T 2 7] # % (& % F7 bt &5
ZEBE-R ARFERZTZ—
FZA-_HE-_ZE-_—F=A+—H
D RRE R EFIR0.2548 TR 8 R BT
220,000,0000% % 5 %.140,000,0000% A%
DT AMBRESFFEEAC

AR ESF BB T :

Proceeds from issue of convertible
bonds

Imputed interest expense (Note 10)

Conversion into ordinary shares

At 31 March 2021

BT RRESZHAEHA

& MEHAX (ME10)
BRALBK

R_ZE-_—F=A=+—H

Debt Conversion
component component Total
BEHS BRI &5t
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
TATT THET THET
81,301 18,699 100,000
142 - 142
(73,308) (16,752) (90,060)
8,135 1,947 10,082
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33. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences

under the liability method at rates of taxation applicable when

the temporary differences are expected to reverse.

The movement in deferred tax liabilities recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position during the years
ended 31 March 2020 and 2021 is as follows:

33.

i SE B IH

I RE BB T RIS B % - (2 AR
B R E AR A B
RN E

REBEZE-_E_TFR T -—F=A
T BHULEFE ERAHBERRERE
BRZELEHBEEZEFHUNT

Temporary
difference on Right-of- Business
inventories use assets combination Total
"EZ
ERER CHEEE ERat &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT FAT FAT
At 31 March 2020 and KRZZZZF
1 April 2020 =A=+—H8k
g 23
mA—H 640 - 96,641 97,281
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 A BB SRS
ERIE165 2 B - 64,079 (64,079) =
At 1 April 2019 RZZE-NFRA—A 640 64,079 32,562 97,281
Credited to profit or loss FTABRRE - (10,305) (2,436) (12,741)
Exchange differences fE 5 = 58 - (1,180) (1,374) (2,554)
At 31 March 2020 and RZTEZTF
1 April 2020 ZA=+—H8k
e e 23
MA—H 640 52,594 28,752 81,986
Credited to profit or loss FFABERE - (5,934) (2,486) (8,420)
Exchange differences N Z5 - 2,316 2,307 4,623
At 31 March 2021 N-BE=-—F
S ==k 640 48,976 28,573 78,189
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33.

34.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses of approximately HK$131,034,000
(2020: HK$119,784,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.
The tax losses arising in Mainland China of approximately
HK$8,437,000 (2020: HK$9,881,000) will be expired if they
are not utilised to set off against the taxable profits within five
years from the year in which they arose under the current tax
legislation in Mainland China. The tax losses arising in Hong
Kong do not expire under current tax legislation.

Deferred tax liabilities have not been established for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain subsidiaries because the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it is
not probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future. Such unremitted earnings associated
with investments in subsidiaries totalled approximately
HK$1,211,624,000 as at 31 March 2021 (2020:
HK$1,325,234,000).

33. EERIE ()

RNEE W ARH R0 IEE B ERIETR
B EE#X131,034,0008 L (ZE=-F
% :119,784,000%8 L) - RA A BB
HrRZEERREBIRAIGEEAERK
JE AR 5 1) LA $ 8H B5 98 o fiW R B (A 3 A
& 7 TRIEE18498,437,0008 T (=2 =
T :9,881,0008 L) RBEEFER
HARFRRBEREAMIRITHIERN
HIHERBRT - BIZ SR IEEE D
H-RNEAEEAZHEBERERTH
ETGEIH -

HRARQBIEHE THEBARZKE
BE MERZEZENKATERA RER
BE MU ERZSHB AR RBER
MEMzENRBRYEERBAEE:
MR-ZE-—F=ZfF=+—0 BZZK
BRARIBREEACRBAERTEG £
£1,211,624,0008 L (Z T =T F:
1,325,234,000/% 7T ) °

SHARE CAPITAL 34. A
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
ZERHE K|
HK$’000
T T
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each &A% E{E0.002/8 jT 2 & i@ &
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020, RZ-Z—HALFWMA—AH:
1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 —ZE-_ZF#=/8=+—QH"
—ETFNA—HBHEK
—FE-—F=H=F1—H 250,000,000,000 500,000
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 34. B (&)
2021 2020
—BZ-F —T_ZF
Number of Number of
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
R4 2B TET k! AT

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: BETRATEAR:

At beginning of the year REA 4,793,453,447 9,587 4,999,685,447 9,999

Share repurchases (Note (i) B EE (M) - - (206,232,000) (412)

Placing of shares (Note (ii)) = D) 318,500,000 637 = =

Issue of new shares (Note (iii) BATHARAD (B 3E (i) 360,000,000 720 = =

At end of the year RERK 5,471,953,447 10,944 4,793,4583,447 9,587

Notes: B -

(i)  The Company repurchased 206,232,000 of its shares on the (i) REBEE—_TE-_FTF=-A=+—HLEHF
Stock Exchange for a total consideration of HK$55,296,000 B AR ALK ES5,296, OOO/%E
during the year ended 31 March 2020. The share repurchases AR 32 BT B8 [@ 206,232,000 A% 17 °
resulted in the decrease of the issued share capital of vl %@&rﬁﬂﬁéﬂﬂxzﬁ&%ﬁkﬁﬁ%
HK$412,000 and contributed surplus of HK$54,884,000. Bk 412,000 7T K& 54,884,000/%8

75 ©

(i) On 4 June 2020, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with the independent third party to place
318,500,000 new ordinary shares at the placing price of
HK$0.157 under general mandate. Following the completion
of the placing of shares on 15 June 2020, the amounts
of HK$637,000 and HK$49,367,000 were credited to the
Company’s share capital and share premium account
respectively.

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2021, an aggregate of
360,000,000 ordinary shares were issued at conversion price of
HK$0.25 per share upon the conversion of convertible bonds
(Note 32). The issue of ordinary shares resulted in the increase
in the issued share capital of HK$720,000 and share premium
account of HK$89,340,000.

254  SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 5 £ B 5 R A T
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R-ZT-_TFEXAMB  AREEBT
FE=FIRERE BRI E
1% & {80.1577% L B2 318,500,000
R BA - NEREFR —FR =T =
TEANATHRATHE  AE637,000
78 7T 49,367,000/ T E 9 Bl A A
Al Z A R B s B AR -

BE_ZT-_—H=ZB=+—HIt&
€ A ££360,000,0008% I @& E K
ERATRIRE S (M 382) iR & i
BEROSB THEIT - HITLBRE
BB BT IR A MR D 5 B B 2 Bl 4E AN
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35. RESERVES 35. %1

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of
shares at a price in excess of their par value per share. The
application of the share premium account is governed by
Section 40 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve arose from waiver of interest on convertible
notes by a shareholder of the Company in prior years.

Special reserve

Special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares of the subsidiaries
at the date on which they were acquired by the Company and
the nominal amount of the shares issued for the acquisition
under a group reorganisation in prior years.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus of the Group arose from (a) the
Company’s transfers of certain amounts of share premium
balance to the contributed surplus account, following the
approvals obtained from the Company’s shareholders, (b)
transfer from share option reserve due to forfeiture or lapse
of share options, and (c) dividends paid out in prior years and
share repurchases.

IR 43 73 (B

R A7 i (B 5 A f B 3 B AR 1B 2 (B 3
TR PREEE 2 )i B - B0 ) (B AR 2 J&
R BRE-AN-FRBEFL0MER
o

BEXfEf

BEARBIAARA —BRREEF
BRI BBRRRINEESL-

155l 18

AEBZBRIREREARFKRBHB L
ARMNERZERMH ZMEENBESF
BETSBEARBKBMETZRN
HEEMEZERE-

BABER

REBZHANBRTVEBIATHAE
£ (@RS ARABBIRIER  NAF
BREE TR EEBERFTAZHARR
BR 0 (D)2 W B e A oK BB AR SR 3T B
BREREBEL ROBEFEIRNMNRK
BNETEROER -
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35. RESERVES (continuea) 35. fwfE (&)

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations.

Other reserve

Other reserve mainly represents the differences between
the considerations and (a) the carrying amount of the partial
interests in subsidiaries disposed of; and (b) the carrying
amount of the non-controlling interests acquired.

Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve represents appropriations of profits retained
by the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. In accordance with
the respective articles of association of the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries, they are required to appropriate amount not
less than 10% of their profits after income tax to statutory
reserve each year, until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
its registered capital. Such a reserve may be used to reduce
any losses incurred or for capitalisation as paid-up capital.

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the
fair value of equity investment designated at FVTOCI under
HKFRS 9 that are held at the end of the reporting period.
Convertible bonds equity reserve

Amount of proceeds on issue of convertible bonds relating

to the equity component (i.e. option to convert the debt into
share capital).

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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36. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

COMPENSATION

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an annual
general meeting of the Company held on 20 August 2012,
the Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted. The Scheme shall remain valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing from 20 August 2012, being
the date on which the scheme was deemed to take effect in
accordance with the terms.

Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company
may, at its discretion, grant options to eligible employees,
including executive directors, suppliers, customers, advisers
or consultants and joint venture partners or business alliances
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for
shares in the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholder or independent
non-executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must
be approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

36. UK AERZEEHE

BEAAIANR-_ZE——FNA_-1H
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Bl ZEEHB-_T—=—FN\A=+H
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B ARBARR RS -

EREARBBRELMEZBTRAT
AR AR X T &I 2 BB AR P8 B 2 B
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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36.

258

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (continueq)

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of options.
Options may be exercised from the date of grant of the share
option to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company
and will not be less than the highest of the closing price of
the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, the
average closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange
on the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant of the options or the nominal value of the shares.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options other than by issuing the
Company'’s ordinary shares.

There was no share option outstanding under the Scheme as
at 31 March 2020 and 2021.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(@) Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the total future
minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable

operating lease is as follows:

(a)

37. KREHERIE

AEEE/HEA

RS BIR - IR B AT RGE A8 2
E W 2 R R AR E R IB AR
T

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

THET T T

Within one year —F R 56,020 89,300
Later than one year but not later LN —FETZAME

than two years 43,637 47,198
Later than two year but not later ZHRMEERZR=F

than three years 38,360 36,317
Later than three year but not later ZR=ZFERTZRNF

than four years 29,520 31,415
Later than four year but not later ZRMNFEETNZRARE

than five years 25,171 22,603

Later than five years ZRAF 103,626 93,738

296,334 320,571
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38.

260

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 38.

During the year, except as disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group also had the following
significant transactions with related parties:

(a) Related party transactions

B Bt 05 4 R

FR BRAVERREMEBO ARE
EINAREETEEREB T ETTIINE
KRR :

(a) BELIXZ

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FABT

Rental paid to Mr. Kei BEREEEZEE 14,145 26,344
Rental income from a related RE—R@ABARZ

company He WA 281 625

Salaries paid to Mr. Kei TNEREZES 910 1,680
Salaries paid to a close family SRHEEE—ZEY)

member of Mr. Kei XEKEZ¥ T 130 240

Sales of audio equipment M—R2ESHETERE
to a director 792 -

Notes:

(i) The above related party transactions constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

(if) The above related party transactions are conducted in the
ordinary course of business with reference to the terms
mutually agreed between the parties.

The Group defines directors of the Company as key
management personnel and their remunerations are set
out in Note 12.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 March 2021

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

39. TEMBAAFE

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 March

2021.

RZE_—F=A=+—BZFEZENE
NEREMT -

Percentage of

Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest held
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
BRI RIEH, BERARE/ KRAFAMESER
WELR LM BXREEERERN HAREELXER BRER BEAON TEXBREERE
BO Commercial Holdings  British Virgin Islands Ordinary share United States Dollar 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Limited (“BVI'), limited (‘'US$’) 1
liability company
PEEEERERAF EBRAHE EER E RERR BE
BRAA
Carnaby Group Limited BVI, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100%* Investment holding, Hong Kong
company
KRELHES EEK E REZER BE
BRDA
Germination International BV, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Group Limited company
EHEREEARAA KBRS LBk IE RERR BE
BRDA
San Sparkle Culture BVI, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Investment Limited company
RRERLREBRRA KBRS ERR E REER B
BRRA
San Sparkle International BV, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Investment Limited company
BRRRERREBRAT RERTES: Rk IE RERR B8
BRDA
Sparkle Roll (France) BVI, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100% Trading of branded watches and
Limited company branded jewelleries,
Hong Kong
BF CE8)BRD A EBRAHS EER E LRFRREEHKRERS
BRAA 0
Sparkle Roll Global Asset BV, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Management Limited company
BRARFEEERERAR RERZES AR E RERR B
BRDA
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

39. T EMBLARFERE (&)

Percentage of

Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest held
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
SRR R BERARE/ RAAMEER
W 2 B & BXREEERERN FREELRER BEWES BEAIN FEERREELE
Sparkle Roll Motors BVI, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Limited company
BEAERRAF RREXHS: TRk 1% REER BE
BRAT
Forwell Finance Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$10,000 100% Money lending, Hong Kong
liability company
BEMBERRA B BRAA EBR 10,000/ 7T g &%
Full Link Management Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Limited liability company
REERARRA B ARQA EER 1B REER B
Future Prosper Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
liability company
KEBRAF B BRAA LRk 18T BREER B
Germination Global Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Holdings Limited liability company
BHRBERERBRRA B BRAA ERR 1B REEK BE
San Sparkle Asset Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Management Limited liability company
RREEEREERAA B ARQA EER 1B REER B
San Sparkle Pictures Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$10,000 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Industries Development liability company
Limited
ERERTRELRER B BRAA TRk 10,000% 7T REER B
BRDA

262
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WELARER

Place/country of
incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity

ERMRYL/ BLbE

BRREEERER

Class of
capital held

FEEFER

39. T EMBLARFERE (&)

Issued/paid-up
capital
BRITRE/
BERES

Percentage of
effective
interest held
by the
Company
KARBER
BRASL

Principal activities and
place of operations

TEXBREEHY

Sparkle Roll (Denmark)
Limited
BER (FE)BRDA

Sparkle Roll (Hong Kong)
Limited

B (ZR)BRAF

Sparkle Roll Aerial

Advertising Multi-Media
Limited

BREFEREERERDA

Sparkle Roll Cigars
Holding Limited
BREMZERERAF

Sparkle Roll Global Motors

Holding Limited

BERIPAEEBRERAA

Sparkle Roll International
Distributions Limited

BAERREERAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BE BRAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B BRAA
Hong Kong, limited
liability company
BB ERAR
Hong Kong, limited
liability company
B BRAA
Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BB ARAH

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BB ARAF

Ordinary share

LAl

Ordinary share

Ordinary share

Ll

Ordinary share

28R

Ordinary share

EpL

Ordinary share

Ll

HK$202,674,454
202,674,454/8 T

HK$1

US$3,000,000
3,000,000% 1T
HK$151,050,000
151,050,0007% 1T

HK$100

10078 7T

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A 263

100%**

100%

100%

50.1%

100%

100%

Investment holding, Hong Kong
REZKR BE

Trading of branded jewelleries
and provision of management
service, Hong Kong

LIEKEE 5 RRHEERRE
B

Publications of magazines
and provision of advertising
services, Hong Kong

HREFRREEE RS BE

Trading of cigars and smoker’s
accessories, Hong Kong

SMRkEERNES B

Investment holding, Hong Kong

RERR BE

Trading of branded watches
and audio, equipment, Hong

Kong
EEFRREEREES B

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3



Br RS Rk T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WELAREM

Place/country of
incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity

AL/ BLBE

BRREEERER

Class of
capital held

FEEFER

39. T EMBLARFERE (&)

Issued/paid-up
capital
BRITRE/
BEWES

Percentage of
effective
interest held
by the
Company
KARBER
BmASL

Principal activities and
place of operations

TEXBREEHY

Sparkle Roll Watch &
Jewelry Limited

BREZHKEARDA
Tiger Force Group Limited
AEEBERAA

Balanorm Beo (Beijing)
Trading Development
Limited (‘Balanorm
Beo’)!

EEEE (LR)EFHER
ERRA ([EEEE])

Beijing De Te Motors
Trading Limited"

ERERNEESARAR

Beijing Germination
Technology Industries
Development Limited
(formerly known as
Beijing Han He Ding
Sheng Ji Dian Limited)"

EREEMRERERER
AE (I EMS %
BEERAR)

264

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BE BRAF
Hong Kong, limited

liability company
BB ARAF

Mainland China, limited

liability company

PR BEREE

G

Mainland China, limited

liability company

hEAL BEREE

NG

Mainland China, limited

liability company

PR BEREE

NG

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 43

Ordinary share

Ll

Ordinary share

Paid-up capital

EREAR

Paid-up capital

BEWEXR

Paid-up capital

BEWER

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B &£ BER A 7

HK$1

RMB50,000,000

AR #50,000,00075

RMB101,400,000

AR #101,400,0007C

RMB4,990,000

AK#4,990,0007T

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Trading of branded watches and
branded jewelleries, Hong
Kong

LRFEREERER S BE

Investment holding, Hong Kong

REZKR BB

Sales and distribution of
audio and visual consumer
electronics products,
Mainland China
HERREYSHEETER:
FE R

Trading of automobiles and
related parts and accessories
and provision of after-sales
services, Mainland China

ABEREASHREGES AR
RUEERRE PEAM

Provision of exhibition and

consultancy services,
Mainland China

RERERAARE PEAM
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

39. T EMBLARFERE (&)

Percentage of

Place/country of effective

incorporation/ interest held

establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations

S RLE BRTRE/ RATDFRER

W 2 B & BXREEERERN FRELRER BERES BEAML FEEBREEHY

Beijing Mei He Zhen Yong ~ Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB194,800,000 100% Trading of automobiles and
Motors Trading Limited® liability company related parts and accessories

and provision of after-sales
services, Mainland China

EREGHRKAIEES hER AREE  EREXR AR #194,800,0007 RERBEBTHREGESHUR
ARDA NS REEERYE RN

Beijing San Sparkle Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,950,000 100%  Film investment, Mainland China
Pictures Industries liability company
Development Limited

TREBRFYRELEZE #EANM AREA BEKREAR AR #49,950,0007C BEYRE PEA
BRAT NG

Beijing Sparkle Roll Fine Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB7,000,000 100% Sales of merchandised goods,
Wine Limited (formerly liability company Mainland China
known as Zongquan
Youjingge Catering
Culture Development
Limited)*

TREREEGERS mEN FREE  BKEAR AE#7,000,0007 BmEE  HEAM
BRAA (FIBERER 27
BREESLEE
HRAF)

Beijing Sparkle Roll Fu Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB5,000,000 51% Sales and distribution of apparel
Sheng Trading Company liability company and accessories, Mainland
Limited* China

T RBHRREE S mEAM EREE  BKEXR AR #5,000,0007T HE R K R AL -
BERAT NS B 3t

Beijing Sparkle Roll Men Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Sales and distribution of airline,
Dao Men Airline Agency liability company Mainland China
Limited

T RERMHFARER RENMEREE  BKEAR AR #10,000,0007 MERREERE DEAN
REERDA NG

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A 265
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WELAREM

Place/country of
incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity
S RLE
BRRLEERER

Class of
capital held

FEEFER

39. T EMBLARFERE (&)

Issued/paid-up
capital
BRITRE/
BEWES

Percentage of
effective
interest held
by the
Company
KARBER
BmASL

Principal activities and
place of operations

TEXBREEHY

Beijing Sparkle Roll
Motors Insurance
Agency Limited?

T RBFAERRRE
BRAR

Beijing Sparkle Roll Mellow

Wine Limited (formerly
known as Lu Yi Ya
Shi (Beijng) Trading
Development Limited)*

ERBREREXEXER
AR (RTEBERS (1

REEERABRAF)

Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin
Tian Di Commerce
Development Limited?

IRBRFERMEEEE
BRAA

Beijing Tiger Force
International Culture
Communication Limited
(formerly known as
Beijing Sparkle Roll
Aerial Advertising Multi-
media Limited)*

LRASEBLMEAR
AR (R BLRR

EEEEARRA)

Beijing Wenfu Hengye
Enterprise Management
Limited (formerly known
as Sparkle Roll Online
(Beijing) Business
Service Limited)"

ERXBEEREXER

BRAR (RERRER

(R BE RS
BERRA)

266

Mainland China, limited
liability company

mERM - BREE

NG

Mainland China, limited
liability company

mER - BREE

NG|
Mainland China, limited
liability company

hEA BEREE

NG|

Mainland China, limited
liability company

PR BEREE

NG|
Mainland China, limited

liability company

mER BREE

NG|
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Paid-up capital

BYER

Paid-up capital

Paid-up capital

BEWEXR

Paid-up capital

Paid-up capital

BEWEXR
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RMB10,000,000

AR #10,000,0007

RMB44,900,000

AR #44,900,0007

RMB49,000,000

A K #49,000,0007

RMB49,500,000

AR 49,500,000

RMB49,900,000

A K #49,900,0007

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Provision of insurance agency
services, Mainland China

RERBRRBRE  HERM

Sales of merchandised goods,
Mainland China

AmEE  TEAL

Retail of cigars and sales
of merchandised goods,
Mainland China
EMTERBARHEE PEAKR

Provision of advertising and
marketing, Mainland China

REREREREH FEAL

Sales of merchandised goods,
Mainland China

AmEE TEAL
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

39. T EMBLARFERE (&)

Percentage of

Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest held
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
SRR R BERARE/ RAAMEER
W 2 B & BXREEERERN FRELRER BERES BEAML FEEBREEHY
Beijing Wenfu Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB626,314,303 100% Property holding, Mainland
Hengye Technology liability company China
Development Co.,
Limited
TRXBEXREER hER AREE  EREXR AR #626,314,3037C MEER REAM
ARDA NS
BO Online Culture Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB64,600,000 100% Provision of exhibition and
Technology Limited liability company consultancy services,
(formerly known Mainland China
as Beijing Sparkle
Roll Goldence Saga
International Exhibition
Limited)*
VB &R mEAM EREE  BKEXR AR #64,600,0007 REEERFARE FEAM
BRAR (AL RER  RF
REEFARSRERR
al)
Boao Economic and Trade Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB50,000,000 100% Provision of exhibition and
Development Limited* liability company consultancy services,
Mainland China
AHKEERBRATF HEAM ERERE  BKEAR AR #50,000,0007 REREREARE REAM
G
Jiao Zhi Zhuang Chen Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,700,000 100% Trading of sliver accessories
(Beijing) Trading liability company and provision of consultancy
Development Limited services, Mainland China
BEAR (ER)EEHR HEAM FREE  BKEXR AR #49,700,0007C REEHE SRR EEARS

BERRA NG

hEAM
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place/country of
incorporation/
establishment and Class of

39. T EMBLARFERE (&)

Issued/paid-up

Percentage of
effective
interest held
by the

Principal activities and

Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
S RLE BERARE/ RAAMEER

W 2 B & BXREEERERN FREELRER BEWES BEAL FEEBREELY

Quan Tian Property Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100%  Provision of property
Management Services liability company management and tenancy
Limited® and sub-tenancy services,

Mainland China

T RERDEERRS hER AREE  EREXR AR #10,000,0007 RENEEEARAER
ARDA NS BHRE  REAM

San Sparkle (Beijing) Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB98,770,000 100%  Film investment, Mainland China
International Culture liability company
Development Limited*

BRER (LR)BEBEXt HEAM EREE  BKEX AR #98,770,0007 BEYRE PEAM
ERERDA NG

Sparkle Roll Bo Ce Trading Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB51,900,000 100%  Provision of consultancy

Development Limited® liability company
BEBREFRRERAR HEAM FREE  BKEXR
NS

2068  sPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BH#ZEmER A
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—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

39. T EMBLARFERE (&)

Percentage of

Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest held
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
S RLE BERARE/ RAAMEER
W 2 B & BXREEERERN FRELRER BERES BEAML FEEBREEHY
Sparkle Roll Ding Sheng Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Sales and distribution of
(Beijing) Trading liability company merchandised goods,
Development Limited® Mainland China
BRSZ(ER)BEHEE HHEMM AREE EKREX AR #10,000,0007C HERRERR TERM
BRAT NS
Sparkle Roll Honor Remit ~ Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB17,600,000 100% Provision of exhibition and
(Beijing) Business Club liability company advertising services, Mainland
Limited? China
BRERE (GXR)EE  HEAM FREE  BKEX AR #17,600,0007 REEERESRE PEAM
EMERDA NG
Sparkle Roll Oriental Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital HK$100,000,000 100% Trading of branded watches,
(Beijing) Trading liability company branded jewelleries and
Development Limited® fine wines and provision
of consultancy services,
Mainland China
BERA (XR)ESHER HEAHM FREE  BKREAR 100,000,000/ 7T EEFR ARRERBBES
BRDA AT MR AR - BN
Tianjin Heng Ying Tai Fu Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB38,700,000 100% Trading of automobiles and
Trading Development liability company related parts and accessories
Limited* and provision of after-sale
services, Mainland China
REBRREEFHER REAM EREE  BKEXR AR #38,700,0007T RERBBTHREGE SR

G|
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 March 2021

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

270

Name of subsidiary

WELARER

Place/country of
incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity
SR RILE
BxRRLEERER

Class of
capital held

FEEFER

39. T EMBLARFERE (&)

Issued/paid-up
capital
BRITRE/
BEWES

Percentage of
effective
interest held
by the
Company
KARBER
BmASL

Principal activities and
place of operations

TEXBREBHY

Tianjin Rui Bo Tai Fu
Trading Development
Limited*

REhBEER SRR
BRRA

Tianjin Xin Chang Tai Fu
Trading Development
Limited*

RREEFEEFER
BRRA

Yang Pu BO Investment
Limited®
FRUBREBRAR

Yang Pu Germination
Ding Sheng Investment
Limited*
HRERSEREBRAA

Yang Pu Tiger Force
Investment Limited
(formerly known as
Yang Pu Xiang Ri Kui
Investment Limited)*

HRAEREERAF (A
BEAmAZREER
RH)

Mainland China, limited
liability company

PEAM BEREE

NG

Mainland China, limited
liability company

mER - BREE

G|

Mainland China, limited
liability company
RE RN FREE

NG

Mainland China, limited
liability company

hEA BREE

NG|

Mainland China, limited
liability company

PR BREE

NG

Paid-up capital

EREAR

Paid-up capital

BYEAR

Paid-up capital

EREAR

Paid-up capital

BEWEXR

Paid-up capital

BEYWEXR

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 43§

RMB10,000,000

A K #10,000,0007

RMB45,000,000

AR #45,000,0007

RMB10,000,000

A K #10,000,0007

RMB30,000,000

AR #30,000,0007

RMB10,000,000

AEK#10,000,0007

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Trading of automobiles and
related parts and accessories
and provision of after-sale
services, Mainland China

RERBBTHREGESHUR
RUEERRE FEAM

Trading of automobiles and
related parts and accessories
and provision of after-sales
services, Mainland China

RERBBTHREGE SR
REUEERRE FEAM

Investment holding, Mainland

China
REZER  FEAM

Investment holding, Mainland
China

REZKR 2EAK

Investment holding, Mainland
China

REER  FEAL
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place/country of
incorporation/

establishment and Class of
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held
S RLE
W 2 B & BXREEERERN FRELRER

39. T EMBLARFERE (&)

Percentage of

effective
interest held
Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
capital Company place of operations

BRAORE/ FAAMEER
BEWEAR BHEASL TEXRREEMY

Yang Pu Quan Tian
Commercial Brand
Network Services
Shares Limited"

Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital
liability company

RMB28,000,000 100%  Provision of property
management and tenancy
and sub-tenancy services,
Mainland China

FRRABEREBERE REAM FREE  BKEXR AR #28,000,0007 REMEEEARBEER
BRHDBRA R NG BHRS  PEAM
Yang Pu Wenfu Hengye Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Investment holding, Mainland
Investment Limited? liability company China
HFRNEEEREERAR TEAM ARET BUREAR AR #10,000,0007T REER HEAH
AT
t The English names of these subsidiaries established in t ARZERFT BN 2 M B A AR]
Mainland China represent management’s best effort at WEEMEXRCZE Bt Z5R1
translating the Chinese names of these subsidiaries as no XEBIOBAEBESERAB IUZSE

official English names have been registered.

Directly held by the Company

o 78.31% directly held by the Company and 21.69% directly held
by its subsidiary, Balanorm Beo (Beijing) Trading Development

Limited

B AR A ATEEE-
. HARARHEERA
> 7831%BAARFEERE ' M21.69%

HEMBAREEER (L) EHHE
RERAFEERE
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39.

40.

41.

272

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of year.

SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

There are no subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
interests as at 31 March 2020 and 2021.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations. The
financial risks included market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of
directors. The overall objectives in managing financial risks
focus on securing the Group’s short to medium term cash
flows by minimising its exposure to financial markets.

It is not the Group’s policy to engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 43§

39.

40.

41.

FTEHRBARFERE (£)

EREINARAEERREIEFEARSF
EXEIBNAKREEEFEERA D
ZERRBMBRAR -ARREERS
FRHEEMHBARZHBE BTEHR
BRIUE-

BENBARNFREBTEAELE

BEERFERERZ KB

NG|

RZE_EFR T - —F=A=+—
B BMEREEEAEERERCHBA
ﬂo

]

BEREREER D AER

il

AEERBEERKBETERASRT
B AmAZHGERER - ZEHERRE
EmEER (BREERR  FXER K
RERR) EERR MRS TR -

MERREERAEEARRSE WE
ExgRuofr-EBMBRRZER
BEAERERESRMBRAR BN
T HERAKETEHZASRE-

/i

RERBENEESRTAYFAKE Y
BUR »
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

41.1 Categories of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

fim

MHEREER QB

(&)
411 €@ T EER

ERCRTANBERRZEHES

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting KT
period are as follows:
2021 2020
—E=-—F —EB_FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FATT
Financial assets cMEE
At fair value: RARME:
Financial assets at FVTOCI BARBEFAEMER
WAZTREE 520,088 124,406
Investment in films REEF 65,023 28,777
At amortised cost: RE A
Prepayment for property, LERY T )&
plant and equipment TE B R I8 3,309 3,054
Rental deposits paid to BN —2@BESHSZS
a related party - 6,475
Trade receivables & W B 5 IR 18,489 36,828
Loan receivables W E &K 90,000 =
Deposits and other receivables e hH b E WA 151,964 154,815
Pledged deposits BT 3 200,495 92,424
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFERS 246,540 116,049
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41.
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—F#=H=+—H 31 March 2021

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continuead)

41.1

41.2

Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

MHEREER QB

(%)

fim

411 SRITEER (&)

2021 2020
—E-— —ZTEZEF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET T T
Financial liabilities A =R
Financial liabilities measured at Z#ERATE
amortised cost: SREE:
Trade payables FENE 5 FRIA 28,306 60,946
Accrued charges and other payables &=t & 3 K E b & < ZUIE 101,633 60,257
Amounts due to non-controlling FE A5 FE 458 A% 25 3R R
interests 9,999 11,915
Lease liabilities HEBE 390,546 384,384
Borrowings BE 449,912 755,376
Convertible bonds Al 2 {% (& 25 8,135 =

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Malaysia with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in HK$, DKK, EUR, CHF,
RMB and US$ defined as below. The Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk primarily arises from certain
financial instruments including equity investment, trade
and other receivables, rental deposits paid to a related
party, amount due from a related party, cash at banks
and in hand, trade and other payables and borrowings
which are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group entities,
including DKK, EUR, CHF, RMB and US$. During both
years, the Group did not have foreign currency hedging
policy but management continuously monitors foreign
exchange exposure.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 43§

41.2 S8R B

SNERRIEER T A Z AR ESR
R EnE R IMNEE R Z B i KB
ZRB - AEEXTREEE TH
MR FEROADEE AFDRS
BT R BT B A
B ARERETIEREE A
SEESH 2 INERBREEREAE
SEHERIEEBEINES (B
FERR BT -WIEL AR
ERET)IEZETERIA
BREBERE BREZRELE
oY FIE BN —REBTES
Be B — R RIE RTT
RFBERE BNEZFAREAM
N FENREE - RWEFE
A AEEEINE SRR R
e EREES R AR EINERRE -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

41.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Foreign currency denominated financial assets and

financial liabilities, translated into HK$ at the prevailing
closing rates at the end of the reporting period, are as

M. BBREARBEERQAES

(%)

fim

41.2 SRR ()

RBEERUINESHEZ EREE
i B o S 0
BTN ¢

follows:
2021 2020
—EZ-F —T_ZF
Financial Financial Net Financial Financial Net
assets liabilities exposure assets liabilities exposure
tREE tRERE BEiER PREE 2RAR R%E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET TAET AT AT
Danish Krone (‘DKK”)  F% 5 E8 520,096 - 520,096 132,848 - 132,848
Euro (‘EUR’) B 94 - 94 86 - 86
Swiss Franc (‘CHF’) I A P 2 - 2 2 - 2
Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARE 198 - 198 10,989 - 10,989
United State Dollar T
(‘'US$") 15,790 - 15,790 1,266 (149) 1,117
Sensitive analysis BB 5T

As US$ is pegged to HK$, the Group does not expect
any significant movement in the HK$/US$ exchange
rate. No sensitivity analysis in respect of the Group's
financial assets and financial liabilities denominated
in US$ is disclosed as in the opinion of directors of
the Company, such sensitivity analysis does not give
additional value in view of insignificant movement in the
US$/HK$ exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period.

RN ETEB LA Bt K&
BERETHLETERAIEHEA
EAEAES ARARREER
A ERERTA B TE RN &R E D
RZBHEM  NEEAXTINIE
ZEMEERTRABZHRED
AR EREIMEE - B I &R
BERBESRESN-
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

276

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continuead)

41.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitive analysis (Continued)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group’s results for the years and retained profits
in regards to a 5% (2020: 5%) appreciation in HK$
against DKK, EUR, CHF and RMB respectively. The 5%
is the rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s best assessment of the possible change
in foreign exchange rates.

M. BBREARBEERDAES

fim

41.2 SRR ()

HBEDH (&)

TRERRNEBERMEFE 2%
BERRERANE AT ERE
BT I T ERS R AR S BIAE
5% (ZZE=TF 5% ) ZHRE °
5%y M E BEE A BIEINE R
ABMERB 2R WREERE
NS E OB F 8 2 REMFT -

2021 2020
—E-— —E T

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T T

DKK 7345 52 BA 26,005 6,642
EUR BT 5 4
RMB AR 10 3,154

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period
has been determined based on the assumed percentage
changes in foreign currency exchange rates taking place
at the beginning of the financial years and held constant
throughout the year.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

41.2

41.3

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitive analysis (Continued)

A 5% depreciation in HK$ against DKK, EUR, CHF and
RMB would have the same magnitude on the Group’s
results for the year and retained profits but of opposite
effect.

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the
year depending on the volume of overseas transactions.
Nevertheless, the analysis above is considered to
be representative of the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
deposits (Note 26) and borrowings (Note 31). The Group
has not used any derivative contracts in order to hedge
its exposure to interest rate risk. As at 31 March 2020
and 2021,
impact to bank deposits because the interest rates of

the Group does not anticipate significant

bank deposits are not expected to change significantly.
The Group has not formulated a policy to manage the
interest rate risk.

The Group’s fair value interest-rate risk mainly arises
As at 31
March 2020 and 2021, borrowings were issued at fixed

from borrowings as disclosed in Note 31.

rates which expose the Group to fair value interest-
rate risk. The Group has no cash flow interest-rate risk
as there are no borrowings which bear floating interest
rates. The Group has not used any financial instruments
to hedge potential fluctuations in interest rates.

41.2

41.3

M. BREBREERAAMBEFTE
(%)

SRR ()
HBEDH (&)

BT ERE BT AR
RARERZESHEHARERA
FEZEBENRFRBHEMNEAREE
HRZEE-

SNEER R ERFFERNZBINZ
ZEBEMBATR-EE WL £
253 AT 4 AR A% AT AR SR AN SR 18 P I
ZINE R

MEER

AEB A ERERFEERBIRITHF
A (KizEo6) RIEE (MIFE31) o &
SEYEFEATATETIAEHY
HEHmE A RER - R_E=F
FRZFE-—F=A=+—H'&
EEEHRITIERTEIINEAY
2 REARITERZAEREHDT
SHAEFKEE AL EIEHIET
EEFRER 2 BR

REEBZAABEMNERRERBREERS
M3 fRBEZEE - RS2
FR-ZZB-_—F=A=+—H %
ZRENEENXREN ©AEE
HH A RENRER - BRI EE
ERFEINERGTE  WAEE L E
R mERN KRR o A& B I &
RER e T AP EERNER
&f) o

+
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continuead)

278

41.4

41.5

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as financial assets at
FVTOCI as at 31 March 2020 and 2021.

The management would manage its exposure arising
from the investment by closely monitoring the
performance of the respective equity investments and
market conditions.

At 31 March 2021, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 5% in the market price of this listed equity
securities, with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s fair value
reserve (other components of consolidated equity)
by approximately HK$26,004,000 (31 March 2020:
HK$6,220,000).

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risks
are primarily attributable to trade and other receivables,
pledged deposits, and cash at banks and in hand. The
Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B#&EEERA A
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M. BBREARBEERDAES

(%)

fim

41.4 REER

41.5

R-ZEBE-_TER-_FT-—F=AH
=+—H XRXEBRSERRAA
Bt AEME2EWAZ CRIEEZ
REREmERESS R -

EEESERTIERERERE
ZRERTABTEBERKREESZE

G o
AR

RZBE-_—F=ZA=+—H8 AR
AT A EthE s g g
ZERT LR AFTSFMEL
/T R%EBHAREEBRAAE
(e Em 2 HME D)8 in
/R #926,004,0008 T (—Z B =
TH = F=+—H:6,220,000/%
JT) e

FERAR

EERRESRMIAZH T IARE
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND M. BEEREERAAEE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (%)

41.5 Credit risk (Continued) 415 EERR (&)

The management of the Group considers pledged
deposits and cash at banks and in hand that are
deposited with state-owned banks or financial
institutions with high credit rating to be low credit
risk financial assets. In addition, trade receivables in
connection with bills settled through payment platforms
such as Unionpay, Alipay or WeChat Pay are also
with high credit rating and no past due history. The
management of the Group considers these assets are
short-term in nature and the probability of default is
negligible on the basis of high-credit-rating issuers as
at 31 March 2021. In respect of rental receivables,
sufficient rental deposits from tenants are held to cover
potential exposure to credit risk. Further, evaluations
are made for the customers with reference to their
repayment history and financial strength, as well as the
economic environment in which the customer operates.
Accordingly, no loss allowance was recognised as at 31
March 2021.

In determining the ECL for loan receivables and
other receivables, the management of the Group has
taken into account the historical default experience
and forward-looking information, as appropriate, and
concluded that credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding other receivables is insignificant. The
management of the Group has assessed that loan
receivables and other receivables have not had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and risk of default is insignificant, and therefore, no
impairment has been recognised.

AEBEEERRTFHRREES
FEEFR B BRI RBEE
ZEEBERAKLRITRFEIR
TREEERRESEEE LN
HFEBRE  SNBEIMEZINE
SNTeREs REEACERE

SHENEEREENREN &S
HEL RZE_—F=A=+—
A AEEBEEERRZSTEER
REHE BRTAEASEEN
R U IRE A 2 T BRI AR K o B
WHESAH  AEEHFEZEPHE
cHReRNBHETEERR It
SN REETE %%}EZQW
SRFBREN  UREFPEERE
KBERBERE P EL TG - Bt -
RZBEZ—F=A=+—HILERE
REEEK-

7B TE B W B AR K Bt e R IR 2 TR
HEEBER AEEEREDG
MBEROKREATEEER (1
BA) BRR/AEEREE 2 HAd
JEWRIA 2 MFE1E B R 84 - AR
SEERECTE B IATERIE
WEF &E@Jﬂﬂlmlﬁbﬂi Ef:.
ERRIEEAEES MEAENR
5% B8l - E&ﬂﬁﬁiw@“ﬁ"
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41. BEEBEER A RER
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continuead) (%)

fim

41.6 Liquidity risk 41.6 HREMHE R

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and its
financing obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group’s objective is to maintain an
appropriate level of liquid assets and committed lines of
funding to meet its liability requirements in the short and
longer term.

The Group manages the liquidity needs on a
consolidated basis by carefully monitoring scheduled
debt servicing payments for long term financial liabilities
as well as forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day
to day business.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for the non-derivative financial liabilities at
the end of the reporting period. When the creditor has
a choice of when the liability is settled, the liability is
included on the basis of the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Where the settlement of
the liability is in instalments, each instalment is allocated
to the earliest period in which the Group is committed to
pay.

The analysis is based on the undiscounted cash flows of
the financial liabilities.

RBERBRENKERERTES
MEEREEE RRAER ~&
EBEHERENEMNBSFARE
MEBENLRRERER 2RI
Rig-AEBZBRERERBEE
KA EERERE T NAEK
FoUEMEEHERENAES
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BEHRBHESTE-

30|
i==2
m

o
o

A3 <

Hio
o> B
et

i

S

AT RARBITESRAE
RBEHRZ FIRE DB HER -
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B AR ERAKE R EREKX
BRZHRAYFE -HERER
DHIEF  MSHEFTSIEEAN
SEAEN R 2 RFHEA -
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R
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41. BEEBEEER A RER
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (%)

fim

41.6 Liquidity risk (Continued) 41.6 REMER (£)

Total Less than
contractual one year or
Carrying  undiscounted repayable One year
amount cash flow on demand or above
SHRER PR-FF
REeE HeRE4E REXREE —EgN L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAEL FTHEL AT FTAT
At 31 March 2021 R-B--%
=A=t+-H
Trade payables ENE 55E 28,306 28,306 28,306 -
Accrued charges and B ERREAM
other payables NG 101,633 101,633 101,633 -
Amounts due to non- [ IR I S 7R
controlling interests 9,999 9,999 9,999
Lease liabilities MEARE 390,546 522,884 74,355 448,529
Borrowings BE 449,912 483,069 361,404 121,665
Convertible bonds gk ES 8,135 10,000 - 10,000
988,531 1,155,891 575,697 580,194
At 31 March 2020 N_T-THF
=A=+—8
Trade payables ENE55E 60,946 60,946 60,946 =
Accrued charges and B ERREAM
other payables AN 60,257 60,257 60,257 =
Amounts due to non- ER SRR AE S TR
controlling interests 11,915 11,915 11,915 -
Lease liabilities MEAE 384,384 489,421 77,248 412,173
Borrowings EBE 755,376 931,868 717,641 214,227
1,272,878 1,554,407 928,007 626,400
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

41.7 Fair value measurements
(i)  Fair value hierarchy

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” categorises
fair value measurements into a three-level
hierarchy. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

282  SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 5 £ B 5 R A T
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4R
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()

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND ERBREERAAEE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (&)
41.7 Fair value measurements (Continued) 41.7 DREE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) AAREERE)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& BEZR E=R et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FTET FET FET
At 31 March 2021 R=-Z=-—#f
=H=+-—H
Financial assets TRHEE
Financial assets BRAREFAEMBEE
at FVTOCI WAZERERE 520,088 - - 520,088
Investment in films  &&AE¥ - - 65,023 65,023
Investment REYE
properties - - 379,998 379,998
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— E_H FE=M BET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAT TAT FAT FAT
At 31 March 2020 R-Z_-ZF
=B=+-—H
Financial assets CREE
Financial assets BAREFAEMEE
at FVTOCI WAZEREE 124,406 = = 124,406
Investment in fims ~ REEF - = 28,777 28,777
Investment BREWME
properties — - 408,462 408,462

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2021,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level

2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s

policy is to recognise transfers between levels of

fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting

period in which they occur.

B - E-—MEF K zEL
BER TEEARELS
ZHRAEE BRI
EEBRIBEHRRERRR
BE R 2 B
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

41.7 Fair value measurements (Continued)

(ii)  Fair value of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets and
liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2020 and 2021.

42. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is
to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the year.
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REEBRZ-_TFR_-FT
——FZA=Z+—HEKAK
HEBER TR CEEREA
BEZRESBEEQAMELE
BEAER-
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AREEERNEEZ T BB R RERER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

42. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total debt divided by total capital. Total debt is calculated
as borrowings and convertible bonds, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Total capital
is calculated as total equity, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group aims to maintain
the gearing ratio at a reasonable level.

42, EXEE (#)

AEBERBERNBEL R (AEBHAR
BRABARER) BEEER - EBARETIR
FEMBHRRBRERARMER R AT RARE
HitB - BARBREIVREE M BN K
RN ERBEFE - ANREZBRTD
FEERBBELRERNEEKFE-

2021 2020
—E-— T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T

Total debt (EE
Borrowings and convertible bonds BEERABRES 458,047 755,376
Total capital BB 2,659,296 2,002,910
Gearing ratio BEARBENEE 17.2% 37.7%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 43. &2 7] Z B B AR | &+
THE COMPANY

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T8 T BT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries N SIENGIPA: X 953,191 954,042
Current assets mEEE
Tax recoverable A] Uy [B] % I8 3,575 =
Prepayment TR A - 83
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NGIE O 1,164,483 1,060,267
Cash at banks RITIRE 9,684 1,796
1,177,742 1,062,146
Current liabilities mBEE
Accrued charges and EET B A R EMENKIEA
other payables 3,645 1,812
Amounts due to subsidiaries AL EINGIE S 33,037 63,917
36,682 65,729
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,141,060 996,417
Total assets less current liabilities 2 EERREB A& 2,094,251 1,950,459
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Convertible bonds AR E A 8,135 =
Net assets BEEFE 2,086,116 1,950,459
EQUITY =
Share capital B 7 10,944 9,587
Reserves 2,075,172 1,940,872
2,086,116 1,950,459
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors R-ZE-_—FA=+EK=Fgi k&
on 30 June 2021 and signed on its behalf by: ME#ETZE THAATESREESE:
Zheng Hao Jiang Zhao Xiaodong
BRI ST R
Director Director
2 2
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=F=+—H 31 March 2021

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 43. XA @ 2B B IR REBE (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Convertible (Accumulated

bonds losses)/
Share Capital ~ Contributed Exchange equity retained
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve earnings Total
TRRES (RHEB)/
R EE Exfif HABH PERE BERR REET &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TAT TAT THT TET TET

At 1 April 2019 R-ZE-nENA—-A 1,573,808 3,508 407,042 - - (36,743) 1,947,615
Changes in equity in 2020: ZICTERRYD:

Profit for the year REE R - - - - - 50,112 50,112
Other comprehensive income  E 2 AR A

Currency translation differences SHHREZE - - = (1,971) = = (1,971)

Total comprehensive income  AFE2ERALE

for the year - - - (1,971) - 50,112 48,141
Repurchase of shares BERH - - (54,884) - - - (54,884)
At 31 March 2020 W_ZE-ZF=F=+—H 1,573,808 3,508 352,158 (1,971) - 13,369 1,940,872

At 31 Marchand 1 April 2020 HRZZE-TF=F=1-H

kEA—A 1,573,808 3,508 352,158 (1,971) - 13,369 1,940,872
Changes in equity in 2021 T -FEREY
Profit for the year KEEET - - - - - (6,354) (6,354)

Total comprehensive income ~ AFEZARALE

for the year - - - - - (6,354) (6,354)
Issuance of shares BARERTRG

through placement 49,367 - - - - - 49,367
Receipt of convertible bonds ~ WEH AR E% - - - - 18,699 - 18,699
Conversion of convertible bonds  E# A # ik &% 89,340 - - - (16,752) - 72,588
At 31 March 2021 RZZE=-%=A=1-H 1,712,515 3,508 352,158 (1,97) 1,047 7,015 2,075,172
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Financial Summary

RESULTS ¥E
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
“2—t% Z—B-N\§f —B-Nf —F-TF -B--F
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
AT THET TAT AT TER
Revenue Y zs 2,781,222 2,893,052 3,724,845 3,443,430 4,525,762
Profit for the year attributable to ALRAEBAER
owners of the Company KEE R 87,845 664,565 97,429 30,283 37,527
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—E—t§ ZZE-N\§ ZE-NE CZTTH CZB--§
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHL AT TEL THET TER
Total assets BESE 2,366,334 3,907,033 3,933,651 3,597,058 4,086,152
Total liabilities BELS (578,507) (883,853)  (1,560,457)  (1,594,148)  (1,426,856)
1,787,827 3,023,180 2,373,194 2,002,910 2,659,296
Equity attributable to AREEB ANELES
owners of the Company 1,773,994 3,006,150 2,366,637 2,000,722 2,654,955
Non-controlling interests IR 2 13,833 17,030 6,557 2,188 4,341
1,787,827 3,023,180 2,373,194 2,002,910 2,659,296
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